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Our new game-changer strategy will
allow us to capitalise on the tremendous
potential of REITs globally, beginning
with the housing and medical sectors

in the United States. We have since
worked aggressively in the U.S. - through
corporate actions and on the ground - to
set this REIT strategy in motion.

BMETE2HEZEBIRK  FULESZRE
WERERFRZEED  YUXBEEERE
BITEXRESH - RANZEEBRRE - BB
TETHETZFEHEREETRRE -

Mr. Chan Heng Fai
Managing Chairman of Heng Fai Enterprises Limited
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Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

CORPORATE
PROFILE

REEN

Heng Fai Enterprises Limited (“HFE” or “Company”), formerly Xpress
Group Limited, was founded in 1965 and has been listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 1972.

HFE, together with its subsidiaries (“Group”), is currently pursuing
twin engines of growth — the Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”)
ownership and management strategy (‘REIT strategy”) and real estate
development, both primarily in the United States. HFE is currently
seeding and growing two U.S.-listed REITs that generate higher-
than-average annualised dividend yields in excess of 8%. Apart from
the new REIT strategy, HFE has four main businesses segments —
property development, hotels and hospitality, securities trading and
investment, as well as property investment and trading.

The Company is headquartered in Hong Kong, and has offices in
Singapore, Japan, Spain and North America. It also owns a sizeable
portfolio of properties in Singapore, Hong Kong, Japan and the U.S.

Its global businesses are led by a highly experienced management
team backed by a Board of Directors with strong finance and
property experience and an established track record.

HFE aims to grow exponentially in the next five years and create new
sustainable revenue streams to generate recurring revenues hence
enhancing shareholder value.
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REIT OWNERSHIP AND
MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

FiEREETHERREERE

INTER-AMERICAN
GROUP

Following the disposal in January 2013 of a Singapore Exchange
Catalist-listed property development subsidiary that had provided
the bulk of its development income, HFE underwent a change in
corporate identity. In line with its new identity, HFE announced on
6 December 2013 a strategy to own and manage REITs in a major
strategic shift from its legacy business of investment holding which
had led to lumpy earnings.

HFE seeks to seed and grow a portfolio of REITs, initially listed in
the U.S., where real estate markets are in a recovery phase. These
REITs — consisting of residential homes and medical assets — can
offer a higher-than-average annualised dividend yield exceeding 8%
by selectively acquiring quality assets with existing tenancies. Apart
from recurring income, investors of these REITs can also benefit from
capital appreciation.

HFE has so far seeded two U.S. Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board
(“OTCBB”)-listed REITs, managed by U.S.-based company, Inter-
American Management, LLC (“IAM”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of 85%-HFE controlled Inter-American Group Holdings Inc. (“IA
Group”), which will earn management fees of 1.5% to 2.0% of the
REITs’ assets under management. The remaining 15% stake of 1A
Group is owned by Mr. Jeffrey Busch, the Chief Executive Officer of
IA Group who is a 27-year real estate veteran who has previously
served two U.S. Presidents, overseeing a yearly budget of over US$3
billion to develop housing and commercial real estate for the U.S.
Government.

Apart from establishing itself as a REIT player, the Company is also
actively exploring land and property development opportunities in the
U.S. These development projects will be managed by IA Group’s real
estate development arm, Inter-American Development, LLC (“IAD”),
and can also leverage on the Group’s global property development
experience.

To raise additional capital to accelerate growth, the Company intends
to tap into the international equity market, starting with a proposed
secondary listing on the U.K. Alternative Investment Market (“AIM”).
Towards this end, HFE appointed London-based Allenby Capital
Limited as its nominated adviser and broker on 14 April 2014.
Separately, it intends to migrate the listing of its first two REITs to
the NASDAQ main market while exploring secondary listings on
international exchanges.
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MEREMBLAR(EHEBERRSDBEREA)  EEZLEE
fLHIREE - gt - BER T —=F+ " AXNBAR/MAEEA N LE
BEMEREFETEIREM IR  HERFINE T E 2 REZRR
BEBEHERKBITER -

ERXBFMETSER  EEHERABLEY —ENFNEE L
MZEHEREGERER ZEFHEREEIEEEELBEE
E mERBKEMNSREFANZEHEREEE  FERE@MHEE
BEHBIH8%  ®RTIKTF - BREFHRAI - ZEFHERER
FEZREE T AEENLERS

ERESE WML IRERMERERZINEFRHR(MGINEF
REHEM]) Lz EHEREER  ZEEL I ABEEAS5%E
% 2 Inter-American Group Holdings Inc. (ZEM &2 EHER A F) ([1A
Group |) 2 =Bl & & [} B A A]Inter-American Management, LLC(3
MBEEEREAT)(NIAM])ERE - fMIA Groupi§ AT E BEHERE
FEREERIIE%E2.0%EIEE ° IA Groupth F15% KM% JIHIA
GroupfT I 48 & Jeffrey Buschft £ # A ° Jeffrey Buschit & A 27
FRUMETELR YAMBXEAHRE  BEEEHI0EET
FEEE  AEEBNHAREEREAFEMETE °

BRERNSEMEREELESEIN  ARAINTREBREGEEIE L i
MYZEBERKS - ZEEREE B HAIA GrouplE TEHEZRRD X
Inter-American Development, LLC(ZEJ BB 2R A F]) ([IAD]) &
B AEaRAEERERMERRTE &R -

BEEBEIESNRIER AQARETRARBELAMS - 9P ER
RESEEEMS([SERETHEDBETE=- L™ - it - BEE
R —NF A+ A ZEZIB M ZAlenby Capital Limited &
HETHEHERERL - Z—2F  ARfRSEemERLERERE
AEEMERERMS LT - ANSKRBEBRRSAT#ETE=- L
e



Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

REIT OWNERSHIP AND
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The Company is confident that with favourable market conditions, a AR GRE * MABH - N EERES NTEIRAE  BAREEE
clear focus and roadmap to growth, and the management depth it EE + HiS iR A TS EREBE - TR REBENK SEEBR
has in place, it will be able to enhance sustainable shareholder value 7 2 EERE(SELIEA ©

and position itself as a sizeable global REIT manager within the next

few years.

HENG FAI ENTERPRISES LIMITED
Listed on HKSE (Stock Code: 185)

BENEZERERAT
FrEm (BRHMASE : 185)

owns 85% of 15% owned by Mr. Jeffrey Busch
#B85% r FJeffrey Buschst £ B 15%
HFE controls 99%
INTER-AMERICAN GROUP HOLDINGS INC. BB 4 999%
EMEEEZR AR
HFE controls 94%
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owns 100% of manages

¥ 100% Inter-American &y American Housing
REIT Inc.

Management, LLC
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Development, LLC
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INTER-AMERICAN
MANAGEMENT

Inter-American Management, LLC (“IAM”) is the REIT management
arm of IA Group, led by a specialised team of highly-experienced
professionals with deep knowledge in the U.S. real estate market.

IAM manages two HFE-seeded REITs - American Housing
REIT Inc. (“AHR”) and Global Medical REIT Inc. (“GMR”) - and
plans to eventually manage other global REITs. IAM estimates
receiving management fees of 1.5% to 2.0% of Assets Under
Management, varying by REIT and depending on performance. Its
REIT management strategy centres on systematising, and creating
viable economies of scale, to effectively manage cash flow over the
life cycles of a wide range of real estate holdings. IAM focuses on
minimising operating expenses by optimising property evaluation and
property management practices, through advanced online property
tracking tools coupled with on-site evaluations. IAM sources for
prospective acquisitions based on the broad network of relationships
of IA Group’s U.S.-based executive team.

Inter-American Management, LLC(ZEMBREE A R]) ([IAM]) BIA
Groupli TEMEREEXEENX  NHEBREXEEWET
B BEREEBKTGE o

IAMIR S EBEEFTRN 2 M EFE b E R &S5 0 BlAmerican
Housing REIT Inc.(EMNEHER E =) ([AHR]) &Global Medical
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AMERICAN
HOUSING REIT

U.S. OTCBB-listed American Housing REIT Inc. (“AHR”) is currently
99%-controlled by HFE, and managed by IAM. AHR owns a
portfolio of single-family rentals (“SFRs”) primarily in Texas, Florida,
and Georgia, and seeks to pay a higher-than-average 8% target
annualised vyield quarterly. It hopes to migrate to the NASDAQ main
market by the end of financial year 31 March 2015 (“FY2015”).

AHR has so far acquired over 100 SFRs. HFE is seeking bank
financing for expansion and hopes to acquire as many as 1,000 SFRs
worth approximately US$100 million to US$130 million by the end of
FY2015.

=

1. Houston, Texas, USA 35 IR HTEE
2. Fort Worth, Texas, USA = Hi MR H £
3. Dallas, Texas, USA 3= BI{2 & Hy )N i H7 Hf
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To achieve the attractive dividend yield, AHR differentiates itself
by deliberately buying specific-quality pre-rented homes with solid
tenants in good neighbourhoods. In contrast, various other REITs
have, in the last two to three years, aggressively bought large
aggregated batches of distressed assets often comprising vacant
homes requiring extensive renovation.

AHR cherry-picks individual homes carefully, projecting yields
based on location, condition, tenant profile and potential for capital
appreciation. These homes are located in stable neighbourhoods
which are tenant-desirable (high occupancy and low unemployment
rates) to ensure long-term tenancy. AHR pays a slight premium for
homes that are already “stabilised” (renovated and rented), and has
thereby been able to keep major rent-related expenses low at 40% of
rental revenue, as compared to industry peers of 50% to 60%. These
cost savings are passed on to AHR unit-holders in the form of higher
returns.

This highly-selective strategy allows AHR to distribute a target
annualised vyield of 8% compared to the market average of 5%.
On 24 April 2014, AHR paid its maiden quarterly distribution, at an
annualised yield of 8.4%. Based on recent results, it is expected that
the second dividend payment to be made in July 2014 will achieve at
least 8% annualised yield.

For more information, please visit the AHR website:
http://www.americanhousingreit.com/
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GLOBAL MEDICAL
REIT
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MEDICAL REIT

U.S. OTCBB-listed Global Medical REIT Inc. (“GMR”) is 94%-held
by HFE and managed by IAM. GMR, which will distribute its maiden
distribution in July 2014, is building a medical real estate portfolio of
specialised, high-acuity medical facilities, and seeks to pay monthly
distributions with a higher-than-average annualised yield of at least
8%.

GMR hopes to migrate to the NASDAQ main market and achieve
a net asset value of approximately US$400 million by the end of
financial year 31 March 2015 (“FY2015”).

GMR’s strategy is to acquire specialised medical facilities with long-
term triple net (“NNN”) leases, by which maintenance costs, insurance
and property taxes are borne by the tenant. GMR targets situations
where developers are looking to exit property exposure, or where

Select Specialty Hospital, Omaha, Nebraska
AR R HT AN B8 55 M Select Specialty Hospital

ZRBINEFRZ SR ET AT Global Medical REIT Inc.(BIFR & &
B EREET)([GMR])) B EEEHM4%EZ - WHIAMERE -
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healthcare operators wish to monetize their real estate to deploy
capital on core health care operations. Other key differentiators
include GMR’s preference for high-acuity single-tenants committed
to NNN leases, which reduce operating exposures and keep
administrative procedures as streamlined as possible. High-acuity
facilities are targeted in part since these are less pursued by other
medical real estate investors.

GMR works on a long-term purchase-and-leaseback basis which
provides both GMR and the tenant with stability. GMR’s deep
experience and contacts within the medical real estate community
enable GMR to acquire properties at a fair value, on favourable terms
— in addition to sourcing for properties through medical industry-
specific brokerage channels, GMR is able to originate property
acquisitions with healthcare operators directly, to cater to their
specific sale-and-leaseback needs and provide financial services in
that context.

In June, GMR completed the acquisition of its first asset, a long-
term acute care hospital located in Omaha, Nebraska, for US$22.7
million. The facility is a 41,113 square foot hospital operated by
Select Specialty Hospital, Omaha Inc. with 10 years remaining on its
lease, including annual rent increases and multiple options to renew.
The facility is connected to the Bergan Mercy Medical Center, which
is run by one of the largest non-profit healthcare systems in the U.S.
that has received the highest investment grade ratings (Moody’s —
A1; S&P — A+; Fitch — A+).

For more information, please visit the GMR website:
http://www.globalmedicalreit.com/

Annual Report 2014
“E-NEFR

BREE-_SFHEMNZSEE—MFL  WBEPHRELERB LR
BEELITHRIZEF - ERSERXRME VSR E4E f%ﬁﬂé&ﬁ%%
B - 2 EREE AGMRE S BAE -

GMR}EE,HJ%%E\E@EZ%E#L REGMREIS ZIREMN - B

BIIERELLRENENRI  GMRRBEEMER L Z
”‘E#&%&AHJK@EGMRT&EW\%?X NFERBEDE - GMRRA]
IPEERAREEERRIKENE 6D EFEHESEME
Z@HmFR - WA R SRR o

RA - GMRL‘AQ?ZE?O%%%W%EE@EE CREEAMR
mﬁﬁ%mm Sz RPSIEB R - 2R/ —K41,113F

7R 2 8B - B Select Specialty Hospital, Omaha Inc.4¢% » fHH]
ﬁﬁfmoi AIRBE TR IRE R S EBREEE - ZREHBergan
Mercy Medical Center#gi& - ifiBergan Mercy Medical Center /i

EEES— Irj(’*” FEEFIRE ?:?ﬁaL ZEBREERSRER
FFR(BE-A1 BREER —A+ BB —A+) °
FLEMFE2HGMRAT

http://www.globalmedicalreit.com/



Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

INTER-AMERICAN
DEVELOPMENT

EMEIBR R

INTER-AMERICAN
DEVELOPMENT

Inter-American Development, LLC (“IAD”) is the real estate
development arm of IA Group which aims to invest capital in assets
that provide above-market returns. IAD is pursuing a variety of
projects for which it can either provide project management services,
carry out land sub-divisions for sale to builders, or act as the master
developer of larger, longer-term “anchor” projects which may be
mixed-use.

IAD has entered into an agreement with an Asia-based property
developer to collaborate on a land sub-division project in which it will
take on the role of development manager for a 136-acre parcel of
land in Houston, Texas, suitable for division into approximately 540
lots. IAD will receive fees to provide management, operational, and
administrative services for the project.

IAD is committed to conducting rigorous due diligence, using
conservative assumptions coupled with careful assessments of
various investment outcome scenarios by an experienced team of
development professionals, to ensure that it consistently achieves
its objectives. IAD’s willingness and ability to source, evaluate and
execute complex transactions in a relatively short time frame gives it
a competitive edge. IAD is building a substantial pipeline of diverse
projects that meet the criteria of IAD in cooperation with its on-the-
ground partners.

Inter-American Development, LLC(ZEMBEIERZRE AR ([IAD]) AIA
GrouplE TEHERZE DS - BAKERJIRES K MEKFEE R
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EXISTING PROPERTY
PORTFOLIO

BEMEES

HFE owns a diverse range of quality hotels, residential and
commercial properties spanning Singapore, Hong Kong, Japan and
the U.S.

SINGAPORE PROPERTIES

FEPERVEREERER RS

.. - Lo 5s

The Company’s Singapore property portfolio is concentrated in
locations near Mass Rapid Transit (MRT) stations, Singapore’s
railway system, ensuring convenience and connectivity. HFE owns
a portfolio of SOHO units at Southbank which features high-ceilings
and duplexes. These units are uniquely zoned for both residential
and commercial uses and hence generate strong rental yield. HFE
also owns a portfolio of residential properties at Dakota Residences
adjacent to the Dakota MRT station, and a pair of conservation
shophouses on North Canal Road which is a vibrant heritage area
located in the bustling city.

JAPAN PROPERTIES

BERETRERNBEEE  TELBBNE BRI &
% BARKREH -

Ik EYES

1. Dakota Residences
2. Southbank Soho

AARFIMEYMEMREEP R INFEHE I - XBHET
= o [BfE7ESouthbank# BSOHOE A A - e KIERMEEAE
BER  ZEEMEURALE  AEFERBERSE  AUES
KFEES - /87 Dakota Residences A X EMEH A - Dakota
Residences#B 3T Dakotaith i ufi + 532 7F A North Canal Road i &
B BUEMEXYEE EEEHATAEFIBEEY

1&2. Aizuya

HFE currently owns two properties in Japan — the first being Aizuya,
an authentic and traditional Japanese hot spring inn located at Nasu,
Tochigi prefecture, a famous mountain resort area approximately
2-hours drive from the Tokyo downtown, and the other being The
Hamilton Sapporo, an 8-storey hotel erected over a one-level
basement situated at Chuo Ward, Sapporo City, Japan.

38&4. The Hamilton Sapporo

BIRRERREEMEAYE - HEEAzuya * £ B R IEREFRR
MREE - CIAARGZRIB/AE] - R AERE LERN - EEERRT RS
A/ NEER ¢« B —{E=2The Hamilton Sapporofi/& @ & /\E -
BEMTE  ERARILIETHRE -
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HONG KONG PROPERTIES

- . 1
In addition to some smaller properties, HFE owns two floors of the
commercial building, Wyndham Place, a prime office building located
in the Central district of Hong Kong - the central business district of

the region. HFE uses one floor for its headquarters while leasing out
the other.

U.S. PROPERTIES

HFE currently owns over 100 Single-Family Rentals (“SFRs”) in the
U.S., held under its REIT subsidiary, American Housing REIT Inc.
These homes are carefully selected for their location, condition,
tenant profile and potential for capital appreciation. HFE also owns
a specialised medical facility in Omaha, Nebraska under another
REIT subsidiary, Global Medical REIT Inc. The medical facility is a
41,113 feet, 56-bed acute care hospital operated by Select Specialty
Hospital, Omaha Inc. In addition to the properties held on HFE’s two
U.S. REITs, HFE owns a 273,200 square metre freehold parcel of
land in California and two residential units situated on Wall Street in
New York.

12
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RECENT PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT TRACK RECORD

ITHAYI R R AR

HFE has over 40 years of experience in the real estate business,
undertaking various aspects such as property development, project
management, investment, syndication, and construction.

Most recently, the Group executed several successful property
development projects in Singapore via a former SGX Catalist-
listed property development subsidiary, SingXpress Land Limited
(“SingXpress Land”), now renamed SingHaiyi Group Ltd (“SingHaiyi”).

Under HFE’s control, SingXpress Land executed a unique
investment-banking approach — a syndication approach where
the management leads in seeking out developments sites, sets
commercial parameters, brings in strategic partners and manages
the development process.

Within a short span of three years, SingXpress Land grew its property
development portfolio under management from start-up to almost
S$1 billion, and market capitalisation from S$4 million to over S$500
million before HFE completed the disposal of the subsidiary in
January 2013.

The following are the four projects in Singapore that HFE executed
through SingXpress Land:

CITYLIFE@QTAMPINES

CityLife@Tampines is a 514-unit development and Singapore’s first
luxury hotel-inspired executive condominium (“EC”). SingXpress
Land syndicated, conceptualised and managed the project with its
equity partners. CityLife@Tampines features hotel-inspired facilities
such as a home concierge service, a 100-metre infinity pool and a
fully equipped function suite topped off with resort-style landscaping.
CityLife@Tampines set records for the most number of e-applications
to ballot for units, highest-priced EC units and the largest penthouse.
The development was sold out within three months and its design set
a new standard for Singapore’s EC market.

BIEEFHEXBHEEBBIAOFLR  PRYFER BRAERE
BE  CEBAABNMEETE  XBEZ -

REBESAFEBENIANAFR ETADEEZERITE QA
SingXpress Land Limited ([ SingXpress Land ) + IRk #& A#iE%
EEBRAR([FERDEFRIEAINETZEAYEERIES -

friEEIESIT + SingXpress Land B TR E RTT 7 — 1 F 05
BB c EREEERARSHRERME  SIFTEEL28 5| A
REEUEBHREERELER -

FESE 58 =5 » SingXpress LandBE R EA BT EERAS - W%
HEMRSES R E10EMMNE T mEREREE-_Z—=F
—AZEKHENBARATE4E BN ITIEINE BB RN IT -

LA B1EIEE #BSingXpress LandE ¥ INE S BRI IMAIER -

CITYLIFE@TAMPINES

Artist’s Impression

BETER

CityLife@Tampines & — BB S14EEMN M RER - A K
HEZEREALEQAB(THXEAQE]) o SingXpress LandEd %58
BB AAE ML REERIEAR - CityLife@Tampines A & 20 5&
HAED  PINEEREEERY - 100KEEEICEMEEE BN
ER - BEEBEEEEBNHNAL o CityLife@Tampinesfill 37 % B
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Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

RECENT PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT TRACK RECORD

MY RERER

CityLife@Tampines sits on a 223,357 square foot (“sq ft”) site
surrounded by lifestyle centres and natural landscapes. It has a
maximum permissible Gross Floor Area (“GFA”) of 625,398 sq ft and
a gross development value of approximately S$528 million.

PASIR RIS ONE
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Pasir Ris One, is a 447-unit public housing development under the
HDB Design, Build, and Sell Scheme (DBSS). Despite being under a
public housing scheme, SingXpress Land created designer homes
for the mass market fully fitted with kitchen appliances, and sanitary
fittings, boasting innovative features and built-in furnishing rivaling
private condominiums.

Pasir Ris One sits on a 176,400 sq ft site in the heart of the Pasir Ris
town centre only a one minute walk to the adjacent MRT station and
shopping mall. It has a maximum permissible GFA of 441,002 sq ft
and a gross development value of approximately S$280 million.

CHARLTON RESIDENCES
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PASIR RIS ONE

Artist’s Impression

RETBER

Pasir Ris One RFEE#RE B @Rt - BEMHEEE THA447(E

BAUNARFEREERIEER - BB R—BEAHEREE - SingXpress
Land B A BT 5 ElE R f%‘]@ﬁ’ﬂi%’: BEERREEDBERE
—[EER EBEHES  REXRABELALE -

Pasir Ris Oneffih176,400F 53R + fIifPasir Risi Ly » #1TR&H
— o EEA R EMANMEE REYES  c AR T REEME
#441,002F AR - BERBEBEL2ESTEFME T

CHARLTON RESIDENCES

Artist’s Impression
REFBR

=S



Charlton Residences is a luxury cluster housing development with
21 landed strata units. The design features total privacy for residents
with the finest comforts and fittings complemented by a complete
suite of family friendly amenities such as lap pool, clubhouse, and
gym to promote wellness. Charlton Residences was completely sold
in less than four months of its launch.

Charlton Residences sits on a 34,154 sq ft site 5-minute away from
Kovan MRT, Heartland Mall and Kovan City. It has a maximum
permissible GFA of 62,054 sq ft and a gross development value of
approximately S$60 million.

COSMOLOFT
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Cosmoloft is a modern private condominium with 56 units that
breathes city living nestled within the vicinity of convenience,
pleasure, and necessities. Its location and high-end design attracts
the most discerning buyers.

Cosmoloft sits on an 11,384 sq ft site located near amenities
such as shopping centres, supermarkets, food and entertainment
establishments, as well as prestigious schools. Close to 2 major
expressways — PIE and CTE — it has a maximum permissible GFA of
31,875 sq ft and a gross development value of approximately S$53
million.
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Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

HFE PROPERTY
TRACK RECORD

(EbCRIE SEXERE

HFE PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION TRACK RECORD

Over the last 40 years, the Group has built up a solid track record for
property development and construction:

HONG KONG

PUBLIC HOUSING ESTATES AND HOME OWNERSHIP
SCHEMES (“H.0.S”)

e Butterfly Estate, Phase V, H.O.S.
Cheung Ching Estate Phase Il Extension
Cho Yiu Estate

Choi Wan Estate, Phase IIA

Choi Wan Estate, Phase IIB

Choi Wan Estate, Phase |l

Choi Wan Estate, Phase IV

Fu Shan Estate

Kwun Tong Central H.O.S.

Lower Wong Tai Sin Estate, Phase IlI
Po On Market & H.O.S.

R.A.F. Kai Tak Estate, Phase | &I
Shek Wu Hui Estate, Phase |

Sun Chui Estate, Phase IlI

Tai Yuen Estate, Phase |

Tsing Yi Estate, Phase |, H.O.S.
Tsing Yi Tiger’'s Head Village Resite
Tung Tau Estate, Phase |

Wang Tau Hom Estate, Phase |

Wo Che Estate

Wong Kong Shan Estate, Phase |
Wong Kong Shan Estate, Phase Il

COMMERCIAL
e Dao Heng Bank Building
e Tai Lee Building
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Tak Yan Commercial Building
Choi Wan Estate Community Centre

Fire Services Headquarter, Tsim Sha Tsui East

Judiciary Building, Gascoigne Road

Kai Tak Airport, 747 Nose-in-pier No. 1 & 2 & Bus Docks
Kai Tak Airport Terminal Building, Extension
Kai Tak Airport Terminal Building, Fitting Out work

Kwai Chung N.T.S.D. Garage

Ngau Tau Kok Housing / Marketing Complex

Red Cross Blood Transfusion Centre
Secondary School, Area 3D, Shatin
Shatin Lawcourt

Shun Lee Estate, Secondary School & Community Centre
To Kwa Wan Market and Government Office
Tsuen Wan Multi-storey Carpark & Transport Interchange

INDUSTRIAL

Cheung Sha Wan, Flatted Factory
Fo Tan Yeuk, Flatted Factory
Keng Fong Industrial Building
Kowloon Bay, Flatted Factory
Kwai Chung Industrial Building
Kwong Luen Tai factory

Tuen Mun Area 9, Flatted Factory

RESIDENTIAL

217-223 Shanghai Street
222-224 Queen’s Road West
Cedar Apartments

Chea Jun House

Inverness Villas

Kin Fook Mansions

King Lam Apartments
Moreton Terrace

Rhenish Mansions

Tak Yan Mansion
Townhouses at 26 Shouson Hill Road
Tung Shan Villas

Villa Dorado

Y.Y. Mansions

Yik Kwan Villas

SINGAPORE
RESIDENTIAL

Charlton Residences, 1 Charlton Road
Pasir Ris One, Pasir Ris Central

CityLife@Tampines, Tampines Central Ave 7/9

Cosmoloft, 235 Balestier Road
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e Charlton Residences, 1 Charlton Road

e Pasir Ris One, Pasir Ris Central

e CityLife@Tampines, Tampines Central Ave 7/9

e Cosmoloft, 235 Balestier Road
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Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

HFE PROPERTY
TRACK RECORD

(EbCRIE SEXERE

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
RESIDENTIAL

e Townhouses, Monterey Park, California

e Condominiums, Alhambra, California

e Townhouses, Alhambra, California

CANADA

RESIDENTIAL

e Windsor Gardens, Vancouver, Canada
e |adner Pointe, Delta, B.C., Canada

MALAYSIA
RESIDENTIAL
e Sri Tunku, luxury condominiums

XHE
=

o EBIMNRFFLETERE
o EEIMNAFERR AT AE
o EEMNFAFERAERE

mEX
fEE

o MEXBIFERSILE
o MEATHIES ML= AiMLadner Pointe

BRAEER
=
o BABHDREAD

B KHESri Tunku

HFE PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRACK
RECORD

In addition to property development and construction, HFE has a
strong track record of investment. Below are the recent investments
realized, some of which represent entire developments whilst some
are selected units.

HONG KONG
COMMERCIAL

e [sland Place Tower, North Point
e  SUP Tower, North Point

INDUSTRIAL
e No. 326 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
e Good Luck Industrial Building, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
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RESIDENTIAL

e Amoy Gardens, Kowloon

e Parkland Villas, Tuen Mun, N.T.

e Beneville, Tuen Mun, N.T.

e Affluence Garden, Tuen Mun, N.T.

e Tsuen Wan Centre, Tsuen Wan, N.T.
e Tsuen Tak Gardens, Tsuen Wan, N.T.
e Tak Bo Garden, Kowloon

e Shaukeiwan Centre, Shaukeiwan

e The Platinum, Mongkok

e Tai Hing Gardens, Tuen Mun

e Baguio Villa, Pokfulam

LAND

e Lot No. 1210 and 1211, Demarcation District (No. 316, Lantau
Island, N.T.)

e Nos. 28-30 Kai Tak Road, Kowloon City, Kowloon

e Nos. 16-20 Baker Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon

SINGAPORE
RESIDENTIAL

e The Arcadia

e Dakota Residences
e The Sail

COMMERCIAL

e Textile Centre

e The Centre

e  Suntec Tower 2

e Southbank SOHO

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

COMMERCIAL

e Northeast Corner of Tustin Avenue and Katlla Avenue, Orange
City, Orange Country, California

CANADA

COMMERCIAL

e 981 Nelson Street, Vancouver, British Columbia
e 53rd Street Delta, British Columbia

RESIDENTIAL
e 1281 Alberni Street, Vancouver

JAPAN
COMMERCIAL
e Hotel Plaza Miyazaki, Miyazaki City

Annual Report 2014
“E-NEFR

==

o NEEAAIEE

o RWMIBHEEE
o FTRWEFIBEILH
o FTAHPIEZIEE
o MREWEEARL
o HMAZEEELE
o NEEHELE

o EEEEE A,
o HEASEPL

o FTAHPIREIEE
o SEHRMEEE

+ 3
o RN EXH3165E (HEEIT1210%12115% )

o NLEENBEWREE28-30%
o NELAWLZ=E16-205%

¥ hnsg

=
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e Dakota Residences
e The Sall
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e Northeast Corner of Tustin Avenue and Katlla Avenue, Orange
City, Orange Country, California
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e 981 Nelson Street, Vancouver, British Columbia
e 53rd Street Delta, British Columbia

=

e 1281 Alberni Street, Vancouver

=N
[SES
o ElFTHotel Plaza Miyazaki

19



Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

CORPORATE
MILESTONES

NRERER

DECEMBER +=#

o Disposal of Hotel Plaza Miyazaki in Japan at an
aggregate consideration of JPY420 million

e & HAHotel Plaza Miyazaki * R EA 2012
42T HHE

OCTOBER + A

. Change of corporate identity, renamed “Heng Fai
Enterprises Limited” from “Xpress Group Limited” to
reflect change in corporate strategy

o HEMGENSR dIFEREEARAFINEAR[ERE
TEERERAF] - URMAZERE EAEE

APRIL 19 B

o Appointment of Allenby Capital Limited as the
Company’s financial adviser, nominated adviser and
broker for a proposed secondary listing on the AIM of 2014
the London Stock Exchange

s NERBEFRFFIZEREMBEZFRETE
fEAllenby Capital Limited 27N A A8 S EERT ~ (REBE A
Ragse

2014

JUNE < A

. HFE’s 94%-owned U.S. subsidiary, Global Medical
REIT Inc., completes the acquisition of an operational
medical facility in Omaha, Nebraska for US$22.7
million

o [HBHHI4%RER K BIMIE A FlGlobal Medical
REIT Inc. (B BB E HEREEF) A2 F2E70E %
TCTERK U AR HT N BB S A T ) $R VR B R Rt

“*

JULY £ A

. Global Medical REIT Inc. to distribute first monthly
dividend, targeting to exceed 8% annualised dividend
yield

o American Housing REIT Inc. to distribute second
quarterly dividend, targeting to exceed 8% annualised
dividend yield

e Global Medical REIT Inc. ( EIEX % f= #h EE 18 & 5 5
DIKEEAERE - FREXHBES%

e American Housing REIT Inc.(EMNEHEREET)
DIREZRFERE - HFFREEBH8%
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JANUARY — A

. Disposal of entire equity-interest in SGX-Catalist listed
property development subsidiary, SingHaiyi Group
Ltd. (formerly known as SingXpress Land Limited)

o WHEEHRAMIFIR EMHNYEERIEARNGR
EE AR A7 (FIFESingXpress Land Limited) &) 2 8
AR AR 2

DECEMBER +=H

o Outlined shift towards new REITs ownership and
management corporate strategy in a Corporate and
Business Update; Plans to raise additional capital
through a secondary listing on U.K. AIM market

s HELERREBEMEANSCEXERMEEHERE
EREARERCERBEF M FHEIBEBEER
BEEEMBENETMEEEINES

APRIL 19 5

. The Company’s 99.0%-owned U.S. subsidiary,
American Housing REIT Inc., distributes its maiden
quarterly dividend and achieves of 8.4% annualised
yield

o RRAEHEH9.0%4E 5 Y 3 Bl Mt & A 5] American
Housing REIT Inc.(EMEHEIREEFE) HIRE &KX
ZERS - FREEE8.4%

JULY £ A

o HFE announces that Inter-American Development,
LLC, has entered into an agreement with Asia-based
property developer to collaborate on land sub-division
project in Houston, Texas, U.S.A.

e [EfEE 1 Inter-American Development, LLC (3
BR R AR EATMN AR Y ERRET L
o U RBEITEBREEAMNEIES T A5 EE
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We hope to set new benchmark in the REITs
market by offering higher yields - which can
only be achieved/by higher REIT management
efficiency and better financial management.
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Mr. Chan Heng Fai
Managing Chairman of Heng Fai Enterprises Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE

B

Dear Shareholders,

The year ended 31 March 2014 (“FY2014”), was a watershed year
for the company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as we began our
transformation from an investment holding company to an owner
and manager of REITs. Having disposed of our main property
development company in Singapore in the preceding year (“FY2013”),
we outlined our new REIT strategy in December 2013 under a new
corporate name and identity.

This new game-changer strategy will allow us to capitalise on the
tremendous potential of REITs globally, beginning with the housing
and medical sectors in the United States (the “U.S.”). We have since
worked aggressively in the U.S. - through corporate actions and
on the ground — to set this REIT strategy in motion. | am pleased to
report that by the time you read this message, both our initial REITs
would have begun distributing dividends in excess of 8% (on an
annualised basis).

| am confident that this strategic shift will translate into new recurring
revenue streams and be accretive to our profitability starting in
financial year ending 31 March 2015 (“FY2015”), enhancing value
for shareholders such as you. We hope to set new benchmarks
in the REITs market by offering higher yields — which can only be
achieved by higher REIT management efficiency and better financial
management.

But first, allow me to present the financials of the Group for the year
under review.

FY2014 BUSINESS REVIEW

We recorded a net loss of HK$43.5 million compared to a net profit
of HK$33.4 million a year ago, and a 37.2% decline in turnover to
HK$35.6 million from HK$56.6 million in FY2013, mostly resulting
from the pre-REIT legacy businesses.

We disposed of a hotel in Japan in FY2013 which lowered revenue
for the hotels and hospitality segment during FY2014, a period
marked by the lower gain recorded in FY2013 from the sale of
subsidiaries and associated businesses.

The securities business segment recorded an operating loss of
HK$12.2 million compared to a profit of HK$16.0 million in FY2013,
and we also recorded fair value gains, revenue and profit from the
trading segment.

Some of the losses in the year under review included expenses
incurred in executing the new REIT strategy — the acquisition of an
initial 46 Single-Family Rentals (“SFRs”) valued at US$6.1 million for
a U.S. REIT subsidiary and other administrative and professional fees
such as retaining legal counsel, staffing and setting up new offices in
the U.S.
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THE RATIONALE FOR, AND EXECUTION OF,
THE NEW REIT STRATEGY

We took the first step in executing the new strategy when we
announced a change in our corporate identity in October 2013. On 6
December 2013, we unveiled our plans to seed and directly manage
REITs in the U.S.

Our dramatic shift reflects our view that Asian property cycles have
started to peak amidst government-led cooling measures. However,
as the U.S. economy recovers with job growth, the real estate
market there offers opportunities which we can tap into, leveraging
on our domain expertise, network and experience in the U.S. and
global capital markets. But instead of buying undervalued distressed
properties, we have been highly selective in choosing residential and
medical assets which already have secured tenancies.

Hence, the first major prong of our strategy is to seed and own
listed REITs which can distribute annualised yields in excess of 8%
from day one, and to grow them rapidly through placement of the
REITs’” shares to acquire more yield-accretive assets. To grow this
portfolio, we intend to reduce HFE’s own holdings in the REITs and
also borrow very judiciously. The second prong is to derive fees from
managing these REITs via a U.S. subsidiary which will contribute
recurring revenue.

How have we executed this strategy so far? In rapid succession, we
have carried out the following key corporate actions to date:

REIT #1 - AMERICAN HOUSING REIT (“AHR”)

During the year, we acquired 95% (subsequently increased to 99%)
of American Housing REIT Inc. (“AHR”) listed on the U.S. Over-The-
Counter Bulletin Board (“OTCBB”). To date, AHR has bought over
100 SFRs, in Texas, Florida, Georgia and North Carolina with secured
tenancies, valued at approximately US$12.0 million. The purchases
have so far been funded by HFE’s internal cash resources.

On 24 April 2014, AHR distributed its maiden quarterly dividend
of 8.39% on an annualised basis. Based on recent results, it is
expected that the second dividend payment to be made in July 2014
will achieve at least 8% annualised yield. We will seek bank financing
of 50%, or greater loan-to-value ratio, as we work towards our target
of increasing the AHR portfolio to 1,000 SFRs by FY2015.
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REIT #2 - GLOBAL MEDICAL REIT (“GMR”)

During the year we acquired 94% equity interest in OTCBB-listed
Global Medical REIT Inc. (“GMR”), which had on 6 June 2014
acquired a medical facility in Omaha, Nebraska, for US$22.7 million.
GMR will eventually own a portfolio of specialised high-acuity medical
facilities with long-duration triple net leases. In July 2014, GMR is
expected to distribute its first monthly dividend in excess of 8%
annualised yield. GMR hopes to grow its net asset value to US$400
million by the end of FY2015.

REIT MANAGEMENT AND REAL ESTATE
DEVELOPMENT VIA U.S. SUBSIDIARY

A key factor in our ability to deliver higher-than-average yields is
our strong emphasis on REIT-management efficiency. HFE’'s 85%-
held U.S. subsidiary Inter-American Group Holdings Inc. (“IA Group”)
comprises a very experienced team on the ground with strengths in
selecting and acquiring assets which can deliver meaningful returns.
The first two REITs — and future REITs — are, and will be, directly
managed on a fee basis by IAM, whose fees are estimated between
1.5% to 2.0% of assets under management, varying by REIT and by
performance incentives. We expect to start earning management fees
in FY2015.

Apart from managing REITs, IA Group will also be involved in real
estate development — a business HFE is very familiar with —in the U.S.
IA Group has formed a real estate development arm, Inter-American
Development, LLC (“IAD”), whose competitive edge lies in its
management’s ability to source, evaluate and execute complex deals
in a short time frame. The team has already identified several projects
where it can carry out land sub-division or act as master developer of
anchor projects. IAD has recently entered into an agreement with an
Asia-based property developer to collaborate on a land sub-division
project, deriving fees from its role as development manager for a
136-acre parcel of land in Houston, Texas. IAD manages the project,
working in close coordination with its local partners.

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Thus far, HFE has seeded the initial two U.S. REITs via internal
cash resources. To accelerate the growth of these two REITs we
are already negotiating with U.S. banks for credit lines and have
appointed London-based Allenby Capital Limited as adviser and
broker for a proposed secondary listing of the Company’s shares on
the U.K. Alternative Investment Market (*AIM”).
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We will also work towards listing the first two U.S. REITs first on the
NASDAQ main market targeting the end of FY2015, and possibly
later on other international exchanges. HFE itself may also pursue
dual or secondary listings on other international exchanges apart
from AIM.

While the first two REITs relate to residential property and medical
assets, it is our intention to seed and manage other REITs on a global
basis, working on an 8% annualised yield benchmark. These REITs
will be primarily listed in the U.S. and will comprise of niche assets
in high-growth markets. The Group will update shareholders as and
when there are material developments.

Having laid the groundwork for our new REIT strategy in FY2014, we
are confident that our hard work and investment will start to bear fruit
by the end of FY2015. We expect to earn substantial fees in FY2015
as the REITs grow in size and achieve economies of scale. We will
also derive dividend income from our holdings in the two REITs.

MANAGEMENT AND BOARD CHANGES

The Group has made some new appointments to the Board and
the senior management team to guide the new business. We would
like to warmly welcome Dr. Lam, Lee G., who has over 30 years
of top-level experience in capital markets, banking, mergers and
acquisitions, as our Vice Chairman and Non-Executive Director;
Mr. Chan Tung Moe, our Group Chief Operating Officer, who has
extensive experience in consumer finance, hospitality, investment and
property and Mr. Jeffrey Busch, Chief Executive Officer of IA Group
who has more than two decades of real estate experience and had
held senior positions representing the U.S. government.

We would also like to welcome newly-appointed Independent
Non-Executive Director Mr. Tan Choon Seng, who has extensive
experience in the information technology, engineering and oil
services, automobile distribution and property development
industries; and our Non-Executive Director, Mr. Teh Wing Kwan), who
specialises in corporate finance, corporate restructuring and mergers
and acquisitions; and is also currently the Group Chief Executive
Officer of SGX Mainboard-listed Sapphire Corporation Limited.
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OUTLOOK

In view of the favourable U.S. real estate market cycle and the
strategies and highly experienced management team we have in
place, we are confident we can seize opportunities in REITs and
real estate development and return to achieve a better financial
performance for FY2015 than that of FY2014, especially as we start
to earn REIT management fees.

We will continue to be prudent in our investment choices while
aggressively seeking to enhance returns by exploiting new
opportunities and growing the existing business.
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On behalf of the board of directors of the Company, | would like to
extend my sincere appreciation to you, our shareholders, for your
trust and support. | would also like to thank the management team
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Managing Chairman
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REVIEW OF THE GROUP’S PERFORMANCE
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (“FY2014”), the bulk of the
Group’s revenue and losses were attributable to the legacy business
prior to the launch of the REIT strategy (please refer to page 3 of the
annual report) which included its investment holding activities under
five business segments — Property Development, Hotels Operations,
Securities Trading, Property Investments and Trading and Other
Investments.

The Group recorded a 37.2% decline in revenue to approximately
HK$35.6 million compared to the preceding year (‘FY2013”) and
incurred a net loss of HK$34.5 million compared to a profit of
HK$33.4 million in FY2013.

Factors contributing to the lower revenue and loss included the
disposal of Hotel Plaza Miyazaki in Japan, a strategic move by the
Company, which lowered revenue for the hotels and hospitality
segment by 73.8% to HK$7.1 million compared to HK$27.0 million in
FY2013, and decrease in the gain from the sale of subsidiaries and
associated businesses.

The securities trading segment recorded a loss of HK$12.2 million
compared to a profit of HK$16.0 million in FY2013, while the other
investments segment shared a loss of HK$0.2 million for 25.2%-held
Canada TSX Venture Exchange-listed RSI International Systems Inc.
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We are embarking on an exciting transformation to
own and manage REITs, as well as to tap into selective
real estate development opportunities at a recovery
phase of the U.S. market cycle. This game-changer
strategy is being built upon the management’s deep
knowledge and experience in real estate and capital
markets, as well as track record of successful
partnerships and collaborations. We are confident to
enhance sustainable long-term shareholder value as
we set this strategy in motion.
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Although the abovementioned segments reported losses, the
Property Investments and Trading division reported a revenue of
approximately HK$19.0 million (FY2013: HK$21.8 million) and an
operating profit of approximately HK$17.8 million (FY2013: HK$46.4
million).

The Group incurred costs in executing its new REIT ownership
and management strategy, including the acquisition of an initial 46
Single-Family Rentals (“SFRs”) in Texas valued at US$6.1 million
(approximately HK$47.4 million) for a U.S. REIT subsidiary, American
Housing REIT (“AHR”), and other administrative and professional fees
related to the REITs.

Overall, the basic loss per share for FY2014 was 1.21 Hong Kong
cents as compared to the basic earnings per share of 0.99 Hong
Kong cent in the previous year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group reported total equity of
approximately HK$821.8 million (31 March 2013: HK$899.7 million)
with bank balance, cash and pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$157.0 million (FY2013: HK$360.1 million). The reduction in
borrowings to HK$201.8 million (FY2013: HK$257.5 million) was
mainly due to the early redemption of non-convertible bonds of the
Company during the year.

The Group recorded a current ratio of 1.9 (FY2013: 2.3) and a
gearing ratio' of 4.1% (FY2013: net cash position of HK$102.6
million), while net asset value per share decreased to 22.9 Hong
Kong cents as at 31 March 2014 from 25.6 Hong Kong cents as at
31 March 2013.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

In line with the Group’s new strategy, the Group acquired a
95%-stake in U.S-domiciled OnTarget 360 Group Inc. which later
merged with AHR. The Group subsequently increased its stake to
99%. The Group also acquired a 94%-stake in Scoop Media Inc.
which merged with Global Medical REIT Inc. (“GMR”). Both AHR and
GMR are listed on Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board in the United
States.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had made commitments for
acquisition of investment properties of HK$20.2 million (31 March
2013: nil).

' Gearing ratio is defined as the ratio of total borrowings less bank
balances and cash and pledged bank deposits to total assets
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has provided its proportionate guarantee of S$2.1
million to a bank in connection with banking facilities granted to
Corporate Residence Pte Ltd, a company which is 90%-owned by
SingHaiyi and 10% by the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are denominated
substantially in Singapore dollars, Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars
and Japanese Yen. Due to the currency peg of the Hong Kong dollar
to the U.S. dollar, the exchange rate between these two currencies
has remained stable and thus the Group has not implemented any
hedging or other alternatives.

Going forward, the Group may formulate a foreign currency hedging
policy to provide a reasonable margin of safety for its exposure to
Japanese Yen and Singapore dollars through transactions, assets
and liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart from
salary payments, there are other staff benefits including mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance and performance related
bonus. Share options may also be granted to eligible employees
of the Group. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
approximately 55 employees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s borrowings of approximately
HK$201.3 million were mainly secured by its investment properties,
land and buildings, prepaid lease payments, motor vehicle and bank
deposits with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$667.2
million.

DEVELOPMENTS SUBSEQUENT TO
FINANCIAL YEAR END & GROUP OUTLOOK

In line with the REIT strategy announced on 6 December 2013,
AHR announced on 24 April 2014 that it has distributed its maiden
quarterly dividend of 8.39% on an annualised basis. Based on recent
results, it is expected that the second dividend payment to be made
in July 2014 will achieve at least 8% annualised yield.
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Having completed the acquisition of its first medical facility in
Omaha, Nebraska, which is immediately revenue generating, GMR
is expected to distribute its monthly dividend for the first time in July
2014 and exceed the target annualised dividend yield of 8%.

AHR Outlook — Having acquired the first 100 Single-Family Rentals
(“SFRs”), AHR intends to seek bank financing on a 50% or greater
loan-to-value basis and hope to increase its portfolio to 1,000 SFRs
worth approximately US$100 million to US$130 million by the end of
the next financial year (“FY2015”).

GMR Outlook - GMR hopes to grow its net asset value to US$400
million by the end of FY2015, targeting opportunistic situations by
working with developers looking to exit property exposure, and with
healthcare operators who wish to focus on their core healthcare
business and are seeking to free up capital by divesting their real
estate.

The assets under management for both AHR and GMR were funded
through the Group’s internal resources. Both REITs are working
towards an eventual migration to the NASDAQ main market, which
should materialise by the end of FY2015 barring any unforeseen
circumstances.

IA Group Outlook — As the current two REITs expand in size,
and additional REITs are formed, IAM’s management fees will
increase in tandem. IA Group is also working to identify and secure
significant property development opportunities in the U.S., which
will be managed by its real estate development arm, Inter-American
Development, LLC (“IAD”). IAD, led by a highly experienced team, is
identifying projects where it can either provide project management
services, carry out land sub-divisions for subsequent sale to builders,
or act as the master developer of larger, longer-term “anchor”
projects (which may be mixed-use). IAD has recently entered an
agreement with an Asia-based property developer to collaborate on a
land sub-division project where it will take on the role of development
manager and thereby derive development fees. The Group believes
that it will be able to tap such opportunities to enhance shareholder
value, based on the stage of the current U.S. property market cycle,
and management’s depth of experience in property development.

Having appointed Allenby Capital Limited as its nominated advisor
and broker for a secondary listing on the U.K. AIM market, the Group
has begun preparations for the offering which we hope will accelerate
its growth plans and attract a new pool of European investors.

Barring unforeseen circumstances, the Group is reasonably confident
that with the growth of the REITs and management fees in line with
its Corporate and Business Update, its financial performance for
FY2015 will be better than that of FY2014.
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CHAN HENG FAI
Managing Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Chan Heng Fai, age 69, is the Managing Chairman of the
Company. He has been a Director since September 1992.

Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall business development of
the Group. He is an expert at banking and finance, with years of
experience in the industry. Since taking over as Managing Chairman,
he has grown the net asset value of the Group from HK$39.2 million
in 1992 to approximately HK$826.8 million in 2014. Mr. Chan is
currently also the chairman of Toronto Stock Exchange-listed RSI
International Systems Inc, a leading provider of cloud-based Property
Management System software and related marketing and online
support products and services to the global hospitality industry.

Mr. Chan was the Deputy Managing Director of a recently disposed
Singapore Exchange (“SGX”) Catalist-listed subsidiary, SingHaiyi
Group Ltd. Under Mr. Chan’s leadership, SingHaiyi transformed from
a failed store-fixture business provider with a net asset value of less
than S$10 million into a property development company with a net
asset value of over S$150 million before Mr. Chan ceded controlling
interest in late 2012.

Mr. Chan has restructured over 35 companies in different industries
and countries in the past 40 years. He was formerly the:

(i) Executive Chairman of HKSE-listed China Gas Holdings Limited
(“China Gas”), which under Mr. Chan’s guidance and direction,
was restructured from a failing fashion retail company to become
one of the largest participants in the investment, operation and
management of city gas pipeline infrastructure, distribution of
natural gas and LPG to residential, commercial and industrial
users in China. The market capitalisation of China Gas has
increased significantly from US$32 million to the present market
capitalisation of US$10 billion;

(i) Director of Global Med Technologies, Inc., a NASDAQ-listed
medical company engaged in the development and marketing of
new information management software products for blood banks,
hospitals, centralised transfusion centres and other healthcare
related facilities;
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(i) Director of Skywest Ltd, an airline company listed on the
Australian Stock Exchange; and

(iv) Chairman and Director of American Pacific Bank, a commercial
bank listed on NASDAQ from 1988 to 2005. Mr. Chan had
acquired American Pacific Bank, a U.S. full-service commercial
bank in 1987. Under his guidance it became a high asset-quality
bank, with zero loan losses for over five consecutive years before
it was ultimately acquired and merged into Riverview Bancorp
Inc. Prior to its acquisition, it was ranked #13 by the Seattle
Times’ “Annual Northwest’s Top 100 Public Companies” and
#6 in Oregon state, ahead of names such as Nike, Microsoft,
Costco, AT&T Wireless and Amazon.com.

On 1 July 20183, Australian Stock Exchange-listed biotechnology
company, Holista Colltech Ltd, announced it had appointed Mr. Chan
as its Non-Executive Director, a role which will allow the company to
tap into his vast business and corporate experience. The appointment
follows the subscription by Hengfai Business Development Pte Ltd, a
Singapore-based company controlled by Mr. Chan, with A$1.5 million
worth of convertible bonds in Holista.

In April 2014, Mr. Chan was redesignated to be the Chief Executive
Officer of SGX-listed CCM Group Limited (pending name change to
Singapore eDevelopment Limited) (“CCM”), where he had played
an integral role in CCM’s capital restructuring. Within three months,
CCM’s market capitalisation increased from approximately S$8.3
million to S$15.2 million.

Mr. Chan is the spouse of Ms. Chan Yoke Keow and the father of Mr.
Chan Tong Wan, Mr. Chan Tung Moe, and Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-
ann.

More information about Mr. Chan’s eventful corporate journey can be
tracked on www.fai185.com.
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LAM, LEE G.
Vice Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Dr. Lam, Lee G., age 55, is the Vice Chairman and Non-Executive
Director of the Company. He was appointed to the Board in July
2014.

Dr. Lam has over 30 years experience in multinational general
management, management consulting, corporate governance,
direct investment, investment banking and fund management across
the telecommunications, media and technology (TMT), consumer/
healthcare, infrastructure/real estates, resources/energy and financial
services sectors, and he also serves on the board of a number of
publicly-listed companies and investment funds in the Asia Pacific
region.

Having served as a part-time Member of the Central Policy Unit of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two
terms and the Legal Aid Services Council, Dr. Lam is a Member of
the Jilin Province Committee (and formerly a Specially-invited Member
of the Zhejiang Province Committee) of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and Vice Chairman of Liaoning Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association.

He is a Member of the New Business Committee of the Financial
Services Development Council (FSDC); the Derivatives Market
Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(HKEX); the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers; the World Presidents’
Organization; the Chief Executives Organization; and the General
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. He is also a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute
Resolution (CEDR), a Board Member of the Australian Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau, a founding Board Member
and the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong-Vietnam Chamber of
Commerce, a founding Member of the Hong Kong-Korea Business
Council, a Vice President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation,
and Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology Association of
Hong Kong.

Dr. Lam holds a Bachelor of Science in Sciences and Mathematics,
a Master of Science in Systems Science, and a Master of Business
Administration Degree, all from the University of Ottawa in Canada,
a Post-graduate Diploma in Public Administration from Carleton
University in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in English and
Hong Kong Law and a Bachelor of Law (Hons) from Manchester
Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom, a PCLL in law from
the City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in Professional
Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong SCS, a LLM
in law from the University of Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom,
a Master of Public Administration and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from the University of Hong Kong.
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With a clear roadmap to growth, backed by

a strong management with deep focus and
experience, we will work aggressively and
accelerate efforts to grow HFE exponentially into
a sizeable and established global REIT manager
within the next few years.”
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Dr. Lam, Lee G.
Vice Chairman and Non-Executive Director
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CHAN TONG WAN (TONY)
Managing Director & Executive Director

Mr. Chan Tong Wan, Tony, age 39, is the Managing Director of the
Company.

Mr. Tony Chan joined the Company as a Non-Executive Director in
January 2000, re-designated as an Executive Director in September
2002 and was appointed as Managing Director in August 2003. As
the Managing Director of the Company, Mr. Tony Chan oversees the
Group’s principal strategic investments activities in both publicly-
listed and private companies.

Mr. Tony Chan has over 15 years of experience in investment
banking-related vocations and specialised in Asian equity financial
products for two international investment banking firms, originating
and dealing in listed and over-the-counter structured products. He
has also acted as a securities’ principal in a U.S. NASD-licensed
brokerage house. Mr. Tony Chan was an Executive Director of
SingHaiyi Group Ltd.

Mr. Tony Chan graduated from the University of British Columbia
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree (honours) with a Finance
specialisation. Mr. Tony Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, and the brother of Mr. Chan Tung Moe and Ms.
Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann.

CHAN YOKE KEOW
Executive Director

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, age 65, has been a director since January
1992. She is responsible for the general administration and financial
planning of the Group.

Ms. Chan has over 25 years of experience in financial management
and administration. She is a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute, and was previously a Non-Executive
Director of SingHaiyi Group Ltd from September 2007 to January
2018.

Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai, the mother of Mr.

Chan Tong Wan, Mr. Chan Tung Moe, and Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-
ann.
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FONG KWOK JEN

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, age 65, is a Non-Executive Director. He was
appointed to the Board in 1995.

Mr. Fong is a director of a Singapore-based law firm, Equity Law
LLC. In 1976 to 1977, he was awarded the Colombo Plan Award
when attending the Government Legal Officer’'s Course in the United
Kingdom. In 1986, he attended the NITA Advocacy Programme
at Harvard Law School. He served as Chairman of the Disciplinary
Committee of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited from
1995 to 2007 and was a member of the Securities Industry Council
between 1992 and 2003. He was also a Council Member of the Law
Society of Singapore from 1990 to 1992. He is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of CapitaMall Trust Management Limited and was
a director of WBL Corporation Ltd and Capitacommercial Trust, the
shares of which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fong graduated from the National University of Singapore with a
Bachelor of Law degree with honours.

TEH WING KWAN
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Teh Wing Kwan, age 42, is a Non-Executive Director. He was
appointed to the Board in October 2013.

Mr. Teh specialises in corporate finance, corporate restructuring
and merger & acquisition. He is currently the Group Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of Sapphire Corporation Limited
(listed on the Mainboard of Singapore Exchange), the Non-Executive
Director of Asian American Medical Group Limited (listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange) and CCM Group Limited (listed on
the Catalist of Singapore Exchange). Mr. Teh was appointed advisor
to the Board of Koda Ltd (listed on the Mainboard of Singapore
Exchange) and also previously appointed Audit Committee Chairman
and Independent Director of other public companies listed on
Singapore Exchange such as Creative Master Bermuda Limited and
China Titanium Limited.

Mr. Teh is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (United Kingdom), Chartered Accountant of Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountant, Chartered Accountant of Malaysian
Institute of Accountants and Full Member of Singapore Institute of
Directors.
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TAN CHOON SENG
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tan Choon Seng, age 61, was appointed Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in August 2013.

Mr. Tan has expertise and competencies in global operations with
special focus in South-East Asia, Australia, and the China market
and a good understanding of East and West cultures and business
practices with unique strengths in multi-business management
and financial re-engineering. Mr. Tan has extensive experience,
knowledge and connection in industries including information
technology, engineering & oil services, automobile distribution and
property development.

Mr. Tan has served as the Group Chief Executive Officer of SGX-
listed WBL Corporation Limited, Vice President (Customer Solutions
Group) and Managing Director of Hewlett-Packard South East Asia,
and director of NASDAQ-listed Multi-Fineline Electronix, Inc.

Mr. Tan graduated from the National University of Singapore in 1976.
He is a non-practicing fellow member of the Chartered Accountant
of Singapore, and member of the governing council of the Singapore
Institute of Management.

WONG TAT KEUNG
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wong Tat Keung, age 43, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 2009.

Mr. Wong has more than 15 years of audit, taxation, accounting and
business advisory experience. From 2006 to February 2010, he was
the proprietor of Aston Wong & Co., Certified Public Accountants
practising in Hong Kong. Since January 2010, he has been a director
of his own corporate practice: Aston Wong CPA Limited. He was
also previously an Independent Non-Executive director of SingHaliyi
Group Ltd.

Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
(Financial Services) from the University of Greenwich.
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WONG DOR LUK (PETER)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter, age 72, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in September 1998.

Mr. Wong has over 32 years of experience in the fashion industry
including distribution, sourcing, overseeing manufacturing and
exporting to international clients in France, the United Kingdom,
Germany and the United States.

CHAN KING FAI
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan King Fai, age 43, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in August 2011. He is currently a partner of Lau
Chan and Company, Certified Public Accountants practising in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Chan holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
and a Master’s Degree in Accountancy. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and associate
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and is a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2014
“E-NEFR

B2 3
BYERITES

EEgiE  BEL+ T
TE=E -

R=NANFNLABZERBIIEHR

ITAEEREAEFA=-+_FER  BESH KB 2ERE
% URHEOEER - KE - REREBEZBERERS -

PR
BIYFWITES

BRRESRE BEN+=5 R-T——FN\ABZEAB Y
TEE - RELR/BBAESAMEHRRERES M EBHRZ
BEA -

REELHEEIMERBLTEM LG EETEM - RRAKBAKIFA
REAMAGERGERFTRSNAE  FTAEVBES  BAER
AWELE  KEFHAWERTBRAEASEERATEEIMBK
B

39



Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

EREER

CHAN TUNG MOE
Group Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Chan Tung Moe, age 35, was appointed as Group Chief
Operating Officer on 1 April 2014 responsible for the Group’s global
business operations.

Mr. Moe Chan joined the Company in 2001 and has held various
positions within the Group — he was previously Chief Investment
Officer of the Company, responsible for the overall management of
the Investment Division of the Group, and an Executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. Moe Chan is also currently a director of the Toronto Stock
Exchange-listed RSI International Systems Inc. He was previously
the Executive Director and Chief of Project Development of SingHaiyi
Group Ltd, overseeing all of its property development project.

Mr. Moe Chan has a diverse background and has experience in fields
such as technology, consumer finance, hospitality, investment and
property. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration with
honours from the University of Western Ontario, a Master’s Degree
in Electro-Mechanical Engineering with honours and a Bachelor’s
Degree in Applied Science with honours from the University of British
Columbia.

Mr. Moe Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke
Keow and the brother of Mr. Chan Tong Wan and Ms. Chan Sook
Jin, Mary-ann.

WONG SHUI YEUNG (FRANKIE)
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, age 43, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group responsible for the financial and management reporting of the
Group.

Mr. Wong has 20 years of experience in public accounting, taxation,
and financial consultancy and management in Hong Kong. He had
worked with an international accounting firm prior to joining the
Group in 2001. He was previously also the Chief Financial Officer of
SingHaiyi Group Ltd.

Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration
and is currently practicing as a certified public accountant in Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute.
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CHAN SOOK JIN (MARY-ANN)
Group Investor Relations Director

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann, age 43, is the Group Investor
Relations Director in charge of the Group’s Investor Relations
activities. She also assists with the Group’s securities operations.

Ms. Chan was previously an Executive Director (from September
1997 to October 2009) and served as an Executive Director of China
Gas Holdings Limited from 1997 to 2002, during its transition from
a fashion retail company to China Gas as it is known today. She
has prior experience with HSBC where she was involved in its sales
and marketing functions, as well as taking on the role of relationship
management for its global securities office. Before relocating to Hong
Kong, Ms. Chan worked in North America as an investment and
securities advisor, as well as a banker for various financial institutions.

Ms. Chan graduated from the University of British Columbia
with a Bachelor of Arts degree, and has completed a Registered
Representatives Examination (Series 7) of the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority, United States of America.

Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke
Keow, and the sister of Mr. Chan Tong Wan and Mr. Chan Tung
Moe.

YUEN PING MAN (DICKMAN)
Chief Operating Officer (Hong Kong)

Mr. Yuen Ping Man, age 50, is the joint Company Secretary and the
Chief Operating Officer (Hong Kong) responsible for the Group’s
corporate secretarial functions and business operations.

Mr. Yuen has over 20 years of managerial experience in corporate
secretarial, business development, human resources and general
administration. Mr. Yuen was previously the Chief Operating Officer
of Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress Finance”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company responsible for compliance, human
resource, operations, sales and marketing, customer service and
general administration of Xpress Finance. Prior to joining Xpress
Finance in June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked in two listed groups and a
financial institution.
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Mr. Yuen is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (U.K.) and of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, a senior member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Marketing, a professional member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Human Resource Management, a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute, the Chartered Institute of
Marketing (U.K.), the Hong Kong Institute of Purchasing & Supply
and Society of Registered Financial Planners.

Mr. Yuen holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and is
also a certified risk planner and a licensed estate agent.

LUI WAI LEUNG (ALAN)
Financial Controller

Mr. Lui Wai Leung, Alan, age 43, joined the Group in 1997 and is
currently its financial controller.

His duties include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
and focusing on its financing operations, securities and treasury
investment.

Mr. Lui is a member of CPA Australia and he also holds a Bachelor’s

Degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Baptist
University.
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JEFFREY BUSCH
Chief Executive Officer — 1A Group

Mr. Jeffrey Busch, age 56, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group’s 85%-owned U.S. subsidiary, Inter-American Group Holdings
Inc. (“IA Group”), and oversees all of IA Group’s REIT management
and real estate activities in the United States.

Mr. Busch has more than two decades of real estate experience as
a developer, manager and investor, and has held senior positions
representing the U.S. government - he was appointed by two U.S.
Presidents to serve in senior administration capacities, including
Assistant Secretary of the U.S. Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD”) agency, and as U.S. Ambassador to the United Nations in
Geneva, Switzerland. At HUD, Mr. Busch oversaw an annual budget
of over US$3 billion used to develop housing and commercial real
estate.

As a principal investor, Mr. Busch has developed properties valued
at hundreds of millions of U.S. dollars in various real estate asset
classes, including large-scale residential, commercial, hospitality, and
retail projects.

Mr. Busch is a graduate of the New York University Stern School
of Business, holds a Master of Public Administration from New
York University, and also a Doctor of Jurist Prudence from Emory
University.

Inter-American Group is a pioneer of managing
REITs in an innovative manner which is lean and
efficient while maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance and having a clear
roadmap to grow shareholder returns.
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ERIC ILLOWSKY
Chief Operating Officer — IA Group

Mr. Eric llowsky, age 56, is the Chief Operating Officer of IA Group.
Together with Mr. Busch, he established, and oversees IA Group’s,
AHR’s and GMR’s daily operations in the United States, and plays a
critical role in growing IA Group’s business interests.

Mr. lllowsky has over 25 years of asset acquisition, business
development, and start-up experience at large corporations. Working
on both the “buy” and “sell” sides of large commercial transactions
and joint ventures, Mr. lllowsky has built successful business units at
The Walt Disney Company, Cox Communications, USA Networks and
Hollywood Media Corp. Mr. lllowsky has many years of experience
in the real estate market as a principal investor, having sourced and
evaluated residential and commercial assets focusing on risk analysis
and financial partnerships.

Prior to his appointment at IA Group, Mr. lllowsky was Chief
Operating Officer at LitGreen MK2 Inc., a cutting-edge LED
technology company serving municipalities. Mr. lllowsky holds
business degrees from the University of Pennsylvania’s Wharton
School and UCLA.

DAVID A. YOUNG
Chief Executive Officer - GMR

Mr. David Young, age 66, is the Chief Executive Officer of HFE’s
94%-owned U.S. REIT subsidiary, Global Medical REIT Inc. He
spearheads GMR’s business strategies and manages its healthcare-
related asset portfolio.

Mr. Young has over 25 years of experience in the healthcare real
estate industry. He was the founder and CEO of Global Medical
Realty trust, a medical facility developer and owner focused on
sponsored development and equity lease financing of market-leading
healthcare real estate. Mr. Young was also Senior Vice President
of Business Development for General Electric Capital from 2004 to
2008, spearheading the co-launch and growth of GE’s first acute
medical real estate financing initiative.

Mr. Young has an excellent track record in developing successful
New York Stock Exchange-listed healthcare REITs including
Windrose Medical Properties, the core assets of which Mr. Young
grew from start-up to over US$500 million. He also grew the portfolio
of Healthcare Property Investors Inc. from US$300 million to over
US$3.5 billion, delivering an internal rate of return of 23% per annum
over his ten year tenure.

Mr. Young graduated from the University of lowa with a Bachelor
of Science in Microbiology, and holds a Masters in Business
Administration from Suffolk University’s Sawyer School of
Management.
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CHARLES W.S. MACKENZIE
Chief Development Officer — IAD

Mr. Charles MacKenzie, age 43, is Chief Development Officer of 1A
Group’s real estate development arm, Inter-American Development,
LLC. He leads a highly-experienced team in sourcing, evaluating
and executing complex transactions relating to IAD’s real estate
development and investment activities.

Mr. MacKenzie has almost two decades of real estate experience
initiating and managing residential, office/flex, retail, industrial,
land and redevelopment projects. He specialises in site selection,
contract negotiations, marketing and feasibility analyses, building
design, construction, management oversight and investor relations.
Mr. MacKenzie’s partners include an impressive list of property
owners, developers, general contractors, and large tenants, who He
has helped to optimize best use and rates of return for their projects.
Mr. MacKenzie has developed over 650,000 square feet of office and
retail projects from the ground up.

Mr. MacKenzie has closed more than 42 real estate development
partnerships and is a limited partner in over two million square feet of
office, retail and flex projects. He received a Bachelor of Arts and a
graduate degree from St. Lawrence University, where he served on
the Board of Trustees from 2003-2007.
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DON MCCLURE
Chief Financial Officer — IA Group

Mr. Don McClure, age 46, is the Chief Financial Officer of IA
Group, and is responsible for IA Group’s financial planning and
risk-management in the United States.

Mr. McClure is a real estate business professional, leader, trainer,
advisor and entrepreneur. His work experience covers many
functional areas of finance and accounting, including policy and
procedure development, compliance, internal controls, and
acquisition due diligence. His core real estate business experience
covers residential, office, retail, medical office and industrial asset
classes, as well as ground-up development projects. Mr. McClure is
also well-versed in housing and urban development, tax credit, bond
deals, condominium and home owner’s association issues, and has
extensive experience in operational business development creating
policy and procedures specific to REIT compliance to prevent fraud
and material errors.

Prior to his appointment in IA Group, Mr. McClure served as the
Accounting Manager of Washington Real Estate Investment Trust
(NYSE/WRE), the oldest REIT in the country, with an established
track record of consecutive dividend distributions. He also served
as the Chief Financial Officer/Controller of Quantum Real Estate
Management, an organization of over 140 employees. Mr. McClure
brings experience working with the “Big Four” accounting firms, along
with many local firms, having been engaged in over 300 client-side
quarterly, interim and year-end audits.

Mr. McClure holds a Bachelor of Science in Finance from North
Carolina A&T State University, and a Masters of Business
Administration from Keller School of Management. He is currently
pursuing his doctorate in International Finance at Walden University.
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CONN FLANIGAN
In-House Counsel — IA Group

Mr. Conn Flanigan, age 46, is the In-house Counsel of IA Group.
He first joined the Heng Fai Enterprise in 2000, serving as General
Counsel and Secretary with several of its U.S. subsidiaries.

Mr. Flanigan provides advisory services on all corporate and
securities matters, including corporate finance and structure, debt
and equity offerings, and securities compliance. He also negotiates,
drafts, and oversees the companies’ transactions.

Prior to his appointment in HFE, Mr. Flanigan held senior positions
and provided legal advice in corporate finance, corporate acquisitions,
securities law, contracts, intellectual property and employment law to
numerous companies in the U.S. such as MediaOne Group, Inc., US
WEST, Inc., and Tele-Communications, Inc.

Mr. Flanigan received a B.A. in International Relations from the
University of San Diego in 1990 and a Juris Doctor Degree from the
University of Denver Sturm College of Law in 1996.
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The directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out
in Notes 20 and 21 respectively to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 75.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Notes 17 and 19 to the financial
statements, respectively.

PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES

Details of movements in the property under development for
sales of the Group during the year are set out in Note 27 to the
financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 31 March 2014
are set out on page 255.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 39 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves for the year ended 31
March 2014 of the Company are set out in Note 41 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014 were:

Executive directors:
Chan Heng Fai
Chan Tong Wan
Chan Yoke Keow

Non-executive directors:
Fong Kwok Jen
Teh Wing Kwan (appointed on 3 October 2013)

Independent non-executive directors:

Chan King Fai

Tan Choon Seng (appointed on 15 August 2013)
Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Wong Tat Keung

Alternate director:
Wooldridge Mark Dean (alternate to Fong Kwok Jen)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Dr. Lam, Lee G. (who was appointed
on 19 July 2014), Mr. Tan Choon Seng and Mr. Teh Wing
Kwan retire by rotation and, being eligible, to offer themselves
for re-election. Mr. Fong Kwok Jen and Mr. Wong Dor Luk,
Peter will hold office until the 2014 annual general meeting
(“2014 AGM”), and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. The term of office of each non-executive director
and independent non-executive director is the period up to
his retirement by rotation and each one of them can be re-
appointed in accordance with the above articles.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or any
interest or short positions which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), or any
interests or short positions which have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of the Company

Name of director

EEpnE BRFEESD
Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner
pRiENE BEmEB A

Interest of controlled corporation (Notze 1)

FES 2 AR (M 1)
Interest of spouse (Note 2)
I iBres (fa2)
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Capacity in which interests are held

ESNEZ2ER

RIB-WF=A=+t—H0 BEERFQRFALIETHAERELR
A ([Bfn]) ~ ARRREEAERER(E& RESFRPE K
B[ REEED D EXVER) 2 HRRD RExT - HERE
EHRBAEEIEXVEE7TRFESDHBENGARE MBRMZ
‘AR (BREEREE S LB RIIZ S GO E (FARE
BEZRBEIAR) » FRBEF M EGRDIFEIS2ERABLNZ
fEOIFmt B Mz s MR R - SRR E R RIMT 8+ Prd £
RAEFETEFZHNRETR([RETA D AMNEARA R
B PRz e BORB AT

#E
KATEBER
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
Shares held  of the Company (%)
KGR DR E BT
FRERH#EE BRAB D (%)
39,924,300 1.11
1,489,155,806 41.33
812,397,117 22.55
2,341,477,223 64.99
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Name of director

Capacity in which interests are held

EEpnE EBERFEESH
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner
PR EIE BEnEAA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
Pzl z R (M 5E3)
Interest of spouse (Note 4)
Bt (fr5t4)
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner
EBE1E BmlEA A
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner
BRitiE BmlEA A
Wong Dor Luk, Peter Beneficial owner
FEH BmlEA A
Notes: iz -
1. These shares are owned by Heng Fai Master Holdings Limited, 1.
which are ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by
Mr. Chan Heng Fai as settler and Credit Suisse Trust Limited as
trustee.
2. Mr. Chan Heng Fai is the spouse of Ms. Chan Yoke Keow. He is 2.
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Ms. Chan under the
SFO.
3. These Shares/bonds are owned by Prime Star Group Co. Ltd., in 3.
which Ms. Chan Yoke Keow has 100% equity interests.
4. Ms. Chan Yoke Keow is the spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai. Ms. 4.

Chan is deemed to be interested in the Shares and the share options
held by Mr. Chan.
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
Shares held  of the Company (%)
KGR R R E BT
FEROEE REB D (%)
220,357,843 6.12
592,039,274 16.43
1,529,080,106 42.44
2,341,477,223 64.99
11,927,650 0.33
31,843,522 0.88
280,000 0.01
2,385,528,395 66.22

ZE D BREE ST A E R ER T A HCredit Suisse Trust Limited
ERZ AR 2 2S5t & ¥ A ZHeng Fai Master Holdings
Limited %75 ©

REBLEERREBL L 2EE - BIEFFRBEEHD - BIREER
PR LSt R A M o

ZERG,ESHEREBLZ T HEA 2 EAEZPrime Star Group Co.
Led. A ©

REBLLRREBELEEZEB - REALIREERRELAFRND K
BBRetE R A
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Options

Particulars of the Company's and subsidiary’s share option

BRE

schemes are set out in Note 40 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses details of the Company's share

options in issue during the year:

Name of director Date granted

ESfA RHAH

Category 1: Directors

£ ES

Chan Heng Fai 15 November 2004

PR “EIMF+-ATERA
22 May 2006
“2EERACTCH

Chan Tong Wan 15 November 2004

FRicE “EIMF+-ATERA
22 May 2006

“ETRERA-TCH

Wong Dor Luk, Peter 15 November 2004

5k “E2ENE+-A+EA

Total for directors

o)

Category 2: Employees

55 i8
15 November 2004
“ZTEE+-A+aR
22 May 2006

“ETRERA-TCH

Total for employees

(R

Total for all categories

e Rt
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Exercise Outstanding Exercise Lapsed Outstanding
price asat 1 April during during  as at 31 March
Exercisable period per Share 2013 the year the year 2014
R=%B-=f RoB-RE
A-H =B=1+-H
il BRITEE HARTE FRiTE EREX HARTE
HK$ HKS§
BT BT
20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 0.1583 123,885,800 - (123,885,800) -
“EENE-A-THE
“Z-=FRANA
22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013 0.1534 49,008,000 (36,800,000 (12,208,000) -
“EENFRACTIAZE
“T-Z£1A/R
20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 0.1583 15,313,500 (15,313,500) - -
“EENE-A-THE
“Z-=FRANA
22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013 0.1534 5,104,500 (5,104,500) - -
“EENFRACTIAZE
“T-Z£1A/R
20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 0.1583 3,062,700 - (3,062,700) -
“EImET-ACTAE
“T-Z£1A/R
196,374,500 (57,218,000 (139,156,500) -
20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 0.1583 11,231,572 (11,229,900) (1,672) -
“EEE-A-THE
—Z-=£RANR
22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013 0.1534 6,125,400 (6,125,400) - -
“EENFRACTCAE
“Z-=FRANR
17,356,972 (17,355,300) (1,672) -
23,731,472 (74,573,300)  (139,158,172) -
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The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 9 May
2003 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) had expired on 8 May
2013. As at the date of this report, all options under the Old
Share Option Scheme had been either exercised or lapsed and
no option was outstanding. On 28 August 2013, a new share
option scheme was adopted by the Company (the “New Share
Option Scheme”). As at 31 March 2014, no option has been
granted under the New Share Option Scheme.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors is disclosed on an individual
named basis in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the relevant information
of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group is disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has obtained written confirmations from all
independent non-executive Directors concerning their
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board is in the opinion that the existing independent
non executive Directors are independent based on the guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors has or is proposed
to have any service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, according to the register of interest in
Shares and underlying Shares and short positions kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is
known to or can be ascertained after reasonable enquiries by
the Directors, the persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company are as follows:

Nature of interest

REmtE

Name

=L
Heng Fai Master Holdings Limited

Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee (Note 1)
EREA(HIFEL)

Tenby Nominees Limited

Beneficial owner (Note 1)

BESBEAANMELD

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)

EENEH R

RRRSEEMHEA B L EFEEIEREFEAER
ARFRIFRETMERIDAERCERRL

FERR

R-ZZ—NF=A=+—8  REAQBEBRBRESFLPEKIE
3B36IEFEZ D MABRMNERE AR ELM - URIEESE
RIFT A AME A BB MEFTET - EEMEREARQFR’RG
KA DS %A LR Z AL (EERARAETETHRAER
AMEITR ¢

s AEES (AiF1)

Brock Nominees Limited

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)

s AEES (AiF1)

Beneficial owner
EnEBA
Beneficial owner

EaEEA

Prime Star Group Co., Ltd.
Ardon Maroon Asia Master Fund

Ardon Maroon Asia Dragon Feeder Fund
RS EEE R
Ardon Maroon Fund Management Limited
RESEEE R
Note:
1. These Shares are owned by Heng Fai Master Holdings Limited,
which are ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by

Mr. Chan Heng Fai as settlor and Credit Suisse Trust Limited as
trustee.
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Number of shares %
REE %
1,489,155,806 41.33
1,489,155,806 41.33
1,489,155,806 41.33
1,489,155,806 41.33
592,039,274 16.43
184,140,000 5.11
184,140,000 5.11
184,140,000 5.11
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no person other
than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in Shares and underlying Shares and debentures”
above, had registered an interest of 5% or more in the issued
share capital of the Company, and short positions in the shares
and underlying shares that was required to be recorded in the
register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers respectively accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total turnover and purchases.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of
the Group are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Non-convertible bonds of principal amount of
HK$105,633,400 issued by the Company (the “Bonds”) were
redeemed in whole on 30 April 2013 in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Bonds. In accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Bonds, the Company had redeemed
the Bonds currently listed on the Stock Exchange in whole at
a redemption price equal to 101% of principal amount of the
Bonds plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, up to the date
of redemption. On 30 April 2013, the Company had paid
approximately HK$108.9 million to the bondholders to redeem
all outstanding Bonds (the “Redemption”).

After the Redemption, there are therefore no outstanding
Bonds in issue. The Company has applied for the withdrawal
of the listing of the Bonds on the Stock Exchange and such
withdrawal of listing has become effective upon the close of
business on 16 May 2013.
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Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 March 2014,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed securities of the Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant events after the reporting period are set
out in Note 54 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in pages 58 to 71 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date of prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 28 August 2014
and the notice of the Annual General Meeting will be published
and despatched in the manner as required by the Listing Rules
and the Company’s Articles of Association in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining Shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 26 August 2014
to Thursday, 28 August 2014, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
2014 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfers of Shares accompanied by the
relevant Share certificates and appropriate transfer forms must
be lodged with the office of the Company’s Share Registrar,
Tricor Friendly Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 25 August 2014.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 have been audited by ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA
Company Limited.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited will retire at the
2014 AGM and will not seek re-appointment. An ordinary
resolution will be proposed at the 2014 AGM for appointing
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the new auditor of the Company
in place of ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN TONG WAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

27 June 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Company maintain
a high standard of corporate governance, formulate good
corporate governance practice to improve accountability and
transparency in operations, and strengthen the internal control
system of the Group from time to time so as to cope with the
expectations of the Shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions (“Code Provisions”) and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March
2014 (the “Period”), except for the following deviation:

i. None of the non-executive Directors has been appointed
for a specific term, which is a deviation from the
requirement under Code A.4.1 of the Code Provisions.
However, as the Directors are subject to the retirement
by rotation provisions under the Articles of Association
and the Listing Rules, the Board considers that sufficient
measures are in place to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
the Code Provisions.

ii. Pursuant to Code A.6.7 of the Code Provisions,
independent non-executive Directors and other non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings
of the Company. Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, the non-executive
Director, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 August 2013 (the
“2013 AGM?”) as he was not in Hong Kong at that time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging
its corporate accountability, every Director is required to
pursue excellence in the interests of the Shareholders and fulfill
his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills, care
and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory
requirements.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and
business directions, and monitoring internal controls and
performances. The executive Directors are delegated with the
responsibilities of the day-to-day management of the Group
and making operational and business decisions within the
control of and delegation framework of the Group. The non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) contribute valuable views and proposals for the
Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the board
committees, details of which are set out below. Matters
specifically reserved to the Board including appointment of new
Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant
appointments such as company secretary and external auditors,
terms of reference of board committees, as well as major
corporate policies such as code of conduct.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 March 2014, the Board had a total number of
nine Directors including three executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors (“NED”) and four independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”). Biographies of the Directors
are set out in the section headed “Directors & Management
Profile”.
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Mr. Chan Heng Fai is the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and Mr. Chan Tong Wan is the managing
director of the Company (the “Managing Director”). They
have separate defined responsibilities whereby the Chairman is
primarily responsible for leadership and effective functioning
of the Board, ensuring key issues are promptly addressed
by the Board, as well as providing strategic direction of the
Group, and also take primary responsibility for ensuring good
corporate governance practices and procedures are established.
The Managing Director together with other executive Directors
are responsible for the Company’s daily operations and the
effective implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Executive Directors

As at 31 March 2014, there were three executive Directors
including Mr. Chan Heng Fai, Mr. Chan Tong Wan and Ms.
Chan Yoke Keow. Mr. Chan Heng Fai is the spouse of Ms.
Chan Yoke Keow and the father of Mr. Chan Tong Wan.

Non-executive Directors

As at 31 March 2014 there were two NEDs, Mr. Fong Kwok
Jen and Mr. Teh Wing Kwan. Each of the NEDs has no fixed
terms of service with the Company but will be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) in accordance with the
Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

Independent Non-executive Directors and their Independence
As at 31 March 2014, there were four INEDs including Mr.
Tan Choon Seng, Mr. Wong Tat Keung, Mr. Wong Dor Luk,
Peter and Mr. Chan King Fai. Each of the INEDs has no
fixed terms of service with the Company but will be subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in
accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing
Rules.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of INEDs
in accordance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. With Mr. Wong Tat Keung and Mr. Chan King Fai’s
working experience as auditors and their academic background
in finance and accounting, the Company considers that they
are qualified persons with appropriate professional knowledge
in accounting and finance as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, the code provisions as set
out in paragraph A.4.2 of appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Dr.
Lam, Lee G., Mr. Tan Choon Seng and Mr. Teh Wing Kwan
shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM. Mr. Fong Kwok Jen and Mr. Wong
Dor Lok, Peter offers themselves to retire and, be eligible for re-
election at the AGM.

60

REELEREZTEIR(IR])  MRAEXER/ARRES
BR((E5RKR])  REZOATETAMERD  TFEIE
BEEEg v BERENEE BRESGANNENEZME -
W RAEBREER TR ARTIEARERERIRFEE
EATHRNMER ERREEERAMRITERAREARAZA
BEE NN TT B R MUK -

HITES

REITZ-—MF=A=+—HB ARAB=LBHTEE - BERE
BaE  REERERREBZ LT - REBRERREBRLZ
B WRBRAEAE 2R -

FHUITES

R-F-OF=ZA=1+—8  ARAAEMBIFNTEEREEEL
RS o BRIFNITE B WM E AN R)R] AR B E AR
FH EARBASERMAN L ETRARARRRRBERS
(TEERBFEAE ) LWwE SR EERBE -

BYFHTESEREE 2B IM

R-FB-—OF=ZA=1+—8 ARAAOBBIIFNTES &
EREKEL BERELE  EEREERRREELE - TBET
FERTESWEBARN BRI L EFBEERGFH - EARIBAR
{%E%Hﬂﬁ'l&iﬁ%ﬁﬂuﬁ@zﬁ@ﬁHﬁ%?@iﬁ@iﬁ)ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%%@
T o

AAEDIRE FTEBE3.10(1) R3.10AEZ TR HEE 2B,
IFMITES - BEZERLENMRAELAEBZER 2 TIEE
BUARFENEMEETZEE  ARRARBRE A EMHRANE
SA0Q)BETENET L EREAEAEEEMNE ZAEBAL - R
BARNRBMERMA 7 MBI78 K 791G A K FiiiR BT 6145
AA2BEFTE ST RGN MERAETB L - BRAERK ot MBS £ A
BESE WHAERABENBRERAEFASEREBT - BEE
FERTZREEBRRRAFRASREILTEERERET -



Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

Pursuant to the code provision as set out in paragraph A.4.3
of appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, any further appointment
of independent non-executive director serving more than nine
years should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders. Mr. Wong Dor Lok, Peter who has served
as an independent non-executive director of the Company for
more than nine years. Separate resolution will be proposed for
his re-election at the forthcoming AGM. The Board considers
that Mr. Wong Dor Lok, Peter continues to be independent as
he has satisfied all the criteria for independence set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has already received annual confirmation
letters of independence from all the INEDs and each of them
have declared fulfillment of all the guidelines for assessing
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are
independent as defined in the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has set up the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) to deal with different businesses and matters.
Details of the board committees are discussed below.

Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

During the Period, details of the Directors’ attendance in the
following meetings are set out below:

Directors

=

Mr. Chan Heng Fai PRIBHE ST

Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRATEE ST

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow PR EIE 2L

NEDs FHITES

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BB 5t A4

Mr. Teh Wing Kwan (note 1) Box RS (M EFT)
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Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held

HEERRE RITERRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee

BEEg EURES FHEES REEEE

8/8 N/A N/A 4/4
TE A TERA

8/8 N/A N/A N/A

TiE A TNEA TNEFA

8/8 N/A 4/4 N/A

TE A A

7/8 N/A N/A N/A

TiE A TERA TE A

2/2 N/A N/A N/A

i B TERA TERA
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Directors

i)

INEDs BYFEHTES
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter TEEAE

Mr. Wong Tat Keung EERTE

Mzr. Chan King Fai PR A ST A

Mr. Tan Choon Seng (note 2) FRAER S A (AT 7E2)
Notes:

1. Mr. Teh Wing Kwan was appointed on 3 October 2013
2. Mr. Tan Choon Seng was appointed on 15 August 2013

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions. The human resources department is responsible
for collection and administration of the human resources
data for the Remuneration Committee’s for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee recommends the Board about
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

As at 31 March 2014, the Remuneration Committee comprised
of four members, namely, Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, Mr. Tan
Choon Seng, Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter and Mr. Wong Tak
Keung, Mr. Tan Choon Seng, Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter and
Mr. Wong Tak Keung are INEDs while Ms. Chan Yoke Keow is
an executive Director. Mr. Tan Choon Seng is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The most up-to-date version of
the written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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During the Period, the Remuneration Committee had
performed the followings:

1. Reviewed the remuneration policy;

2. Reviewed and approved the remuneration packages
of Executive Directors and the management with
reference to the established systems of the Company for
determining remuneration, including:

L. Mr. Chan Heng Fai’s employment remuneration
for a term of three years providing for a basic
salary of HK$800,000 per month, together with
a performance bonus (a) referenced to the annual
return on equity of the Group (“ROE”), not to
exceed 10 months basic salary, (b) plus 2% of
any increase in the audited net asset value of the
Group from the last fiscal year;

ii. Ms. Chan Yoke Keow’s employment
remuneration for a term of three years providing
for basic salary plus housing allowance of
HK$430,000 per month; and

iii.  Mr. Chan Tong Wan’s employment remuneration
for a term of three years providing for a basic
salary of HK$208,333 per month, together with
(a) a bonus referenced to “Key Performance
Indicator(s)” to be annually determined by the
Remuneration Committee and (b) a vested bonus
referenced to ROE which may be partially or fully
“clawed back” based on the prevailing 3-year
historical ROE.

3. Reviewed and approved the remuneration of Non-
executive Directors; and

4. Reviewed and approved the adoption of the new share
option scheme of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the financial control, internal control and risk
management systems, including reassessment of the financial
and accounting policies, review of interim reports, annual
reports and financial statements, etc. In addition, the Audit
Committee is responsible for the recommendations to the
Board, to be put to Shareholders for approval at the AGM,
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in relation to the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditor, and for reporting to the Board on the
recommendation, review and supervision of the external
auditor in respect of its independence and objectivity, the
effectiveness of the audit procedures, formulation of policies on
the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor, the
handling of any issues related to the resignation of auditor or
the removal of such auditor and the communication with the
external auditor on auditing matters.

As at 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee comprised of three
members, namely, Mr. Wong Tat Keung, Mr. Wong Dor Luk,
Peter and Mr. Chan King Fai who all are INEDs. Mr. Wong
Tat Keung is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The most
up-to-date version of the written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

During the Period, the Audit Committee had performed the
followings:

(i) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended 31 March
2013 and for the six months ended 30 September 2013;

(i)  reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system;
(iii)  reviewed the external auditor’s audit findings;
(iv)  reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(v)  reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors
to determine the provision of such services would affect
the independence of the auditors; and

(vi) performed the corporate governance functions and
reviewed the corporate governance policies and practices.

After due and careful consideration of reports from
management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee
noted that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant
internal control deficiencies, or suspected infringement of laws,
rules, or regulations had been found in respect of the Group,
and concluded at the meeting held on 27 June 2014 that the
internal control system was adequate and effective.
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On 27 June 2014, the Audit Committee met to review the
Group’s 2014 consolidated financial statements, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, in
conjunction with the Company’s external auditor. After review
and discussions with the management and external auditor, the
Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted
by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best
of its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial
information in the Annual Report 2014 complied with the
applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee therefore resolved to recommend
for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board
the appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the new
auditor of the Company in place of ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA
Company Limited which will retire at the 2014 AGM and
that the relevant resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’
consideration and approval at the 2014 AGM.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Board’s structure, size, diversity and composition regularly
and make any changes to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, including making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
policy.

As at 31 March 2014, the Nomination Committee comprised
of four members, namely, Mr. Chan Heng Fai, Mr. Tan Choon
Seng, Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter and Mr. Wong Tat Keung. Mr.
Chan Heng Fai is an executive Director while Mr. Tan Choon
Seng, Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter and Mr. Wong Tat Keung are
INEDs. Mr. Chan Heng Fai is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The most up-to-date version of the written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Period, the Board has reviewed and concluded
that its existing structure, size, diversity and composition are
appropriate and had recommended Ms. Chan Yoke Keow,
Mr. Chan Tong Wan and Mr. Wong Tat Keung for retirement
pursuant to Articles 78 and 79 of the Articles of Association
and A.4.2 of the Code Provisions, and being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election in the 2013 AGM.
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The Nomination Committee had recommended Mr. Fong
Kwok Jen, Dr. Lam, Lee G., Mr. Tan Choon Seng, Mr. Teh
Wing Kwan and Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter to retire, and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election in the 2014 AGM
pursuant to Articles 78 and 79 of the Articles of Association
and A.4.2 of the Code Provisions.

Under Article 79 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM,
one-quarter of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of four, the number nearest to one —
fourth) shall retire from office by rotation. According to Article
83 of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy or by way of addition to their
number shall hold office only until the next following AGM,
and shall then be eligible for re-appointment. Every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years by
rotation or offers himself for re-election.

In August 2013, the Company has established a policy
concerning diversity of Board members (“Board Diversity
Policy”) and has made it available on the Company’s website.

In the Board Diversity Policy, the Company recognises
diversity of talents in the Board shall enhance the quality of its
performance and sees diversity in talents at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. The Nomination
Committee has primary responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and, in
carrying out this responsibility, will give adequate consideration
to this Policy. The Nomination Committee will review this
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy.
The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may
be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval.

The Company was pleased to welcome Dr. Lam, Lee G., Mr
Tan Choon Seng and Mr Teh Wing Kwan to the Board. They
add diversity to the Board by their experiences in corporate
finance, corporate restructuring and merger & acquisition and
risk management and expertise in global operations.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries with all the Directors
and all the Directors confirm that they have compiled with the
standards required by the Model Code during the Period.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continually updated with regulatory
and governance developments.

All the Directors attended training and provided with written
materials on the amendments to or updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations of Hong Kong, including the
Listing Rules. In addition, all the Directors are offered with
professional development courses and seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. All the Directors have
confirmed in writing that they have fulfilled on continuous
professional development during the Period and up to the date
of this annual report by means of reading materials, attended
or received training materials on seminars organized by Stock
Exchange or director training series prepared by the Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies.

REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS FOR DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For NEDs including INEDs, their remuneration paid to each
of them is a basic fee only. Apart from basic salaries, executive
Directors are also entitled to year-end bonus, depending on the
market conditions, performance of the enterprise and individual
persons during the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2014 to
reflect a true and fair view of the Group’s financial conditions
and the results and cash flows during the year.

The consolidated financial statements up to 31 March 2013
had been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 14 April
2014, the Company proposed secondary listing of its shares on
the AIM of London Stock Exchange (“LSE”) to raise additional
capital for the Company to grow its Real Estate Investment
Trusts (“REITs”) portfolio and strengthen its financial position
for future expansion and raise its investor profile principally in
the United States which offer higher-than-average yields. The
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Directors decided to adopt HKFRSs and International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) at the same time to
prepare its consolidated financial statements for its accounting
year beginning on 1 April 2013. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs/
HKFRSs with effect from this reporting period and the
comparative consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2013 have been converted in accordance with
IFRSs. The financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014 were prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a stable,
effective internal control system for the Group. The Company
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems as required by the Code Provisions, covering
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, and including reviews on the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
report function for the Period.

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in discharging its
responsibility for maintaining an effective system of internal
controls on the Group’s business operations. The Audit
Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls, including operational controls regularly and is
responsible for the overall internal control framework. The
management of the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct
for the Group. The Code incorporates principles and values
that the Company and the Group uphold in their dealings with
employees, customers, suppliers and business associates.

Based on the discussions with the auditors and the
management’s responses to the auditors’ recommendations
for improvements to the Group’s internal controls, the Board
opines, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee, that there
are adequate controls in place within the Group addressing
material financial, operational and compliance risks to meet the
needs of the Group in their current business environment.
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REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

For the Period, remuneration paid or payable to the Group’s
auditors, ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited for
financial audit services is HK$805,000 and there is no non-
audit services provided.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

The joint secretaries of the Company are Ms. Chan Suk King,
Zoe and Mr. Yuen Ping Man. Both of them have confirmed
that they have attended not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Period.

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication Policy

The Board considers that having active communications with
investors is important and this will enhance transparency and
clarity in public disclosures by the Company. Any significant
events of the Group fall to be disclosed will be published in a
timely, accurate and complete manner through the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard
Shareholders’ rights of information and participation. The
notice of the AGM together with relevant documents will be
sent out to the Shareholders at least 20 business days prior to
the date on which the AGM will be held. The notice contains
details on the procedures for voting by poll as well as other
relevant information related to the proposed resolutions.

AGM

The Board and senior management are well aware of their
important tasks of acting on behalf of the interests of all the
Shareholders and raising the Shareholders’ returns. The Board
considers that AGM is an important opportunity for direct
communication with the Shareholders. The 2013 AGM at
which the external auditors attended was convened on 28
August 2013. The Board encourages all the Shareholders to
participate in the 2014 AGM where the members of the Board
and external auditors will be present and communicate with the
Shareholders.

Shareholders’ Rights

(1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”)
Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the Requisition (as defined below) not
less than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the
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Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (the “Requisitionist(s)”) shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition (the
“Requisition”) to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The Request and the Statement (as defined below) must
be deposited at the registered office of the Company (the
“Registered Office”) at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place,
40-44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene
a meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which notice convening the meeting is given,
such Requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene a meeting in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Eligible Shareholders may submit a written request to
make proposals or move a resolution at the general
meeting (the “Request™). “Eligible Shareholder(s)”
means:

(1) any number of Shareholders representing not less
than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having at the date of the Request a
right to vote at the meeting to which the Request
relates; or (ii) not less than 50 Shareholders on
which there has been paid up an average sum, per
Shareholder, of a sum equivalent to not less than

HK$2,000.

The Request must state clearly the name(s) and contact
information of the Eligible Shareholders, his/her/their
shareholding, the proposed resolution, accompanied by
a statement (the “Statement”) of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution or the proposed business to be dealt
with at the general meeting, and signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned.
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The Request and the Statement must be deposited at
the Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary not less than six weeks before the AGM in
the case of a requisition requiring to give notice of a
resolution or to circulate Statement to the Shareholders
and not less than 1 week in the case of any other
requisition or no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice by the Company of the EGM and end no
later than 7 days prior to the date of the EGM. If the
Request is received less than the minimum required
days prior to the EGM, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of the EGM in order to give
Shareholders sufficient notice of the proposal.

The Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned have deposited
a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution, a circular or a supplemental circular (as the
case may be) concerned and the Statement in accordance
with the Companies Ordinance and the requirements
under the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders.

(3)  Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

A Shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at
the Registered Office for the attention of the Board in
written form, which shall state the nature of the enquiry
and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact Tricor Friendly Limited, the
share registrar of the Company, for any questions about
their shareholdings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no changes in the Articles of Association during
the Period.

DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are
for reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The
information does not represent and should not be regarded as
legal or other professional advice from the Company to the
Shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent
legal or other professional advice as to their rights as
Shareholders. The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses
incurred by the Shareholders in reliance on any contents of the
section headed “Shareholders’ Rights™.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF

HENG FAI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

BB TR AR A F

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS XPRESS GROUP LIMITED
ABSREEARLH )

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Heng
Fai Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 75
to 253, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 32 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
32, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 32.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Mei Mei

Practising Certificate Number: P05256

Suites 313-316

3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

27 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE-Z-—MF=A=1+—HIEFE

Turnover — gross proceeds

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Fair value (loss) gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on revaluation of investment
properties, net

Loss on disposal of investment properties

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Administrative expenses

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of an associate

(Loss) profit from operations
Finance costs
Share of results of an associate

(Loss) profit before income tax
Income tax credits

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

LR -SFURRR
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SHEMA
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Hib & EWA

BAFEFABSZEREELZ
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EfREYE 2 AT EWESFE

HEREMEZEE
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BREEHBAR .z WE
HE—fE 2 ARz s

e (B8R ) ER
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DME—HBE QRS

BRAT1SHLAT (B518 ) 5 F
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FEIEFE (BB ) A
EA/NSIE/ DN
FEFER R

2R(ER) AR
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Notes

19

23

47
46
21

10

11

12

Annual Report 2014

B —EER
2014 2013
—E—-F —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHExT
205,762 105,130
35,592 56,634
(1,745) (5,957)
33,847 50,677
1,655 4,658
(10,334) 10,727
4,590 37,393
- (4,325)
(14,954) -
(86,784) (139,254)
34,630 -
- 44,962
- 27,670
(37,350) 32,508
(4,651) (22,576)
(222) (154)
(42,223) 9,778
113 20,226
(42,110) 30,004
(43,503) 33,375
1,393 (3,371)
(42,110) 30,004

(1.21 cents) &1L
N/A FE A

0.99 cents 71l
0.96 cents 71l

75



Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2014

meEBEE Nk EtEERER

E_E-ME=ZA=+—HItFE

2014 2013
—=E—mEF —EB-=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
{IE FERT FHET

(Loss) profit for the year FEBR)®ER (42,110) 30,004
Other comprehensive expenses Htt 2 E X
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to ~ WEEE AL EF N IEEIBR Y

profit or loss: HH
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ EHBEFINEFRMEEZ

foreign operations EHZER (15,963) (4,408)
Release of translation reserve on disposal of HE M B A B RS ARRR IE X &

subsidiaries 47 (31,461) -
Release of translation reserve on deemed R HEME R BRRRR

disposal of subsidiaries M W 46 - (8,630)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEMEERAY (47,424) (13,038)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FE2EFAX) WAL

for the year (89,534) 16,966
Total comprehensive (expense) income EiE2mEE) A EEE -

attributable to:

Owners of the Company KRAREB A (89,168) 22,172

Non-controlling interests IR R (366) (5,2006)

(89,534) 16,966
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Statements of Financial Position

At 31 March 2014

BAEE IR DL 2R

R-F-—MF=A=+—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties

Interests in subsidiaries

Interest in an associate
Available-for-sale financial assets
Goodwill

Pledged bank deposits

Current assets
Inventories

Properties under development for sale
Trade and other receivables, deposits

and prepayments
Loan receivables

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Assets held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and
accruals

Bank overdraft

Borrowings — current portion

Obligations under a finance lease
— current portion

Tax payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amount due to a director

Non-convertible bonds

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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“E-MEER
Group Company
AEE /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE =—T-=F =—T-OF =—F-=F
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
Bid e FHERT FHET FHET THER
17 14,903 14,786 610 756
18 20,999 21,476 - -
19 711,914 626,413 2,400 1,800
20 - - 8,907 4,647
21 3,120 2,873 - -
22 3,334 2,089 - -
23 - 10,544 - -
25 4,738 6,714 - -
759,008 684,895 11,917 7,203
26 215 181 - -
27 - - - -
29 49,425 77,496 10,055 1,121
24 612 612 - -
30 126,350 59,055 72,445 18,307
20 - - 630,762 621,401
25 49,535 - 47,680 -
25 102,732 353,385 45,612 191,471
328,869 490,729 806,554 832,300
28 6,450 - - -
335,319 490,729 806,554 832,300
31 8,887 8,906 1,862 3,253
25 - 342 - 182
32 101,716 89,528 47,680 -
33 103 - - -
481 1,961 - -
20 - - 387,633 398,631
34 61,165 7,520 61,165 7,520
36 - 105,633 - 105,633
172,352 213,890 498,340 515,219
162,967 276,839 308,214 317,081
921,975 961,734 320,131 324,284
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Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

Statements of Financial Position
At 31 March 2014

BAEE IR DL 2R

R-F-—MF=A=+—H

Group Company
AEE /N
2014 2013 2014 2013

—B-mE =—B-=% Z=—FB-NF =—B-=f
Notes ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000

FfEE FET FHET FHBxT FExT
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Borrowings — non-current portion B & —IERNERER 32 99,590 61,986 - -
Obligations under a finance lease BhE AR 49
— non-current portion — IR 33 345 - - -
Deferred taxation EERTR 37 270 - - -
100,205 61,986 - -
Net assets EEFE 821,770 899,748 320,131 324,284
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRGHE
Share capital A& 2 39 970,951 35,281 970,951 35,281
Reserves (e 41 (144,153) 869,115 (650,820) 289,003
Equity attributable to owners RABGER NEG#ER
of the Company 826,798 904,396 320,131 324,284
Non-controlling interests AR (5,028) (4,648) - -
Total equity A 821,770 899,748 320,131 324,284

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 253 were S$75E2S3AZGAVBHMEENR T —HF AT+ RAHBHE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ~ SEHUELIKETIZE - WH TIIESREKREE :
27 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Managing Chairman Managing Director
BiTEE BEERAE
Chan Heng Fai Chan Tong Wan
BR1EIE BR#eE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE-_ZT-—-NF=A=+—HILFE

At April 2012
Profit (loss) for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Release of translation reserve on
deemed disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 46)

Other comprehensive expenses
for the year

Total comprehensive (expenses)
income for the year

Transfer of reserves upon cancellation
of share options (Note 40)

Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options (Note 40)

Release upon disposal of investment
properties

Share-based compensation expense
recognised

Disposals of interests of subsidiaries
without loss of control (Note 50a)

Conversion of convertible bonds of
SingHaiyi Group Ltd. (“SingHaiyi”)
by the Group and non-controlling
interests (Note 50b)

Placing shares by SingHaiyi
(Note 50¢)

Issue of convertible preference shares
by SingHaiy (Note 46)

Conversion of convertible preference
shares by non-controlling interests
and the Group (Note 46)

Deemed disposals of subsidiaries
(Note 46)

Annual Report 2014

“E-NEFR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
RRAER AR
Convertible Assets Share-based ~ Convertible Non-
Share Share  preference  revaluation Other  Translation compensation bonds Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
Rk HEEf ki TER
ke RHEE  BER R HbRE EXRE R EERE RHEE B FERER EREE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000  HKS'000
Tén TEn  TEr  TEn  TEr TER  TEn  TEr  TER  TEn  TEr  TER
R-E--4mA-H 30970 853225 - 11,062 (3.874) 91,042 18,797 190 (181372) 820,040 105,308 925,348
ERET(ER) - - - - - - - - 33375 33375 (3,371) 30,004
RAZENERMEE,
EiER - - - - BN AA] - - - ST (1835)  (4.408)
RfEENBARRER
ERR 0
- - - - - (8,630) - - - (8,630) - (8,630)
EREMRERY
- - . . S0 - - S0 (8)  (13038)
ERRRRZMADE
- - - - - (11203) - - 33375 217 (5,206) 16,966
REHBRERERRE
(z40) - - - - - - (621) - 621 - - -
RTREREREARG
(i) 4310 70507 - - - - (16,584 - - 582 - 582
RHERENEEER
- - - (11,062) - - - - 11,062 - - -
EEARARERR
- - - - - - 266 - - 266 - 266
ARKBHERER THEN
BRRWEs ) - - - - 25063 - - - -6 51297 76560
AEERERRER Rk
BAKEARAA
B TARRSHE
Job) - - - - 15,493 - - (71) - 15422 (15,294) 128
MERRERR
(st - . - X - - - S L9 2 31009
HsRTAREAR Y
745) - - %419 - - - - - - %41 - %419
FERERRASE A
HRBRR(W4)
- - (39%419) - - - - - - (96419) 596,419 -
RiELERBLR
(H346) - - - -4 - - oS0 (76S85Y) (805382
ZE-=E=R=1-8 35280 923732 - - - 79,839 1,858 - (136314)  904,3% (4,648) 899,748

At31 March 2013
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Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE-_ZT-—-NF=A=+—HILFE

At April 2013

(Loss) profit for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Release of translation reserve on
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 47)

Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Transfer of reserves upon expiry of

share options (Note 40)

Issue of share upon exercise of share

options (Note 40)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 48)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 47)

Transfer upon abolition of par value
under new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance effective on 3 March

2014

At 31 March 2014
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“5--%RA-A
ER(58)E

RESBIZHMELL
EXZE

HEMBLRRE
Bre)

EEEMEARR

EREMANEE

REREERRERRE
(Hiz40)
RERREREARG
(i)
WEEHB LA (i)
HENBAA W)
BEN-Z-MF=AZA
ERZHEED RGN
ERERERES

ZB-MEZAZT-A

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARARAAELRER
Convertible Assets Share-based ~ Convertible Non-
Share Share  preference  revaluation Other  Translation compensation bonds Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
Rk HEEf ki TER
ke RHEE  BER R HbRE EXRE R GERE 2HEER B FERER EREE
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 — HKS000
Térn TEn TEn TEr TEr TR TEr  TEn  TEm TR TEn TR
35281 923732 - - - 79839 1,858 - (136314) 90439 (4,648) 899,748
- - - - - - - - (43503 (43,503) 1393 (42,110)
- - - - - (14,204) - - - (14,204) (L,759)  (15,963)
- - - - - (31,461) - - - (31,461) - (31,461)
- - - - - (45,665 - - - (5665 (L759)  (47424)
- - - - - (45669) - - (43503 (89,168) (366)  (89,334)
- - - - - - (1490) - 1490 - - -
746 11,192 - - - - (368) - - 11,570 - 11,570
. . - - . - - - - - 1) 1)
- - - - - - - - - - 3 3
934924 (934924 - - - - - - - - - -
970,951 - - - - 34174 - - (178327) 826,798 (5,028 821,770




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2014

mEEHERER
HE-_ZT-—-NF=A=+—HILFE

Operating activities
(Loss) profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment
properties, net
Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expenses
Share of results of an associate
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Written-off the property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of investment properties
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised in
respect of:
— loan receivables
— trade receivables
— other receivables
Bad debts written-off in respect of:
— trade receivables
— other receivables
Share-based compensation expense
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of an associate

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase in properties under development for sale

Decrease in loan receivables

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Increase in trade and other payables and accruals

Increase (decrease) in amount due to a director

Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling interests

Cash used in operations
Tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities
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B —EER

2014 2013
A —B-=F
HKS$°000 HK$°000
TR FHET
(42,223) 9,778
(4,590) (37,393)
10,334 (10,727)
1,261 2,686
(393) (784)
4,651 22,576
222 154
477 477

30 1,986

- 5,446

- 4,325
(3,109) (6,524)
(1) 5

- 33

- 557

25 -
1,484 -
- 266
14,954 -
(34,630) -
- (44,962)

- (27,670)
(51,508) (79,771)
(74,520) (25,360)
(34) 283

- (121,666)

1 —
26,562 (60,248)
4,782 94,497
53,645 (20,774)
- (10,348)
(41,072) (223,387)
(1,097) (766)
(42,169) (224,153)

81



Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2014

mEEHERER
HE-_ZT-—-NF=A=+—HILFE

Investing activities
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets
Increase in pledged bank deposits
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Proceed from disposal of partial interest in
a subsidiary without loss of control
Interest received
Purchase of additional interest in an associate
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Net cash outflow from deemed disposal of
subsidiaries
Net cash inflow from disposal of associates
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries
Decrease in amount due from SingHaiyi
Advances to associates
Decrease in amounts due to associates

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Repayment of borrowings

New borrowings raised

Proceeds from placing shares by SingHaiyi

Proceeds from issuance of convertible preference
shares by SingHaiyi

Inception of obligations under a finance lease

Repayment of obligations under a finance lease

Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of
share options

Interest paid

Repayment of non-convertible bonds

Net cash (used in) from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
represented by

Bank balances and cash
Bank overdraft
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2014 2013
—B-pmE —g—=x
HK$°000 HK$°000
FiB Fin
(1,293) (626)
(47,559) (3,598)
(1,768) (29,390)
(98,934) (14,293)
- 177,703

- 76,560

393 784
(632) (1,895)

- 30,436

- (665,007)

- 217,535
(4,132) -
- 143,621

- (144,962)

- (478)
(153,925) (213,610)
(10,166) (154,975)
61,864 177,488
- 31,209

- 596,419

- 1,705

(69) (736)
11,570 58,234
(6,575) (22,572)
(105,633) -
(49,009) 686,772
(245,103) 249,009
353,043 115,818
(5,208) (11,784)
102,732 353,043
102,732 353,385
- (342)
102,732 353,043
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e ISR

E_E-ME=ZA=+—HItFE
1.

GENERAL

Heng Fai Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is
a public limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company dated 6
September 2013, the Company’s name has been changed
from “Xpress Group Limited FiREBFRAF]” to
“Heng Fai Enterprises Limited [BiE{ 3R ER AT
with effective on 7 October 2013.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”) include investment holding, property
investment and trading, hotel operations, securities
trading and investment, treasury investment, property
development and financing business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2014 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 27 June 2014.

— R

EECEZERARAR([ARR]) REBBEMAILILIA
BRREMEZ EWARAR  ERHETEBHERZM
BRAR (BT LT - KRR ZEM SR
BEZWHCRNFERE RREM ] 8P HE -

REARBDRBRENASMBEAMA T —=F LA
NAZFRIRER  ARAEECHAFEERER AR ]
ARIERECEERBRAR] BT =F+ALAKE
R

ARBREMBRRA(ATGERIARE D 2 ETBEBL
REZER MERENEER  BEXYE EFFEEMK
B MERE MEERLBEES -

REMBBMRURNRB 2 ERET(HBIT) 2

BE_Z-NFE=A=1t-HIFEZRaHBHRERER
CENERA I ERAKERSIOETIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e ISR

E_E-ME=ZA=+—HItFE

2.

84

FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs™)

The consolidated financial statements up to 31 March
2013 had been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Pursuant to the Company’s announcement
dated 14 April 2014, as the board of directors of the
Company proposed secondary listing of the Company’s
shares on the AIM of London Stock Exchange (“LSE”)
to i) raise additional capital for the Company to grow its
Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REITs”) portfolio; and
i) strengthen its financial position for future expansion
and raise its investor profile principally in the United
States which offer higher-than-average yields, the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) decided to
adopt HKFRSs and IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) at the same
time to prepare its consolidated financial statements
for its accounting year beginning on 1 April 2013. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs/HKFRSs with effect from
this reporting period and the comparative consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
have been converted in accordance with IFRSs/HKFRSs.

The Directors believe that adoption of internationally
recognised accounting standards will allow its
consolidated financial statements to be better understood
by its shareholders, the capital markets and the other users
globally. The Directors have considered and concluded
that no adjustments were required to the amounts
reported under HKFRSs for the year ended 31 March
2013 and at the date of IFRSs adoption.

The Group has adopted all the new and revised IFRSs
issued by IASB that are relevant to its operations and
effective for accounting year beginning on 1 April 2013.
IFRSs comprises International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and International Accounting
Standards and Interpretations.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and revised
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)/Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”), IFRSs/
HKFRSs and amendments (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs”)
issued by TASB/HKICPA and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”)/Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“HK(FRIC)”) of TASB/HKICPA for the first time in the
current year.

Amendments to IFRSs/ Annual Improvements IFRSs/
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS/  Government Loans
HKFRS 1

Amendments to IFRS/  Disclosures — Offsetting
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Consolidated Financial

Amendments to
IFRS/HKFRS 10,
IFRS/HKFRS 11 and
IFRS/HKFRS 12

IFRS/HKFRS 10
Statements
IFRS/HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities
Fair Value Measurement

IFRS/HKFRS 12

IFRS/HKFRS 13

Amendments to TAS/ Presentation of Items of Other

HKAS 1 Comprehensive Income
IAS/HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
(Revised in 2011)
TAS/HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(Revised in 2011)
TAS/HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
(Revised in 2011) Joint Ventures
[FRIC/HK(IFRIC) - Stripping Costs in the
Interpretation Production Phase of a Surface
(“Int”) 20 Mine
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs/HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS/HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied IFRS/HKFRS 13 for the first
time in the current year. IFRS/HKFRS 13 establishes a
single source of guidance for, and disclosure about, fair
value measurements. The scope of IFRS/HKFRS 13 is
broad: the fair value measurement requirements of IFRS/
HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs/
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS/HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS/HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value
for the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use
for impairment assessment purposes).

IFRS/HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as
the price that would be received to sell an asset (or
paid to transfer a liability, in the case of determining
the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions. Fair
value under IFRS/HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Also, IFRS/HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

FERFT KRBT ERTBREED BRYBHREER
(4%)

BT XA Sh - RAFE e BRI RS R BB
BREEAEITAHARBAEE BEFRE ZMBHRA
REBRR R,/ KU FhRE M B RRTAHKBEEALE
EAFE -

BRI B R &R BB B REERE 135 A FEE

AEERAFE ERERBEEMBHREERBEUER
SHERNFE135 - BRMBRELL BBV RELEE
3L ERAFEFERFLBERAFEFEREZE
—HE5IRIR - BRI SRS ER BEMBREENFL3
e BEREZ  BRBERMBREER,FEMBEREE
RSB 257 AR (D R EE 2 (5K 2 618 2 AR AD B Z 13K
X5 BREEGEL /BB ENF17REECHE
ZHER S MEXFHEERE THAUMBL IFAHEZF
Bt EFEEEN AR FENEERERRE AT
RANEREBEE)I  BEMBREEN BEUBREE
AIF 135 2 A EFTEREE BN E B 75 &S R
S EBABMBREERNERIETFETATVEAERELE
AATEMERBECEMTAER MFEMTAIRR -

BRI BREEL,/ BEEVBRELNE1BREEERT
EREREREMSRATRAEAMEETZ(IHEEF)
MSRAEKFRHHEEERGURMZ ER(NETRE
NHERSNUEBEREZER) - REBRMBRSEE
Al /EEMBRELNFE3R - THZERECTEETH
KRYJA R —AHEDEELAR  AFERTFREE - It
o BRI B E LR BB B RELRE1IRRAE
R WEENL



Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e ISR

HE-_ZT-—-NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

IFRS/HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (continued)

IFRS/HKFRS 13 requires prospective application.
Other than the additional disclosures, the application
of IFRS/HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. Disclosures of fair value information are set
out in Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS/HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprebensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to ITAS/HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to IAS/HKAS 1,
the Group’s “statement of comprehensive income” is
renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income” and the “income statement”
is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to IAS/HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Furthermore, the amendments to IAS/HKAS
1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions
are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or net of
tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the
changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to IAS/
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
IFRS/HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,
IFRS/HKEFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS/HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, IAS/HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and 1AS/
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures, together with the amendments to
IFRS/HKFRS 10, IFRS/HKFRS 11 and IFRS/HKEFRS 12
regarding transitional guidance. IAS/HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it deals only
with separate financial statements.

Impact of the application of IFRS/HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is
applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the application of IFRS/
HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements (please see Notes
20 and 21 for details).
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised IFRSs/HKFRSs and TASs/HKASs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs/ Annual Improvements to IFRSs/
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?
Amendments to IFRSs/ Annual Improvements to IFRSs/
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

IFRS/HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

IFRS/HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Amendments to IFRS/
HKFRS 9 and IFRS/
HKFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS/
HKEFRS 10, IFRS/
HKFRS 12 and TIAS/
HKAS 27

Mandatory Effective Date of
IFRS/HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Investment Entities!

Amendments to IAS/  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

HKAS 19 Contributions?
Amendments to IAS/  Offsetting Financial Assets and
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities!
Amendments to IAS/  Recoverable Amount Disclosures
HKAS 36 for Non-Financial Assets!
Amendments to IAS/  Novation of Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge
Accounting!
IFRIC/HK(IFRIC) - Levies!

Int 21
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of IFRS/HKFRS
9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs/HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs'HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle include a number of amendments to various IFRSs/
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 2 (i) change the
definitions of “vesting condition” and “market
condition”; and (ii) add definitions for “performance
condition” and “service condition” which were
previously included within the definition of “vesting
condition”. The amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 2 are
effective for share-based payment transactions for which
the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 3 clarify that
contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability should be measured at fair value at each
reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope
of IFRS/HKFRS 9 or IAS/HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be recognised
in profit and loss. The amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 3
are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs/HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity
to disclose the judgments made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments,
including a description of the operating segments
aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in
determining whether the operating segments have
“similar economic characteristics”; and (ii) clarify that
a reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’
assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided if
the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of IFRS/
HKFRS 13 clarify that the issue of IFRS/HKFRS 13 and
consequential amendments to IAS/HKAS 39 and IFRS/
HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-
term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate
at their invoice amounts without discounting, if the effect
of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to IAS/HKAS 16 and IAS/HKAS 38
remove perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item of
property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is
revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent
with the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset
and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs/HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to IAS/HKAS 24 clarify that a
management entity providing key management
personnel services to a reporting entity is a related party
of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting
entity should disclose as related party transactions
the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable
to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of
the components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments included in the Annual Improvements
to IFRSs/HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs/HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs/HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle include a number of amendments to various IFRSs/
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 3 clarify that the
standard does not apply to the accounting for the
formation of all types of joint arrangement in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 13 clarify that the
scope of the portfolio exception for measuring the fair
value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities
on a net basis includes all contracts that are within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS/
HKAS 39 or IFRS/HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do
not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within TAS/HKAS 32.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs/HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to TAS/HKAS 40 clarify that TAS/
HKAS 40 and IFRS/HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive
and application of both standards may be required.
Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property
must determine whether:

(a) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of IAS/HKAS 40; and

(b)  the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under IFRS/HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments included in the Annual Improvements
to IFRSs/HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS/HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS/HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. IFRS/HKFRS 9 are subsequently
amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for hedge accounting.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective (continued)

IFRS/HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Key requirements of IFRS/HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

- All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS/HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under IFRS/HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

- With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, IFRS/HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under TAS/HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective (continued)

IFRS/HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an “economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no
longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS/
HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets
and financial liabilities, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.

Amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 10, IFRS/HKFRS 12 and
TIAS/HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity that
meets the definition of an investment entity not to
consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure its
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in its
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS/HKFRS 10, IFRS/HKFRS 12 and
TIAS/HKAS 27 Investment Entities (continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

J obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

J measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to IFRS/
HKFRS 12 and TAS/HKAS 27 to introduce new
disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The Directors do not anticipate that the investment
entities amendments will have any effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as the Company is not
an investment entity.

Amendments to IAS/HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to IAS/HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset of financial assets
and financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to IAS/HKAS 32 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any financial assets
and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs/
HKFRSs (continued)

New and Revised IFRSs/HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS/HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to IAS/HKAS 36 remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill or other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been
allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal
of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and
valuation techniques used when the recoverable amount
of an asset or CGU was determined based on its fair
value less costs of disposal.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to IAS/HKAS 36 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the IFRSs/HKFRSs and the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
32 for this financial year and the comparative period
under the transitional and saving arrangements for
Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” set out in sections 76 to
87 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622.

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” come
into operation from the Company’s first financial year
commencing after 3 March 2014 (that is, 1 April 2014)
in accordance with section 358 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622. The Directors are in
the process of making an assessment of the impact of
the changes under Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial
application.

So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and will primarily only affect the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for the investment
properties and certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS/HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS/HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in TAS/HKAS 2 or value in use in IAS/HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TESHBEE)

ZETHBOREIIAT

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

4.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:
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o has power over the investee; . BREEHIRIRE QA
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns . =¥ J)ﬁ&ﬁ BIEEMGIE B M AE

from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

4.2

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest; and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs/HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under IAS/HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3

Business combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with IAS/HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and IAS/HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with IFRS/HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below); and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS/
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another IFRS/HKFRS.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3

Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with ITAS/HKAS 39, or IAS/
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3

4.4

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed

of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), and additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4

4.5

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5

4.6

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the
extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are
not classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

TEEHHRRE)

4.5

4.6

RIE A a2 RE (H)
HWARREERXEREFERNAZHENREHRE

SRELERN - AAKERTHEERSHEERE
HROENHEEE—VIRBEEERER 8

(a) HEREHREMEEREANANOLTE

(b) EHMAOTHMELNERN &

(€ AEENERRERELERTE -

B A Bz FEAB MR BB BRE AR
ZRB@mEK - WEREERE @M‘K#&EE‘J%SsJEf%%#M
HEERKIKEEFDVERBBIELEZ AR
HINBRRIZIRE - THRRARAE /DZTE}EETE)\BE

REEAFZRE
’éﬁ*éAT?%ZK’%I“TEEl\EEK YENZER &
FERBEZ2EPRERR MR EERE

\EI?HI%IJI,\HE%IJEZ%J& ®



Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e ISR

HE-_Z—

4.

ME=ZA=+—BItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

Investments in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which
the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
assessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of TAS/HKAS 39 are applied
to determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with TAS/HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with TAS/HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment ceases
to be an associate, or when the investment (or a
portion thereof) is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
TAS/HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

4.7

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interest in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Non-current assets beld for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the asset is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset and
its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs of disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.8

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions
entered into in order to hedge certain
foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

o exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.8

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1
January 20035 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.9

112

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivables. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances.

(a)  Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered
and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the goods

sold;

° the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group;
and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

(b)  Interest income from credit card receivables
is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on an accrual basis, except
where a debt becomes doubtful, in which
case, recognition of interest income is
suspended until it is realised on a cash basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.9  Revenue recognition (continued)

(¢) Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

(d)  Income from hotel operation is recognised
upon provision of services.

()  Sale of hotel accommodation is recognised
upon issuance of the hotel vouchers.

(f) Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefit will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

(g) Realised fair value gains or losses on
securities trading are recognised on a trade
date basis whilst unrealised fair value gains
or losses are recognised on change in fair
value at the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.
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4.

114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.11 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes are
stated in the statements of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TESHBEE)

4.11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 4.11 Y%  BMERRXEE)
M BELEREREENEERNIBEEERAZE

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

4.12  Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13  Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13  Impairment on tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

4.14 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.14 Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statements of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s general policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rental are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.14 Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element of the lease
at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease is
in the
statements of financial position and is amortised

presented as “prepaid lease payments”

over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-
sale financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESTBR(E)
4.15 Financial instruments (continued) 4.15 £HTE(E)
Financial assets (continued) SRS E(HE)

Effective interest method BB E%

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter periods to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as FVTPL, of which
interest income is included in other operating
income.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when

the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and IAS/HKAS
39 Financial Instrument: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the change in fair values of investment
held for trading and change in fair values of
financial assets at FVTPL in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in Note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESHBEKRE)

415 =ETHE)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated as available-
for-sale or are not classified as (a) financial assets
at FVTPL; and (b) loans and receivables. The
Group designated the long-term investments in
unlisted equity securities and club membership
as available-for-sale financial assets on initial
recognition of those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sale financial assets
and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of assets revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy
in respect of impairment loss of financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments are measured at cost less any identified
accumulated impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy in respect
of accumulated impairment loss of financial assets
below).

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial

assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, deposits,
loan receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss of
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESTBR(E)
4.15 Financial instruments (continued) 4.15 £HTE(E)
Financial assets (continued) SRS E(HE)
Impairment loss of financial assets 2 EEZ HEEE

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (continued)
For certain categories of financial asset,
such as trade and other receivables and loan
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30-60 days
and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESHBEKRE)

415 =ETHE)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (continued)
The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables and loan receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written-off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written-off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset
is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit
or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of assets
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade and other

payables and accruals, bank overdraft, borrowings,
obligations under a finance lease, amounts due to
subsidiaries, amount due to a director and non-
convertible bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESHBEKRE)

415 =ETHE)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group
Convertible bonds contains liability and equity

components

The component parts of the convertible bonds
issued by the Group are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.
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4.

130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible bonds issued by the Group (continued)
Convertible bonds contains liability and equity
components (continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the
effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the
liability component from the fair value of
the compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity
will remain in equity until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESHBEKRE)

415 =ETHE)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if
not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance
with TAS/HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(i)  the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group and the Company derecognises a
financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the assets expired, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group and the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group and
the Company continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group and
the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group and the Company continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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4.

132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety, the Group and the Company allocates
the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the
part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group and the Company derecognises
financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s and the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16

4.17

4.18

Borrowing

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group and the Company has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of
reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s and the Company’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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4.

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESHBEKRE)

4.18 Taxation (continued) 4.18 BHE(E)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.
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4.

136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash included in the statements
of financial position comprise cash at banks and
on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity
of three months or less.

4.20 Retirement benefit costs and short-term employee
benefits

(a)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plans and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% or HK$1,250 in
maximum of relevant payroll costs to
the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Singapore and Japan
is required to participate in the defined
contribution plans regulated and managed
by the local government. The contributions
to the defined contribution plans are
charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period to which the
contributions related.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Retirement benefit costs and short-term employee
benefits (continued)

(b)  Short-term employee benefits
Employees’ entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

4.21 Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options that are conditional
upon satisfying specified vesting conditions,
the fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based
compensation reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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4.

138

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.21 Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees(continued)
When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share-
based compensation reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants
Share options issued in exchange for goods or

services are measured at the fair values of the
goods or services received, unless that fair value
cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options
granted. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve), when the Group obtains
the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESHBKR(E)
4.22 Provisions 4.22 BE

EAEERABATEFEMHAAERARECETNE
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a E) - MASKERAIGEAGLSEERE - Bt AT
result of a past event and it is probable that the Z B FVEN AT SRR - BITER A -

Group will be required to settle that obligation,

Provisions are recognised when the Group has

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Kt hEREAB AR R THABRRERE - #R2
BEZEANBESHRGERBRZBREETL
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EFfERR  ERmEAREFReREZRE(WE
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When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 5.
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Rt HERET TABERZ T ERR

RERKM 4P AR E S RRE - EFAHTRELE
M ERIIRE N EE R B EREEEL 6 *ﬁﬁ&fﬁx
Siiﬁﬁr&*ﬁFﬁTEJ“Eﬁéﬁ’gLEi«ﬁﬁ&E@%ﬁ%Z%ﬁ
B EEREL - BERERATERRINILFMAET

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the Directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about e
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

ZEMFT RERRRSHERT - MEFTEHEFRATE
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates BRIt EARD - RIS Mt EZ AR - BB
BRI AR RER - RIFEEET AR SR R AR RERR

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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5.

140

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group and the Company should determine whether
a property qualifies as investment property or owner-
occupied property. In making its judgment, the Group
and the Company considers whether the property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows
that are attributable not only to property but also to
other assets used in production or supply of goods or
services.

Some properties comprise of a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use for administrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under finance lease), the Group and the Company
accounts for these portions separately. If the portions
cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for
as an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group and the Company considers each
property separately in making its judgment.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
Directors have reviewed the Group’s and the Company’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s and the Company’s investment properties are
not held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
and the Company’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a
result, the Group and the Company has not recognised
any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties as the Group and the Company is not subject
to any income taxes on disposal of its investment
properties.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgment is
required when determining whether a decline in fair
value has been significant and/or prolonged. In making
this judgment, the historical data on market volatility
as well as the price of the specific investment are taken
into account. The Group also takes into account other
factors, such as industry and sector performance and
financial information regarding the issuer/investee.

RS HERET TABERZ T ERIR(F)
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5.

142

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. Details
of the recoverable amount calculation for goodwill
are disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Estimate fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by an independent professional valuer. In determining
the fair value, the valuer has based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result
in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. In relying on the valuation report, the
management has exercised their judgment and is satisfied
that the assumptions used in valuation are reflective of
the current market conditions.

RS HERET TABERZ T ERIR(F)
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The management is
responsible to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the board of
directors regularly to explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the assets.

Notes 19 and 51 provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of various assets.

RS HERET TABERZ T ERIR(F)
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6. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. Wz R EAEE WA

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as

follows:

Financial interest and service income

Dividend income

Other interest income

Rental income

Income from hotel operations

Gross proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Other operating income

Other income

Exchange gain, net

Bad debt recovery on trade receivables
Management fee received from an associate
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HK$°000 HK$°000
TEr FER
45 108

5,987 414
393 784
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ME=ZA=+—BItFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”), being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. Each of the
Group’s reportable and operating segments represents
a strategic business unit that offer products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other segments. This is also the basis
upon which the Group is organised and managed. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating

segments under IFRS/HKEFRS 8 are as follows:

Financing operations — provide financing to
individuals and acquiring
services for members

Securities trading and - trading of securities
investment

Treasury investment -  asset management and
cash operations

Property investment — — letting properties and

and trading trading of properties

Hotel operations - hotel operations in Japan

Property development development of properties
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEBER (4E)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AT RAREBIRATIRE RS E D HEI D 2 W REEDHT
results by reportable and operating segments:
Segment revenue and results D Eb R EE
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-_Z-NE=A=+—BLFE
Securities Property
Financing ~ tradingand ~ Treasury  investment Hotel  Property
operations investment investment and trading  operations development  Elimination Total
R5EE NERER

HERH kg  HERE BE  EEER  OEER AR &5t
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TR TEn TR TEn TR TEn T TEn

Turnover - gross proceeds EXR-HEREER 45 320,200 10,069 18,968 7,09 - (150610) 205,762
Revenue 10N

- External sales -4 HE 45 9,09 393 18,968 7,09 - - 35,592

- Inter-segment sales -DilEHE - 140,934 9,676 - - - (150,610) -
Total E 45 150,030 10,069 18,968 7,090 - (150,610) 35,592
Segment results NHxE (1,441) (12,207) 9,388 17,784 (5,352) (392) - 8,280
Unallocated corporate revenue L NIl A 1,341
Unallocated corporate expenses FORAREY (84,492)
Unallocated finance costs FOBBERA (1,760)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARE 34,630
Share of results of an associate El—RBELTEE (222)
Loss before income tax RETERAER (42,223)
Income tax credits FERES 113
Loss for the year FEEE (42,110)
Segment assets NIBE 144 129,068 8,734 721,102 9,320 - - 868,368
Interest in an assoclate REEAR 7 ES 3,120
Unallocated assets AONEE 222,839
Total assets BEBE 1,094,327
Segment liabilities HHEE - - - (139,293) (608) - - (139901)
Unallocated liabilities AONEE (132,656)
Total liabilities EErekd] (272,557)

146



Annual Report 2014

“E-MEER
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
= A =
e RIS EHER M
BE-_Z-MF=A=1+—HILFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEBER (4E)
Segment revenue and results (continued) B EB e (4E)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-Z-=F=A=1+—HLFE
Securities Property
Financing ~ tradingand ~ Treasury  investment Hotel ~ Property
operations investment  investment  and trading  operations ~development  Elimination Total
#5EE NERER

HERH ke HERE BE  EEEE  URER i &5t
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
T TEn T TEn T TEn T TEn

Turnover - gross proceeds ERE-FEREEE 108 55434 12,126 21,770 27,034 - (11342 105,130
Revenue W&

- External sales -HihE 108 6,938 784 2,770 27,034 - - 56,634

- Inter-segment sales -DHEHE - - 11,342 - - - (11,342) -
Total @ 108 6,938 12,126 21,770 27,034 - (11,342) 56,634
Segment results EiE (1,099) 16,045 515 46,357 (14,47 (236) - 47335
Unallocated corporate revenue AP 9,135
Unallocated corporate expenses KRR (100,799)
Unallocated finance costs AABBENS (18,371)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries £ AHENBAT 44,96
Gain on disposal of an associate HE-FRENAkE 17,670
Share of results of an associate VNG (154)
Profit before income tax REERAIRR 5778
Income tax credits FERES 20,26
Profit for the year ERgA 30,004
Segment assets HHEE 160 60,522 8880 628,177 10,220 - - 707959
Interest in an associate R-RBENT ER 1873
Unallocated assets FOREE 464,792
Total assets EElE 1,175,624
Segment liabilities HHek - - - (152,148) (643) - - (152,793)
Unallocated liabilities FORAE (123,083)
Total liabilities A% (275,876)
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7.

148

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties, net

Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Written-off the property, plant and
equipment

Bad debts written-off in respect of trade
receivables

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of loan receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Bad debt recovery on trade receivables

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision making but not
included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Bad debts written-off in respect of other
receivables

Tmpairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

7. DEER (&)
Bt 5 5E#
BE-Z—NE=A=1+—HLEE
Securities Property
Financing ~ tradingand ~ Treasury  investment Hotel ~ Property
operations investment investment  and trading  operations development  Unallocated Total
R5EE NERE
HERH kRE  WERE REE  EEEE  URER AR &5t
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
Tén TR Tén TR TiEn TR TEn TR
b ED B S
vk R
BARR - - - (101,089) (%) - - (101,18)
Vit - - (181) (786) (153) - - (1,120)
RNEETE B - - - (477) - - - (477)
BATESINBRZEHAELT
e - (10,334) - - - - - (10,334)
BiRENF I ATENEER
- - - 459 - - - 459
HERRTEH \ER 2RAE
ik -3 - - - - - WK
0%  BRRRE
- - - (30) - - - (30)
AEHEUIGUENHER
- - - (25) - - - (25)
HENET R AEEERD
1 - - - - - - 1
AAEEANESE
- - - - (10,544) - - (10,544)
HESEUARE 2 5% 84 - - - - - - 84
EHRFELERREREETA
HANPEIHERI N BEE
HEZEE:
BAER - - - - - - (34) (34)
i ; - : - - S VI
HEBEIGIERESR
- - - - - - (1,484) (1,484)
HESEDRELE
§ - § - § S A0 40
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties, net

Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal of investment properties

Written-off the property, plant and
equipment

Bad debts written-off in respect of trade
receivables

Bad debt recovery on trade receivables

Tmpairment loss recognised in respect of
- trade receivables
- other receivables
- loan receivables

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision making but not
included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Tmpairment logs recognised in respect of
other receivables
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7. DEER (&)
Bt 5E# (&)
BE-_E-=f=A=t—-HLEE
Securities Property
Financing ~ tradingand ~ Treasury  investment Hotel ~ Property
operations investment investment  and trading  operations development  Unallocated Total
R5EE NERER
HERH kRE  WERE BE  BERR  NRER AR &3t
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
Tén TR Tén TR TiEn TR TEn TR
- - - (15,253) (258) - - (15,511)
- - (227) (626) (1,316) - - (2,169)
- - - (477) - - - (477)
N A - . . . S Tk
- - - 37,393 - - - 37,393
- 6,524 - - - - - 6,524
- . - 33)  (5413) . S [5446)
- - - (4325) - - - (4323)
i ] S . - -
- - - B - - - 51)
189 - - - - - - 189
(33) - - - - - - (33)
B, - - - (131) - - (131)
H - - - - - -0
- - - - - - 28172 (28172
_ _ . - - § (517) (517)
- - - - - - ) e
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7.

150

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than unallocated assets (mainly comprising certain
property, plant and equipment, certain available-
for-sale financial assets, certain other receivables,
bank balances and cash, certain pledged bank
deposits and prepaid lease payments); and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated liabilities (mainly
comprising non-convertible bonds, certain other
payables and accruals, tax payables, amount
due to a director, bank overdraft and certain
borrowings).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
results represent the (loss by) profit from each segment
without allocation of certain items, mainly comprising
other operating income, gain on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries, gain on disposal of associates, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries, share of results of an associate,
certain depreciation, certain administrative expenses,
directors’ and chief executives’ salaries and certain
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at arm’s length
negotiation.
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in four (2013: four)
main geographical areas. Information about the Group’s
revenue from external customers is presented based on
the geographical market of the customers, irrespective of
the origin of the goods and services.

Hong Kong BE
North America JEZEM
Singapore AN
Japan AR

Information about the Group’s non-current assets,
excluded the financial instruments, is presented based on
the geographical location of the assets.

Segment assets

Hong Kong BE
North America JE3EM
Singapore AN
Japan AR

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013,
no individual customer of the Group contributed over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

DEER(H)

HELH

REBEEBRAAE(ZZT—=F : OE) X2 - 1%
EREMBEPPWAZERDEREPHETIHZY] -
PEt R G m LR 2 [REH -

2014 2013
—E—-mF —E-=fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEx
10,871 12,751
1,901 3,617
12,668 13,232
10,152 27,034
35,592 56,634

AEBERBEE (SR TARIN 2ERDERNEEME
W23

PEFEE

2014 2013
—E—-mF —E-=F
HK$’°000 HK$’°000
FHx FHxT
108,948 105,332
59,573 10,075
533,738 490,444
48,677 70,241
750,936 676,092

EETFEFFZEH
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. A& A
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interests on: THRBEZHE
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable ERRAFAEHEEZRITER
within five years REY 407 11,665
Bank loans not wholly repayable within five BERAFANEEEE ZRTT
years B3 2,891 4,307
Effective interest expense on convertible bonds — AJ# R {ES5 2 BH A B 57 H
(Note 35) (H17#35) - 4
Interest on a finance lease BEMLN S 7 25
Interest expense on non-convertible bonds FERT AR E S 2 FI B2
(Note 36) (Hf#36) 1,346 16,901
Total borrowing costs EEKAEE 4,651 32,902
Less: Amount capitalised in properties under 5 : RERDFEMERFTER Y
development for sale i) - (10,326)
4,651 22,576
For the year ended 31 March 2013, borrowing costs BE_Z—=—F-A=+—HILFE FRERELAZE
capitalised during the year arose on the general BERARE—REE  DRERTSEVERIIRERNL
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a HEERFEI00%ATE -
capitalisation rate of 100% per annum to expenditure on
properties under development for sale.
9. INCOME TAX CREDITS 9. FrBHiESR
2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E-=fF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
THERT FHBT
Current tax REARIE
— Hong Kong —&& - -
— Overseas — g4 297 233
Over-provision in prior years B FEmERE (680) (20,182)
Deferred tax (Note 37) EIERRIB(M15E37) 270 (277)
(113) (20,226)
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9.

INCOME TAX CREDITS (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2013, no tax is payable on the profit for the year arising in
Hong Kong since the assessable profit is wholly absorbed
by tax loss brought forward.

According to the relevant Singapore tax regulations, certain
Singapore subsidiaries of the Group enjoy the partial tax
exemption and corporate income tax rebate during the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The income tax credits for the year can be reconciled to
the (loss) profit before income tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:

FiBE R (&)
MEFE 2 BEBNEHIGIR A ERBUE N2 16.5%5TH °

BE_Z—NF=A=+—HERZZ—=F=H=+—H
LIEFE - AR BRGNS BB R AE RO - B
ARNBEEEE 2 FEENBNTEA -

RIBRBEFT IR - REBE T 3 I E Q=R
HE-_ZT—NF=A=+—RARZZE—=F=HA=+—H
L FEZFHEMBORBR R REEMEHRITH -

R EL A BN B 2 2 DR TS B AR B 2 TR TR
55 -

FAMRGHIE R B A BaRATRGRASH A (B18) &
MHETHEROT

2014 2013

—E—-mF —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FTHEx FHET

(Loss) profit before income tax FrEFS T AT (&1 & (42,223) 9,778

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax

BREEMNEHRE16.5%(ZF
—=F 1 16.5%)FHEZBHA (6,967) 1,613
AR W2 R &

purpose 17,617 7,102
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose HERBRHUA 2 LT L (7,296) (16,540)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RERZ RBATHIBEEIE

B 5,527 14,169
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised )8 kiR 2 TR IEE 18 - (864)
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences &)@ RFER 2 Al HIH A

previously not recognised =5 - (277)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences MARERAIRE R ERE Y

not recognised M E 270 -
Over-provision in prior years BT FEBERE (680) (20,182)
Tax effect of share of results of associates DB E R R EE BT E - (25)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FEMREEREEZMNBAR

operating in other jurisdictions MENRzZE (8,129) (4,959)
Effect of tax exemption granted to Singapore T B A R E R SRR 2

subsidiaries e (455) (263)
Income tax credits for the year FAMEHER (113) (20,226)
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10.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10.  ERER)%R
2014 2013
—E2-lmF —B-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
THERT FET

(Loss) profit for the year is arrived at after FERN(EER) &Nk GEA)

charging (crediting): AT&HE :
Operating lease charges on land and buildings  +i RIEFLELEHER T 904 850
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)% - &= K& E 2 ITE 1,261 2,686
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TETE S RRIE 2 B 477 477
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised in FRA TN B IERER 2 W EE 18 (5

respect of @) :

— trade receivables —E 5 EWEIE - 33

— other receivables — H b fE U IR - 557

— loan receivables —ERE R (1) 5
Bad debts written-off in respect of BIA T B IEMH 2 20K

— trade receivables —E 5 EWEIE 25 31

— other receivables — H b fE U IR 1,484 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WE MRS

equipment - 5,446
Written-off the property, plant and equipment  #fi$5¥1% - W= M & E 30 1,986
Exchange loss, net M W 183 5 3,945 -
Auditor’s remuneration Z R B 805 805
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BETRA(BIEESHE)

(Note 13) (HraE13) 53,626 91,115
Rental income from investment properties less 1% & ¥ 2/ & W AR

outgoings of HK$8,718,000 8,718,000/ L( —FT— =4 :

(2013: HK$9,928,000) 9,928,000/ L) (10,250) (11,842)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense RRFX 2 FERAE 1,745 5,957

11.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 11. ZA2XBH#EEAEBGFR(EE)ETR
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

RATIEE AEEF ARG EBIEH /43,503,000 (=%
— =% mH#I33,375,000% ) 2 - BEAI15,723,000
BT BB (T — =% : 46,077,000/ 7T) B AR BB
BRI -

Of the consolidated loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$43,503,000 (2013: profit of approximately
HK$33,375,000), a loss of approximately
HK$15,723,000 (2013: HK$46,077,000) has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.
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12.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$43,503,000
(2013: profit of approximately HK$33,375,000) and
on the weighted average number of approximately
3,595,534,000 (2013: 3,379,952,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

12.

BR(BER) AR

BRERN(BER) B DEAQRBEAEBEERNEBELY
43,503,000 T ( =T — =4 : % 4933,375,00077T) &
FRE T L BRI TR E493,595,534,0004% (= F
—=4F :3,379,952,0000%)5T & o

RATREA AR SRR EA RIS (B598) B T TR
stE

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHERT FHET
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners AR B1#EE AEEFR(EIE)
of the Company, used in the basic and diluted &%) - AAFFEERERK
(loss) earnings per share calculation 58 (B 1R ) &7 (43,503) 33,375
Number of shares RiG#E
2014 2013
—E-—MmEF —E-=F
’000 ’000
TR TR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  HEERER(EIE)EF 2
for the purpose of the basic (loss) earnings AT hNAE F 8
per share 3,595,534 3,379,952
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BrEaLEk e 2
Share options (Note) B R (B aE) N/ATEHA 113,939
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5+ & S EH# (F5i12) &2
for the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings T hnAE a2
per share 3,595,534 3,493,891
Note: s

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2014 were not
presented because the exercise of share option during the year were
anti-dilutive.

VESIHNBEE-T-—NF=A=+-HILFEESRETHE - RERF
WA BB R A R B R -
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13.
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Short-term employment benefits

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (INCLUDING

— Basic salaries of staff and directors’ fee
— Other allowances and benefits in kind

Share-based compensation expense

Contributions to defined contribution plans

14.
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(2013: seven) directors and the chief executive were as

follow:

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Executive directors
Mr. Chan Heng Fai
Mr. Chan Tong Wan
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow

Non-executive directors
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen
Mr. Teh Wing Kwan (Note i)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Wong Tat Keung

Mr. Chan King Fai

Mr. Tan Choon Seng (Note ii)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

BE-2—
=+-g
HITES
MBS
MBS
REALL

FHUTES
BPEIa ST
BoxmERE

By BT
ITEZREELE
EERSAL
R A B S A
BRAEM L

13. EEMS(BEESEHFH)
2014 2013
—E—NF —B-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx FH&xT
52 EE BB F
—EAHSRESNS 51,737 86,416
—H R R EYEF 1,363 3,691
R EERZ - 266
HEBMHNGTE 2 HR 526 742
53,626 91,115
14. EERITETHBAESHMH
BENgENTFLE(ZE—=ZF  tR)EELRFETHA
BEZEZHMWNT :
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits  contribution
Fees in kind plans Total
e 2UR HEREMR
we BEYEF B Z SR st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FH&xT FHExT FHExT FHET
F£=A
IHFE
- 27,298 10 27,308
- 2,501 75 2,576
- 5,159 61 5,220
206 - - 206
(H17E:) 89 - - 89
=
126 - - 126
167 - - 167
126 - - 126
(B95tii) 148 - - 148
862 34,958 146 35,966
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14.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #HE-E—=%F=A
=t+—HILFE

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Chan Heng Fai BRIEIE &

Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRETE A

Mors. Chan Yoke Keow FREMELZ L

Non-executive director FHTES

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen FRE1E 55 4

Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter FEkE

Mr. Wong Tat Keung EERSEE

Mr. Chan King Fai BRI S A

Notes:
i) Appointed on 3 October 2013

ii) Appointed on 15 August 2013

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2013, neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. Apart from
directors, the Group has not classified any other person as
chief executive.

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2013, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
directors or chief executive as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.

B —EER
14. EERFETBAEHME)
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefits  contribution
Fees in kind plans Total
e EUR HERAMR
ue BEYEA sHElZ R st
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHExT FHET FHET FHERT
- 46,597 - 46,597
- 3,075 60 3,135
- 4,159 60 4,219
120 - - 120
120 - - 120
324 - - 324
111 - - 111
675 53,831 120 54,626
Hiat -

(i) RZT—=F+A=AKZE
(ii) RZZE—=F)\A+HBEZE
HE_Z—NFR-_T—=F=-A=1+—HILFE  #E

IZTRAEREMNEERERREREEAZFH - KE
FH AEBAUBEBEMNEMALDEREIETHAS -

HE-Z-NEE T =ZFZA=Z1+—HILFE K&
B ERAESHESTRABEINTMMESIEAMBEARE
sk h0 BA AN S [ B 2 S SR BB AR (E o
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15.  SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2013: three) were directors and the
chief executive of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in Note 14 above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) highest
paid individuals were as follows:

15.

BERBFAL
AEBREARSFATERE=2(ZZ—=F: =Z)ARQ
RIESERFBTRAR  EMEFBR EXHF142HE
N2 - HERE(—E—=F MB)SZad ALtz
o

2014 2013
—E-mF —EB-=F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e AR EDRER 3,077 3,098
Contribution to defined contribution plans HEREMEIGTEI 2 HR 15 33
3,092 3,131
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEMESN T TEE
Number of employees
BEAH

2014 2013
—E—mF —E-=F
HKS$ nil to HK$1,000,000 THEILE1,000,000787T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 £1,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C£2,000,0007% 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2013, no emolument was paid to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

16. DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31

March 2014, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2013: Nil).
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HE_Z-—NEN_Z—="F=-A=+—HILtFE K&
EfErnAaRsHF AT INEAMSERNBEAEE K
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—OF=A=1+—RIFFEHERN IR ER
L BEHmEHREE BUK - RERRIRMEAMRE
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% - BERRE
Group rEH
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and
buildings  improvements  motor vehicles Total
Tt HE B KRB
REF MERE RAE et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THEx THER TR THEx
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FMA—H
Cost A 55,447 17,449 10,439 83,335
Accumulated depreciation and 2T E RRE
impairment (6,909) (11,966) (6,761) (25,632)
Closing carrying values FRIEAE 48,542 5,483 3,678 57,703
Year ended 31 March 2013 HE-ZT—=F
ZA=t—HLFE
Opening carrying values FYEMEE 48,542 5,483 3,678 57,703
Additions RE 24,612 2,948 1,830 29,390
Written-off bliEz] - (1,937) (49) (1,986)
Depreciation e (933) (955) (798) (2,686)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEHEKHE AR
(Note 46) (Hi7t46) (25,287) (2,071) (2,944) (30,302)
Disposals e (33,532) (2,175) (175) (35,882)
Exchange realignments [& 3, 5% (1,546) 29 66 (1,451)
Closing carrying values FREEEE 11,856 1,322 1,608 14,786
At 31 March 2013 RZE-—=F=A=+—H
Cost PR 14,293 5,652 6,870 26,815
Accumulated depreciation and 2EHTERRE
impairment (2,437) (4,330) (5,262) (12,029)
Closing carrying values FREmE 11,856 1,322 1,608 14,786
Year ended 31 March 2014 BZE-S-—m&E
ZRA=t—-HLEFE
Opening carrying values FYREE 11,856 1,322 1,608 14,786
Additions INE - 539 1,746 2,285
Written-off s - - (30) (30)
Depreciation wE (166) (484) (611) (1,261)
Exchange realignments P& AR (837) (18) (22) (877)
Closing carrying values FRERE 10,853 1,359 2,691 14,903
At 31 March 2014 R-B-MFE=A=1+—H
Cost &N 12,066 6,093 7,871 26,030
Accumulated depreciation and 2 ERRIME
impairment (1,213) (4,734) (5,180) (11,127)
Closing carrying values FHREEE 10,853 1,359 2,691 14,903
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17.

160

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17.

Group (continued)
The carrying values of land and buildings held by the
Group are analysed as follows:

M BERREHE)

REE ()
AEERFEZ T EEFREEINAOT

2014 2013

—E—MmEF —E-=F

HK$°000 HKS$’000

FET FERT

In Hong Kong, held under long-term leases REERE Z REAMER 2,270 2,321
In Japan, freehold RBARZ AR 8,583 9,535
10,853 11,856

At 31 March 2014, certain of the Group’s land and
buildings with a carrying values of approximately
HK$2,179,000 (2013: HK$2,227,000) has been pledged
to secure the Group’s borrowings (Notes 32 and 38).

At 31 March 2014, a motor vehicle with carrying
amount of approximately HK$861,000 (2013: HK$ Nil)
in respect of assets held under finance lease (Note 33).

RZZB—WE=A=+—0  XNEEEREEL2,179,000/
T(ZE—=%F :2,227,000870) 2 & T L RIEFE KT
DS AEE 2 EE (H:E32/%38) °

MN-Z—MNE=A=1+—H REBEHESAEZEEY
B EREENA861,00080( —F—=4F : TH7L) (5T
33)°
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17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company

At 1 April 2012
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Closing carrying values

Year ended 31 March 2013
Opening carrying values
Additions

Depreciation

Closing carrying values

At 31 March 2013
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Closing carrying values

Year ended 31 March 2014
Opening carrying values
Additions

Depreciation

Closing carrying values

At 31 March 2014
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Closing carrying values

17.  #1% - BERRE(E)

AT

RZZE——FMHA—H
D%
BETINE

FREmE

BHE_Z-—=F=A=+—RHIFE
FHREE

WNE

e

FREmE
WZE—=F=A=+—H
B

REtE

FREmE
BE-BR-NE=A=1+—-HLFE
FHRREE

NE

e

FREEE
R-EB-NFE=A=+—H
DN

Rt E

FREEE

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

Furniture,
fixtures and
motor vehicles
TR #£B
kRE
HK$°000
FBT

4211
(3,264)

947

947
36
(227)

756

4,247
(3,491)

756

756
34
(180)

610

4,281
(3,671)

610
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17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17.

The above items of property, plant and equipment,

except for freehold land, are depreciated at the following TIE -

rates per annum:

Land and buildings Over the shorter of the term T RIEF
of lease, or 2% on straight-
line method

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the term of the lease or HEMEEE

6.67% —20% on straight-
line method, whichever is

the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and
motor vehicles

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Group

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

— Current asset (included in trade and
other receivables, deposits and
prepayments) (Note 29)

— Non-current asset

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

Long-term leases held in Hong Kong

Opening carrying values
Amortisation recognised during the year

Closing carrying values

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s prepaid lease
payments of approximately HK$20,469,000 (2013:
HK$20,924,000) have been pledged to secure the

Group’s borrowings (Notes 32 and 38).

162

20% —25% on reducing
balance method

BRIt - HEMTE

18. FENHEERE

M BERREHE)

Bt - BB RBREEE ORAEELHRINRIATF

RHMSIREREZ2%

(A E )

RHMSREREZ

6.67%-20%
(ABGE & R2E)

20%-25% * FRAMRERRRUE

REE
2014 2013
—EB—mEF —E-=F
HK$’°000 HK$°000
TR FEx
HERMEBDWA

—nBEEGIAE S KEAM

FEN I R RIER
IE) (H7#29) 477 477
—JEMEBEE 20,999 21,476
21,476 21,953

REEZBNBEERERIE
REBARNFA 2 KEHEL 21,476 21,953
FYIERMEEAE 21,953 22,430
FADEREH (477) (477)
FHRIREE 21,476 21,953

R-Z—NEF=ZA=Z+—H A£EBNHEHEREY
20,469,000 70 (= — =4 : 20,924,000 7T ) &K A
BSAEE 7 BEE(FIFE32438) ©
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19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

19.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured at the fair value model and are classified

and accounted for as investment properties.

Fair value

At 1 April

Additions

Disposals

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46)

Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 28)

Net increase in fair value recognised in
profit or loss

Exchange realignments

At 31 March

AFME
REA—A
FE
e

BREME

AEERBEUEEREL AR ARBE S MFENIRE
Rz MEREEARXFEEAFE  ADBERREME

BIEHEM B R R (Ait46)

RiEEER 2 AFEER

e
PEE 54 FEEE

R=RA=+—H

The carrying amounts of the Group’s investment
properties shown above comprise properties situated on:

Land in Hong Kong
Long-term leases
Medium-term leases

Land outside Hong Kong
Long-term leases
Medium-term leases

Freehold

REBZ it
REEL
T EAFE A

BRI L
REEL
AR AY
IKAFENE

AR ©
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHExT
626,413 908,383
98,934 14,293
- (182,028)
- (155,342)
BREFIELEEE(Wit28) (6,450) -
4,590 37,393
(11,573) 3,714
711,914 626,413
PRAEEREYEREE < ARMELR -
2014 2013
—F—-mF —2-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
60,500 56,430
2,400 8,250
62,900 64,680
444,774 451,330
84,145 35,931
120,095 74,472
649,014 561,733
711,914 626,413
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19.

164

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value AFE
At 1 April REA—H

Net increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss

31 March

The carrying amounts of the Company’s investment
properties shown above comprise properties situated on:

Land in Hong Kong
Medium-term leases

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s
investment properties (“Properties”) at 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2013 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates
by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”), an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. Avista has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The Properties have been
valued on market value basis, which conforms to Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards on
Properties. The valuation was determined by reference to
recent market prices for similar properties in the similar
locations and conditions.

R=RA=1+—H

REBZLIH
T EAFE A

WEEERZ AT EERFE

REM* (&)
Company
AAH
2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=F
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FET FEx
1,800 1,050
600 750
2,400 1,800
EPRARRBHEEMEREEZ BRELR
2014 2013
—E—NF —B-=F
HK$°000 HKS$°000
FET FHERT
2,400 1,800

REBRARAZEEME(WE)R=_ZE—MNF=A
—t+—BRERE-—=ZFZA=t+—BZAFEDERER
SEVEBEC B AAREEGHEMYEBTGHRAS
PRI )R B R ATEITHEER - EMER
HEEN IR EER BRI S SEUYEEITHE
25 MERMEMLE  FEESNEMESWEGE
A o HEDIZERUNER B R RARR 2 F T E
BETE -
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19.

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Rental income earned by the Group from its investment
properties, which are leased out under operating leases,
amounted to approximately HK$18,968,000 (2013:
HK$21,770,000).

At 31 March 2014, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying values of approximately
HK$589,419,000 (2013: HK$511,584,000) have been
pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Notes 32 and
38).

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties is
classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. There
were no transfers into or out of Level 2 during the year.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES

19.

20.

BREWEH)

AEEREEEDEMBRIR 2 S AL A18,968,0007%8
TT(ZZF—=4F : 21,770,00087T) * MABIREME L
EERERAL -

R-E—NF=A=+—08  ~EBEERE®E{ES589,419,000
BIL(ZE—=4F : 511,584,0008T) 2 & TIREWMED K
HAERASE 2 (BB (T FE32 R MIFE3S) ©

REBZRENEHERIBRRIFERBE_H - FA
BEEEUREARBLE R -

P 2 7] 2 R B BB 2 ) K (s R B B A B RKOR)

Company
YN
2014 2013
—Z—-mF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
THERT FET
Investments at cost RE KA
Unlisted shares JE_ETRRD 76,947 73,184
Less: Accumulated provision for impairment B REDRERE (68,040) (68,537)
8,907 4,647
Amounts due from subsidiaries within ({D)EINEIVSE
one year (—FREH)
Interest bearing at 2% per annum RERF2E
(2013: 2%) (ZE—=F 2B R 497,473 489,900
Non-interest bearing ER5) 518,374 562,460
1,015,847 1,052,360
Less: Accumulated provision for impairment 8 : 25 EE (385,085) (430,959)
630,762 621,401
Amounts due to subsidiaries within one year £ /KHEA RIFIE(—FREIE) (387,633) (398,631)
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20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2014 and 31 March 2013 are as follows:

Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and kind Class of
Name of legal entity shares held
BalAE £ 5L 7 &R
1 AXREERREN  ROEH
American Housing ~ USA, limited liability ~ Common
REIT Inc. (‘AHR”)  company stock
(FNEtERE 28 ERAR Lk
fEEAHR )
China Credit Singapore Singapore, limited Ordinary
Pee Ltd liability company LR
g - BRAT
China Xpress Pte Ltd ~ Singapore, limited Ordinary
liability company LR
g - BRAT
eBanker USA.com, Inc. United States of Common
(Note) (f7:#) America (“USA”), stock
limited liability LAk
company
FHEERE
([%8)) BRAA
Preferred

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital
BRTRE/
HMERER

USD3 455
34S5ET

SGD13417,282
1341728231 e

$GD5,670,002
5,670,002 M T

USD115,487
USASTET

One Series A

stock ~preferred stock (Note)

Bk
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~TRARGIBER
()

20.
(4%)

IZMBATERNOT

Proportion of ownership interest

ikt £ 31
Proportion of
Proportion ownership interest voting power held
held by the Company by the Group
HALEEE HEEERE
FrERRERL REELA
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-NF ZE-ZF -5-MF -E-=F ZE-REF -F-=fF
% % % % % %
94.9 - - - 94.9 -
100 100 - - 100 100
- - 98.8 98.8 98.8 98.8
- - §1.8 81.8 81.8 §1.8

RSB DSz @ MHEA R R (ERKMELDARE)

R-F-—MFE=A=+-AR-F-=F=A=+-0A2

Principal activities

IREH

Property holding
VEST]

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Financial investment

TRIRE
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20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 20.
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

tH

Expats Residences
Pee Ltd

Global Growth
Management, Inc*.

Global Medical REIT
Tnc. (GMR”)
(EBBERNE

FEER)(TGMR )

Heng Fung Capital
Company Limited
BEREERAA

Heng Fung Capital
(Canada) Inc.*

IREE Hong Kong
Limited (formerly

Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and kind
of legal entity

GUEAEEs T

BXREERRER

Singapore, limited
liability company
s BRAA

Canada, limited
liability company
MEX - BRAT

USA, limited liability
company

X8 BRAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B%  BRAT

Canada, limited
liability company
mex - BRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

known as Heng Fung &%+ BB AR

Underwriter Limited)

(71%&Heng Fung

Underwriter Limited)

Class of

shares held

#A
ReEH

Ordinary
Lak

Common
stock
£88

Common
stock
£88

Ordinary
TAR

Common
stock
Lk

Ordinary
LR

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital
BRfTRE/
EMErER

5GD25,002
250023 IR

USD1,000
10007

USD8,000
8,000

HKS2
VAT

Canadian dollars 1
((( CAD”)
IMEAT
()

HK$2
BT

(4%)

Proportion of ownership interest

Fr Rt fl

Annual Report 2014

Proportion of
Proportion ownership interest voting power held
held by the Company by the Group
BALARE hEEEEE
FERRERL Al el il
Directly Indirectly
E# 13
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z§-mE “§-zF “§-BEF C$-ZF CE-BF CE-cF
% % % % % %
- - 100 100 100 100
- - - 100 - 100
937 - - - 937 -
100 100 - - 100 100
- 100 - - - 100
100 100 - - 100 100

B —EER

RSB DSz @ MHEA R R (ERKMELDARE)

Principal activities

IRER

Property investment

UESE

Property investment

UESE

Property holding
MERE

Securities investment
and property
Investment

BHRER
NERE

Property investment
VESE

Securities trading
EHEE
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 20. RHBLATSZER HMEBLAIAXR(EXKHEATFHE)
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)

Proportion of ownership interest

k] 45

Place/country of Particulars of

incorporation/ issued share Proportion of

operation and kind Classof ~ capital/registered Proportion ownership interest voting power held
Name of legal entity shares held capital held by the Company by the Group Principal activities

RIS £5:E 7 5E BRIRA/ BALARE hEEEEE
£B AXREERREN  ROEH ERELEH FERRERL Al el il IERH

Directly Indirectly
E# 13

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-{m§ -E-=f -“EZ-mF -“E-ZF -“E-mF -E-=%

% % % % % %
Hotel Plaza Miyazaki ~ Japan, limited liability ~ Common JPY60,000,000 - - - 100 - 100 Hotel operating
Limited* company stock 60,000,0008 BEGE
AR BRAF LAk
Ichi Ni San Enterprises  Hong Kong, limited ~ Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 - - 100 100 Property investment
Company Limited ~ liability company Lk 10,0007 nERE
Bt BRAF
Japan Xpress Japan, limited liability ~ Common JPY495,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Hospitality Limited ~ company stock 495,000,008 REBR
AR BRAF LAk
Kabushiki Kaisha Japan, limited liability ~ Common JPY30,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100 Hotel holding
Aizuya company stock 30,000,008 BIEER
AR BRAF LAk
Keng Fong Foreign ~ USA, limited liability ~ Common USD250,000 - - 100 100 100 100 Property investment
Tnvestment Co. Ltd ~ company stock 250,000 NERE
%8 BRAA LAk
Rasa Sayang Limited ~ Hong Kong, Limited ~ Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 - - 100 100 Property investment
liability company LRk 10,0007 WERE

B% BRAA
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20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 20.
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

tH

Sapporo Holdings Inc.

Singapore Service
Residence Pte Ltd

SingXpress Investment
Pte Led*

Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and kind

of legal entity
RIS £5:E 7
AXREERRER

Japan, limited liability
company

AA - BRAA

Singapore, limited
liability company
g BRAF

Singapore, limited
liability company
g BRAF

SingXpress International Singapore, limited

Pte Led*

Wai Kin Investment
Company Limited
BREXERAA

Xpress Credit Limited
(“Xpress Credit”)

FREFERLE
([EREE])

liability company
g BRAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
Bt BRAF

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
Bt BRAF

Class of

shares held

#A
ReEH

Common
stock
£
Ordinary

Ordinary
LAk

Ordinary
LAk

Ordinary
LAk

Ordinary
LAk

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital
BRfTRE/
EMErER

JPY3,000,000
3,000,008

$GD1,250,000
1,250,000%7705% C

$GD800,000
800,000%7715% TC

SGD2
VAR

HK$600,000
60000057

HK$1,260,000
126000057

(4%)

Proportion of ownership interest

Fr Rt fl

Annual Report 2014

Proportion of
Proportion ownership interest voting power held
held by the Company by the Group
BALARE hEEEEE
FERRERL Al el il
Directly Indirectly
E# 13
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-IF ZE-ZF -E-MF -E-=F ZE-NF -E-=F
% % % % % %
- - 100 100 100 100
- - 100 100 100 100
- - - 100 - 100
- - - 100 - 100
100 100 - - 100 100
- - 100 100 100 100

B —EER

RSB DSz @ MHEA R R (ERKMELDARE)

Principal activities

IRER

Hotel holding
BEER

Property holding
NERE

Tnvestment holding

KRR

Property holding
NERE

Tnvestment holding

KRR

Tnvestment holding,
securities trading
and financing
services

BEER

&

I
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20.

170

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  20.

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RSB DSz @ MHEA R R (ERKMELDARE)
(4%)

Proportion of ownership interest

ikl 5ahd]
Proportion of
Proportion ownership interest voting power held
held by the Company by the Group Principal activities
MALARE HASEEE
Lt 2 RERLLA IBER
Directly Indirectly

i
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-{N§ -“Z-zf -“Z-mF -“E-zF _E-mF -Z-=%

Place/country of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued share
operation and kind Classof  capital/registered
Name of legal entity shares held capital
EUEAYE- 378 %5 BRRE/
8 AxRiEEREN  ROEH AftExEs
Xpress Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited ~ Ordinary ~ HK$133,866,230
ESRERAT liability company Liak 133,866,230% 7
&t BRAF
Notes:

According to the article of incorporation of eBanker USA.com, Inc.,
the share of Series A Preferred Stock, when issued, shall be entitled
to 50% of all votes entitled to be cast in the election of directors.

* Subsidiaries are disposed of during the year ended 31 March
2014
# During the year ended 31 March 2014, AHR and GMR,

which were incorporated in USA and their shares were listed
on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board in USA, became
subsidiaries of the Company. Details information of the
acquisition of AHR and GMR are shown in Note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

At 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014, none of the
subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

% % % % %

- 711 711 711 71.1 Financing services

SRR%
Ha
i #eBanker USA.com, Inc.Z A R ER - ASE ST EITRFTHT
HIRERANS0% BT - AR EEERRITE

BE_ZT-—NF=A=+—HILFEHEZMBRA -

# HEZT-—NF=A=+—HIEFE - AHREKGMR(FEEE=
AL RE RS REBISINE TR R M) BARR B ZHE
A7) o AHR R GMR 2 Wi ¥ IEH N A LR & I Rz M 5548 -

RV EERAEI B EAREEEXEEZASEN
BRR - BEZRA - WHINEMHELRENEEHRRE
BRITE °

N-E—=F=-H=+—\BR-_ZE—WMFE=HF=+—8 -
EWBRARTRFEBEmBEITEMNERES
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 20. RHEBARZ#EZ MEBARXR(EXHEARRE)
&)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has RIREBRAER - ARAIETEMHE R AYRAEE
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. MEWXTEE - ZEWBRAFTRNTRABEREE - ZEHE
These subsidiaries operate in different countries. The RNAZ FEXEBHAMAT -

principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as
follows:

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries

FEXW FTEEHEME MEARBE
2014 2013
—Z-F —E-=F
Investment holding USA
REZER B 1 -
BVI
REBERES 2 2
Singapore
I 4 1
Japan
SEN 1 1
Hong Kong
HE 3 S
11 9
Property investment and trading USA
MERENEE ES 1 1
Property development USA
MEERE ES 1 -
Securities trading and investment BVI
BHFBEEMRE REBRUHES 1 1
Singapore
EAmIE: 1 1
2 2
Hotel operations Japan
BIEETS AA 1 1
Inactive USA
HEET e 2 2
BVI
REBRLHS - 3
Singapore
TN - 3
Japan
SR 1 2
Hong Kong
B 5 11
8 21
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership

200 RMERARZEZR MELAIXR(EXHMEQTRE)

(4%)

BEAHZRERZHZENE L AFFE

TRAAKEEEAFEEER 2 IFE2EMBARFE

Total comprehensive income

Place of interests and voting rights held  (expense) allocated to non-  Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiaries incorporation by non-controlling interests controlling interests interests
FERERERIE PEREFERER 2
WEARERE SRR A i B RREZRRERELS 2ERA(RR) B Rt FERER
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE  ZE-=f ZE-OF ZE-Zf CZB-mf Z=—F-=F
ZB=t-R =ZA=t-R =ZA=t-R ZA=t-A =A=t+-A =ZA=t-A
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER
eBanker USA.com, Inc. and
its subsidiaries USA
eBanker USA.com, Inc. REMIBAT  XE 18.2% 18.2% 575 (4,498) (3,923) (4,498)
GMR USA
* 6.3% - (13) - (22) -
AHR USA
=3 51% - 41 - 34 -
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests
BB AR 2 AR ERME AR (969) (708) (1,117) (150)
(366) (5,206) (5,028) (4,648)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intra-group
eliminations.
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 20. RHEBARZ#EZ MEBARXR(EXHEARRE)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)
(i)  eBanker USA.com, Inc. and its subsidiaries (i) eBanker USA.com, Inc. R E {18 2\ &
2014 2013
—E—-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx T
Current assets REEE 6,269 4,185
Non-current assets IERBEE 62,475 72,835
Current liabilities mEAE (130,588) (142,028)
Equity attributable to owners of the RNATEE AEIG#ER
Company (57,921) (60,510)

Non-controlling interests FEVENR R A (3,923) (4,498)
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 20. RHEBARZ#EZ MEBARXR(EXHEARRE)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)
(i)  eBanker USA.com, Inc. and its subsidiaries (i) eBanker USA.com, Inc. R B }1/B 1 &1 (#&)
(continued)
2014 2013
—E-QmEFE —E-=F
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHERT FHET

Total income WA L8 35,056 32,390
Total expenses Fisz4agm (20,839) (47,342)
Profits (loss) for the year FERMN(EE) 14,217 (14,952)
Profits (loss) attributable to owners of ~ ARQFHEAE ARG

the Company (E518) 11,635 (12,237)
Profits (loss) attributable to non- FEVE IR R (G A

controlling interests (E518) 2,582 (2,715)
Profits (loss) for the year FE A (E1E) 14,217 (14,952)
Other comprehensive expense RABIER ANEREA

attributable to owners of the Company 2@ (9,046) (8,037)
Other comprehensive expense FE1E AR b w PG ELAD

attributable to non-controlling interests %M X (2,007) (1,783)
Other comprehensive expense FEEMPEMAX

for the year (11,053) (9,820)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AR F#HA AEEEE A

attributable to owners of the Company ()4 %8 2,589 (20,274)
Total comprehensive income (expense)  FEIEA%HE S E(E 2 EURA

attributable to non-controlling interests  (Fsz ) 4858 575 (4,498)
Total comprehensive income (expense)  FEEEWA () 4E5E

for the year 3,164 (24,772)
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 20. RHEBARZ#EZ MEBARXR(EXHEARKE)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)
(i)  eBanker USA.com, Inc. and its subsidiaries (i) eBanker USA.com, Inc. R B }1/B 1 &1 (#&)
(continued)
2014 2013
—ZT—mEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHERT FET
Dividends paid to non-controlling SRR R S A 2 IR
interests — _
Net cash inflow (outflow) from KEEBEEZRETA
operating activities O ) $%8 14,995 (31,487)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from wEESELAZRE(RL)
investing activities mMAHE (13,716) 45,574
Net cash outflow from financing MEEBELE RSN
activities FEE (11,117) (1,287)
Net cash (outflow) inflow B ORE ) mAFE (9,838) 12,800
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(i)

176

GMR

The financial year end date of GMR is 30
September. For the purpose of consolidation, the
financial statements of GMR for the period from
30 September 2013 (date of acquisition) to 31
March 2014 have been used and its result has been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

200 RMEARZER HEQERK(ERHEQRRE)

(4%)

(i)

neaE

ZA/NCTL RS DN 5

FEIER M 2

GMR

GMRZ B BRFEHEERANA=TH - BiERA AR
Mms EFEAGMRR-_ZE—=FNA=+8(KkE
B E-T—NWF=A=+— B2 HBHRE -
HELDFTALEBRE -

2014
—E-mE
HKS$’000
FET

(345)

(323)

(22)
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20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 20.
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

GMR (continued)

Total income

Total expenses

Loss for the period, representing the total
comprehensive expense for the period

Loss for the period, representing the total
comprehensive expense for the period
attributable to owners of the Company

Loss for the period, representing the total
comprehensive expense for the period
attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss for the period, representing the total
comprehensive expense for the period

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net cash outflow

(4%)

(ii)  GMR (&)

WA K5

Gt

HINEE - HERHR
ENEE PR

HIRER - HERARFHEEA
FEAE HAA) 2T 5 s 4878

HIREE - IHE RIS
PG BN 2 E R 2R

HAEE - HERHIR
ESEEEEEGE

A FEAR B b 2 S A 2 BB
RERBELZRSRHIFHR
MERDEEZRERAFE

Be b FE

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

RELA Bz @ HWEARRK(ERKEDARE)

For the period
from 30
September 2013
to 31 March
2014
—E-Z=F
hA=+HZE
—E-MEF
=ZA=t+—H
R
HK$°000
FExT

3

(223)

(220)

(220)

(183)

183
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(iii)

178

AHR

The financial year end date of AHR is 31 August.
For the purpose of consolidation, the financial
statements of AHR for the period from 19 July
2013 (date of acquisition) to 31 March 2014 have
been used and its result has been included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

200 RHMBLATZEZ HEBLARAXR(EXHEBEATRE)
(&)
(iti) AHR
AHRZBBFREHEERAEN\A=Z+—8 - 5iizé
BEME - BEFEAAHRR-_ZE—=F+A+hA K
BRAME_ZT--NF=/A=1+—H2@KHE  H
EECFAGRABREE -
2014
—E-ME
HK$°000
FHxT
REEE 10,570
IETENEE 47,445
REBE (57,352)
NAREE AR 629
IR 34
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20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  20.
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AHR (continued)

Total income

Total expenses
Profit for the period

Profit for the period attributable to owners of
the Company

Profit for the period attributable to
non-controlling interests

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive expense attributable to
owners of the Company

Other comprehensive expense attributable to
non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive expense for the period

Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the period

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net cash inflow

(4%)

(i) AHR (#&)

LN
P AR

ilabiagl
KRB NELRRET
FERER S G BRI A

HRE
ARAHEAEIEEMEEFX
FEERR s R E b 2T R

HINE M2 EF
ARREE ANEIEEHBALER
FRER R IR (G 2 H AR

HNEEB AL

PR B s ST A5 2 B
KREXBELEZHERAFR
RERBELZHSIREFR
RERBEL 2RERMAFR
RERNFHE

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

RELA Bz @ HWEARRK(ERKEDARE)

For the period
from 19 July
2013 to
31 March 2014
—E-=F
tA+hBRE
—E-mE
=ZA=t+—H
il
HK$°000
FHET
1,458
(514)

944

896

48,002
(47,551)
1,978

2,429
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. R—HEBE AR ZER
Group rE
2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount FREE 3,120 2,873
Fair value of listed investment FARECATE 4,504 2,798
(@) At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the (a) M-_E—NFEFZA=Z+-—HBHE-ZT—=Z%F=A
Directors are of the opinion that the Group has =+—H EZRAAEERTIBME RHEEE
significant influence and interest on the following RE BN
associate:
Proportion of ownership interest
it 2 53l
Country of
incorporation
Class of principal of Proportion of voting rights held
Name of entity ~ Form of entity  shares held operation Group’s effective interest by the Group Principal activities
EMALER
2] BRA R ER TEEEI rEBEREL REERERERNS TEXH
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE  ZB-=f CZB-[F ZB-ZF
RSI International Incorporated ~ Ordinary share of ~ Canada/Canada 25.2% 23.9% 25.2% 23.9% Provision of integrated
Systems Inc.  #EfACL no par value NIEYVSII=YN web-based real-time
(“RSI") EEELRER reservation and property

management system
to the hotel and resort
industries

BIBERE TR
RENEITRMEER
4
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The shares of RSI are listed on the TSX Venture
Exchange in Canada. The financial year end
date of RSI is 31 December. For the purpose of
applying the equity method of accounting, the
financial statements of RSI for the year ended 31
December 2013 (Year ended 31 March 2013: 31
December 2012) have been used as the Group
considers that it is impracticable for RSI to
prepare a separate set of financial statements as of
31 March 2014. As there is no significant effect
of transactions between 31 March 2014 and 31
December 2013, in the opinion of the Directors,
no adjustments have been recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Group acquired further 900,000 shares of RSI
at a consideration of CAD90,000 (equivalents to
approximately HK$632,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
assessed the recoverable amount of interest in
an associate, since its market value is exceed the
carrying amount of RSI as at 31 March 2014,
the Directors determined that no impairment is
required.

Summarised financial information in respect of
RSI is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in
RSD’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with IFRSs.

R—BBE QT 2w (H)

(a)

(4#)

RSIBMAMERFEH X SFTAIZER T - RSLZ B
HEEFERAT-_A=1T—08 - stiAExe:
EME  BEARSIEE-_E—=¢+_-_A=+—AH
HFEEEE_Z—=F6=-A=+—HUIEE: - %
—Z—F+ZA=+—H)ZUEHRE RAALEE
RARSIGEN - ZE—NMF=A=+—B 2B
BH/RETAT - RZE—NF=A=+—HBHE=Z
—=F+ A=+ —BZEZX U BERTE
WEERABBERTAHE

BHE-ZT-—NE-ZA=+—HIFE  KXEEMN
90,000NE AT (FHE R 49632,000870) BRE @
— 2 UREERSI 900,000A% A% 17 ©

RBEHRGEER - AREFER BB E Q7
ZHEHZAWESE - ARRSIN B —HF=H
=t HAZWEBBREE  REERRALERE

FEE .
LEE=S

RSIZIABERB BRI T - ATHBERREZ
FIRSHZIREIFR IS 35 ERIRE 2 M HRER R &
e
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21. R—REBEARZERE)
(a)  (continued) (a)  (#&)
The associate is accounted for using the equity Bt N AR AR AR A TS ERNARR o

method in these consolidated financial statements.

2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHBxT
Current assets MENEE 3,168 2,195
Non-current assets ERENEE 4,148 4,151
Current liabilities mEAaE (3,740) (2,931)
Non-current liabilities EREBERE (271) (593)
Revenue ek 21,605 19,852
Loss for the year, representing total FEBE - HERFE
comprehensive expense for the year PHEF A (881) (526)
Dividends received from the associate FEWEEE AR 2B
during the year - -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial B E R E BN R A B AR T RERR 2 B

information to the carrying amount of the interest NRE w2 R
in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
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e MR RME
BE_ZT-—NMF=A=+—HILFE
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21. R—REBEARZERE)
(a)  (continued) (a) (%)
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —B-=F
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHERT FHET
Net assets of RSI RSIZ EEFRE 3,305 2,822
Proportion of the Group’s ownership EEERRSLZ FrA Rz Ll
interest in RSI 25.2% 23.9%
833 674
Goodwill [EES 4,552 4,552
Exchange realignments (RIS 1,335 1,247
6,720 6,473
Less: Accumulated provision for A REDRERE
impairment (3,600) (3,600)
Carrying amount of the Group’s RNEBFTFIRSIHE 2 2 BRIEE
interest in RSI 3,120 2,873
(b)  According to the Company’s announcement (b)) BEAABBHAE-_Z——F+—A-++tBHZA

dated 27 November 2012, SingHaiyi has received
a conversion notice from Haiyi Holdings Pte
Limited (the “Subscriber”) to convert all non-
redeemable, cumulative convertible non-voting
perpetual preference shares into ordinary shares of
SingHaiyi (“CCPS”). Upon the completion of the
conversion of CCPS, the Group’s equity interest
in SingHaiyi was diluted from 52.4% to 19.8%.
Accordingly, SingHaiyi ceased to be a subsidiary
and became an associate of the Group afterward.
Details of the deemed disposal disclosed in Note
46 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 25 January 2013, the Group entered into a
placing agreement to place out remaining 19.8%
interest of SingHaiyi. BMI Realtors Pte. Ltd., an
associate of SingHaiyi, was also disposed of after
the Group placed out its interests of SingHaiyi on
25 January 2013.

& 0 ¥R B YW E Haiyi Holdings Pte Limited ([ 3
AL BB - SRR T A HE B 25 R E
WEBEXABER AT TR EBR([ZEXAEBL
f&1) o B HMZERABERIE - AEERTE
BRI ERBAS2.4%FEE19.8% - FULFGR
REBTBAAEB 2B ARWK AR E AR
BRRIELE 2B R E ISR 46 5 -

RZZE—Z=ZF—A=+HHB AEBELEER
& EFERBT19.8%Em - FER I BER
A]BMI Realtors Pte. Ltd. AZZE—=F—A=+H
BAEBEREENGRAERELE -
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21. R—REBEARZERE)
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)
This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain ZBEXGRERRTEEA—HINEER 580 T :

in profit or loss, calculated as follows:

2013
—E-=F
HK$°000
FEx
Proceeds of disposal SIS RIE 217,535
Less: Carrying amount of the 19.8% investment on the i : RcEEAFLHAHI19.8% % E 2 BRFEIE
date of loss of significant influence (189,865)
Gain on disposal HE TS IE 27,670
22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. TAtHHESREE
Group rEE
Available-for-sale financial assets comprise: AfHESREERRE -
2014 2013
—E—MmF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
THER FET
Non-current SEMRE
Equity securities IRANZE 75
Unlisted in Hong Kong, at cost (Note a) REBIELT - LKA
(Ktita) 1,293 -
Unlisted outside Hong Kong, at cost (Note b) ~ HAEBZINEET @ 2K AE
(Krith) 616 664
Club membership (Note c) efeRE(Mitc)
Unlisted in Hong Kong, at cost REABIELT - RANE 1,425 1,425
Total et 3,334 2,089
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22.

23.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

At 31 March 2014, the Group invested in an unlisted equity
security issued by a private entity which incorporated
in Hong Kong. The available-for-sale financial asset is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss at the end
of the reporting period as the Directors are of the opinion
that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

(b) At 31 March 2014, the balances represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by the private entities which
incorporated in Singapore. The available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss
at the end of the reporting period as the Directors are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

(c) It represents club membership which is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss. As it does not have a quoted
market price in an active market, the Directors are of the
opinion that its fair value cannot be reliably measured.

GOODWILL

Group

Cost D&

At 1 April (Note b)
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note a)

At 31 March W=RA=+—H
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE
At 1 April REA—H

Impairment loss recognised (Notes a and b)

At 31 March

Carrying value
At 31 March

22.

23.

R=HA=+—8
fREE
R=A=+—8

HHESREE(F)
Mzt -
(@) R-T-MF=A=+—8  RAEBRENEBTMRL L

(b)

ROA—B(#ZDb)
PP A RS E A (M7ta)

BRI ERE (M7t lb)

AEBFETIEETRAES « THHE S MAERRE 1K
8 RN 2EDRASRN 8 - REFRA - KAFE
LT AR -

R-Z—WE=A=+—0 ' ZHREENIINPGEEMAR L Z L
ANEBFABEITHFLTRAFSZKE - THESREENRE
HRMEE ARRANBR RUREBRTE - REERAELQT
BEEEASEHIGHE -

BEIREMER  RRAARRTREBRTIR - RNEELR
M5 LWETISHME - HEFRA - HATEEER FHFE -

2014 2013
—E—-NF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
10,544 10,544
4,410 -
14,954 10,544
14,954 -
14,954 -

- 10,544
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23.

186

GOODWILL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Impairment testing on goodwill of its internet marketin
agency services business

The goodwill amounted to approximately HK$4,410,000 is
arising from the acquisition of two subsidiaries which shares
are listed in USA. Details of the acquisition are set out in
Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

These two subsidiaries are principally engaged in internet
marketing agency services at the acquisition date. For the
purpose of operating properties investments in USA, the
Group acquired these two subsidiaries during the year ended
31 March 2014. As such, the management determined
to discontinue the internet marketing agency services
afterwards. As the consideration paid was exceed the net
liabilities of these two subsidiaries at the respective dates of
acquisition, goodwill of approximately HK$4,410,000 was
resulted.

Also, as the management determined not to continue the
internet marketing agency services after the acquisition and
will focus on the property investments in USA, they are of
the opinion that no future cashflow could be derived from
the internet marketing agency services after the acquisition.

Based on the above judgment, impairment loss of
approximately HK$4,410,000 (2013: Nil) has been
recognised in respect of the goodwill to the extent that
the carrying amounts exceeded their recoverable amounts
based on the best estimate by the Directors and thus, the
impairment was recognised to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2014.

pit -

FRASAE T 45 e 8 (I RIS SR 1S R B 1T RUE R

PR SEAV4,410,00078 7T T0)R B U BB M R AR 0 i 2 B 77 2
BAF] - AEWNIBERIE Y FBHNGE IS REM A4S ©

REBEE > ZMEANBAREIEREBETHHEERER
%o RINEBKLEMERE  AEERNBE-_ZT—NE=A
=T —HIEFERBZMERE AR - stit - EREERRE
RIFRETISHERRIZERT - ARANREBLZMENER
AREBRBEER B aEFE  ARELHEL4,410,000
BT e

BESN - ANE IR R E R e R FIRR R LB TS HEER
EIRT - AHEIXEMELREEY  HERRRTRUESE
HiBEMSHEEREREARTEEEEMNRSRE -

SN L HE - REERZ&ERS  CHEEEBLRIKRE
SR EBERREEIEDN4,410,0008T(Z =5 &)
HERREDRBEE T -—NF=A=+—RAILFEZLEER
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23.

GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Impairment testing on goodwill of its hotel operation,
attributable to the reportable and operating segment of hotel
operation business

The goodwill amounted to approximately HK$10,544,000
arose from the acquisition of Sansui Hotel Limited,
Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya and Sapporo Holdings Inc. in 2009.

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined
by using value-in-use calculations. The cash flow projections
were prepared from financial budgets approved by the
Directors covering a five years with a range of pre-tax
discount rate of 5% (2013: 5% - 10%). Cash flows beyond
the forecast period were extrapolated using a zero (2013: 2%)
growth rate. The management made key assumptions for the
Group which is determined based on past performance and
its expectations for the market development. In view of long
economic recession and oversupply of hotels in Japan, the
recoverable amount of the hotel operation was significantly
decreased in current year and was far below of the carrying
amounts.

Based on the above basis and assumptions, impairment loss
of approximately HK$10,544,000 (2013: Nil) has been
recognised in respect of the goodwill to the extent that
the carrying amounts exceeded their recoverable amounts
based on the best estimate by the Directors and thus, the
impairment was recognised to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2014.

()

(b)

Hret - (4&)

HEFT 2 BRI A 5 B O S 375 AT $R 2 4K

8 4310,544,000 7 7T 5 IR 74 = T T 14 Y Sansui Hotel
Limited * Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya}Sapporo Holdings Inc. ©

EEZAKRESEREREBESTE - REREBRIIRELE
EHECMIBEERE  BERTF  BRRAMBRELRS% (=
T—=F : 5%E10%) - WABREAINZRERENT(ZF
—I=F 2% EREER - AREZ T ERBRMERERRE
EXRBEREHTSERBLET - ENROLBEREN BAE
JEREET - AFEEEE TR SERE TR - EER
BREE

ER B EERER - BIEES 2 RERG - EREEERE
AJ U [El & 58 2 P B R R B B 18 4910,544,0008 0 (= F — =
F£:F) WEBRENTREE-_S—NE=A=+—HI5FE
ZEREBERNTER
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24.

188

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Group

Fixed rate term loans — secured EB
Fixed rate installment loans — unsecured EBS
Variable rate mortgage loans — secured 7RI
Carrying value AREE

Less: Accumulated impairment

The mortgage loans bear interest at 0.5% (2013: 0.5%)
over prime interest rate in Hong Kong per annum and
are repayable by installments up to year 2011. The loans
are secured by mortgages over properties placed by the
borrowers. The mortgage loans are repayable on demand
due to the default on repayment by the borrowers.

The installment loans bear interest ranging from 20%
to 40% per annum (2013: 20% to 40% per annum).
The repayment terms of the loans are negotiated on an
individual basis.

BEBHEHR—
8

AETA—

B REDRME

EWER
rEE

2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E-=F
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
A 1,266 1,266
s 1,463 1,464
A 4,791 4,791
7,520 7,521
(6,908) (6,909)
612 612

BEERDRBEAZEERFNREGFOSE(ZT—=F:
05FE)FE  WEAR-ZT——FRiNHEER - ZFEFIA
fERAMER Z MERIBIEERR - ARERAERER &
BIBERRRERER -

DEERTDRFNENF2EZ40E(ZT—=5F : FF
KNFEZE40E)FE - ZEFERZEFTHREREE

2
pEal °
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24.

LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, REWERE)

(a)

(b)

()

The aging analysis of the past due loan receivables (a)
that are not impaired is as follows:

In more than two years ZIME

The Directors consider that the carrying values of (b)
loan receivables approximate to their fair values.

The Group has provided fully for all loan (c)
receivables that are determined as not recoverable.

Based on past experience, the management

believed that no impairment allowance is necessary

in respect of the remaining balances as there had

not been a significant change in credit quality and

the Group has hold collaterals over these balances.

The movement in the provision of loan receivables

is as follows:

At 1 April HEOA—H
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE
Reversal of impairment loss B & B
At 31 March R=A=+—H

WARE 2 BN E TR DT T

2014 2013
—E2-lmF —B-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TR
612 612

AR B E AT AT S 2 B MR R B
i - BB AR - SEERR  MRAEEE
FU BB EMEARYEAREARLITLBIE
AR - B B I LR - AR
HEESBT ;

2014 2013
—ET—-mF —E-=F
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
FTHT FHT
6,909 6,904

- 5

(1) -

6,908 6,909
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25.

190

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES
AND CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cash and cash equivalents include the following

components:
Cash at banks and on hand IRITIES NFERS
Fixed deposits TEHAER

B SHEMRERTTIER
—BNERER >
—FEBNERER

Less: Pledged bank deposits
— Current portion
— Non-current portion

Bank balances and cash as stated B17&#A T Rz P52 4R
in the statements of financial THESBREIRS
position

A IRITE Y

Less: Bank overdraft

Cash and cash equivalents ReRHReEEER

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
month depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term bank deposits at fixed rates ranging from 0.03%
t0 0.35% (2013: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. The
carrying amounts of the fixed deposits, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash and bank overdraft
approximate to their fair values.

25. CEMERTER

RelReFEBREBRENTRA

BOEBRRRSURBRTER

Group Company
REE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—mEF —E-Z=F —E—MmF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHET TET THET FHExT
138,620 30,788 93,292 9,824
18,385 329,311 - 181,647
157,005 360,099 93,292 191,471
(49,535) - (47,680) -
(4,738) (6,714) - -
(54,273) (6,714) (47,680) -
102,732 353,385 45,612 191,471
- (342) - (182)
102,732 353,043 45,612 191,289

IRITERRIBET BRITERFERIVZBF L - RTAE
BHEFIRSHRKMEH— B E—EABRTE 2 R8T
Koo RIBEE IER R TE RUEN T0.03[EE0.35F
(ZE—=F 10.01EZR0.35E) 2 ETEFFIEFFE 258 o
EHEZ - DEFRITER  BTEHRESUARIRITEA
S REEEEAFEEE -
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25.

26.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES
AND CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT (continued)

Bank balances and cash, fixed deposits and pledged bank

deposits mainly include the following foreign currencies:

USD E
SGD FrnsgoT
JPY A
CAD i
Pound Sterling (GBP) B

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits were classified as non-current assets and current
assets in accordance with the repayment term of the
secured borrowings.

INVENTORIES
Group

The amounts represent food and beverage and other
consumables for hotel operations.

25. EEARTER  RTEBRRRESURBITER(F)
RITHEBRE S  BEEAREERRTEREZESRET
BN -

Group Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—ZT—F —ET—=5F —E—-OF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHET TET THET FHExT
32,788 2,030 66 54
52,056 342,483 24,461 190,237
9,946 12,022 7,517 3
- 608 - 474
97 - - -
BRI ESRERRITER ARG R TR EE 2 R1TE
B2EH - FRREFEMEE 2 EXPH LB RIERY

2. #E

rEH

ZABIEEE RS R 2 ER R EMEE R o
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27. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 27. BEBFEYE

The Group’s carrying amounts of properties under FEEBRRPSFEVEZRAERRE
development for sale comprise:
Group rEE
2014 2013
—Z2-lmEF —B-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT FERT
At 1 April REA—H - 1,099,541
Additions NE - 121,666
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) RIELEMB AR (Hit46) - (1,246,725)
Exchange realignments PE 34 R - 25,518
At 31 March R=RA=+—H - -
During the year ended 31 March 2013, finance costs of BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HI-%%E ' 410,326,000/ T
approximately HK$10,326,000 has been capitalised in ZRABERACRERPHFEMETBTERN -
properties under development for sale.
After the deemed disposal of interests in SingHaiyi REZE-Z—=FZA=Z1+—HIFERIEHEF 5L
during the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has no Wi AEEVERERERTPEEWE -
outstanding properties under development for sale.
28. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 28. BEHEZEE
Group REH
2014 2013
- —B-=fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHERT FBT
At 1 April HmA—A - -
Transfer from investment properties (Note 19) B EYEEE(F/719) 6,450 -
At 31 March R=RA=+—H
6,450 -
Subsequent to the year end date, the Group has REFEAR  AEEETHREHEZSREWE - 1587
completed the disposal of the investment properties. AR A ISR M FES4(d)

Details are set out in Note 54(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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29.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS  29.

AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables & S WA
Less: Allowance for doubtful B REREAE
debts
Trade receivables, net of S REWGIE -
allowance for doubtful debts HBR RARREE
Other receivables, deposits and — E A0 fEUFKIE
prepayments e KA FIA
Less: Allowance for doubtful A REREHE
debts

HAibERIE - e MR
(ESEREIGS
R (HaE)

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, net of allowance
for doubtful debts (Note)

TENHEEHE
—BIEREL S (M1at18)

Prepaid lease payments
— current portion (Note 18)

Note: At 31 March 2013, included in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments are mainly the money kept in broker’s
account regarding the sale of SingHaiyi shares amounted to
approximately HK$63,463,000 (equivalent to approximately
$$10,132,000).

The Directors considered that the fair values of trade
and other receivables are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because these amounts have short
maturity period on their inception.

B —EER
S REMBRRE  RERFEMNRE
Group Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-mE —B-=F —B-WOF —B-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTHET THERT THET FHBT
18,040 18,029 - -
(10,056) (10,056) - -
7,984 7,973 - -
52,848 81,627 10,565 1,121
(11,884) (12,581) (510) -
40,964 69,046 10,055 1,121
477 477 - -
49,425 77,496 10,055 1,121

Mt : RZE—Z=F=ZA=+—8 Bt AEMEKIE RERE
NRAXZREFERCLEFABHEMERRN ZHEL
63,463,000/8 7T (FHE 70 4710,132,00057 i1 7T ) °

EERREFHREMBUFREZ A FEEAREELEE
RER  ARFeRRELREREIHA -
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29.

194

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group allows an average credit period to its trade
customers are as follows:
Hotel operations 60 days
Financing operations 30 days

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on
invoices dates, which approximated the respective dates
on which revenue was recognised.

0-60 days 0£260H
61-90 days 612900
Over 90 days 90H A E

The aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0-60 days 0&260H
61-90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days 908 AL

29.

ESRAMERRIE RERFANTR(E)

AEBGTHESZEPZFHERHNT

B S 608
BEEY 30H

AT RE S RUGRENGRERERZEZAMZT) 2 Rk

AT (R E W iR B AR A

2014 2013

—E-mF —E-=fF

HK$’°000 HK$°000

FExT FET

414 256

38 57

7,532 7,660

7,984 7,973

RS HEAEHEaREEREZE S RKFUERE N
T

2014 2013

—E—-mEF —E-=F

HK$’°000 HK$°000

FEx FHET

38 57

7,532 7,660

7,570 7,717




Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e ISR

E_E-ME=ZA=+—HItFE

29.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default. Trade receivables that
were past due but not impaired as the Group has hold
collaterals over the balances. Based on past experience,
management believes that no additional provision for
impairment is necessary as there is no significant change
in credit quality and the balances are considered to be
fully recoverable.

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
determined as not recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for trade
receivables

1 April
Impairment losses recognised

31 March

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade
receivables were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties.

mA—H
EHERRERE1R

29.

=A=+—H

ESRAMERRIE RERFANTR(E)

DARBHRERE2EZERBFATBRAE IR FIE
Rz EF - ESREFORCD BEEEE - TTHRA
SEMZSERPBTEETR - REAELR - EREMRE
THRELBINRERE  AEEERRFEAEZARR
SR 2 EE -

AEERCEE R TAIWE 2 FE RUGRIR 2 BIEL B -

EZRUSAREREZEE

2014 2013

- —B-=F

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

TEx TER

10,056 10,023

- 33

10,056 10,056

REEHREER  AREZEHREFBSERIEE S
A o ERIRERKSRE DR B RS TP HR -
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29.

30.

196

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for other
receivables

1 April MA—H

Bad debts written-off BRI
Impairment losses recognised EERRERER
Exchange realignment BE 5 SRR

31 March =A=+—H

29. ESRAEMEWFIE RERFANFEE)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities held for trading: B & 2 FHES ¢

Equity securities PR T8 55
—in Hong Kong -5
Equity securities PR T8 55
- outside Hong Kong —BBAIN
Market value of listed securities &% > f{&

The listed securities are held for trading purpose.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

presented within the section on operating activities as

part of changes in working capital in the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

BRI BR R = 2 B
Group Company
REE SN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-—mF —E-=F —E2-mE —E-=F
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FHT
12,581 12,382 - -
(28) (187) - -
- 557 510 -
(669) (171) - -
11,884 12,581 510 -
30. BRAFPESABRBEZERMEE
Group Company
REE SN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F —E-nmF —EB-Z=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHExT
21,824 18,311 21,821 18,307
104,526 40,744 50,624 -
126,350 59,055 72,445 18,307
ITTEAREEERR - RATEAABRZEREER

MEEBASTINESARERBRNZ BEASHH LD -
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31, BESRHMEMNREBEURESEA
Group Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—-mF —E-=F —E—-IOF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
FTHERT THERT THERT FERT
Trade payables B 5 ERFIE 153 169 - -
Accrued interests on non- FEMIRRES 2 FERT
convertible bonds (Note 36) R B(H5#36) - 1,924 - 1,924
Other payables and accrued Hith & (< 5RIE K e T
expenses & 8,734 6,813 1,862 1,329
8,887 8,906 1,862 3,253
The credit periods granted by its suppliers was ranging REE s HEMETAEE 2 REPNFI0Z60H(ZF
from 30 to 60 days (2013: 30 to 60 days). The following is —Z=F :305608) - U TN REZENRENREHAMEE
an aged analysis of the trade payables presented based on HIRBEZAHZT] 2 BRE DT -
g y pay P
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:
Group Company
REE /NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-nmEF —E-=5 —B-mF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
FERT FTHER FTHERT FERT
0-60 days 0ZE60H 153 166 - -
61-90 days 61E290H - - - -
Over 90 days 90H A E - 3 - -
153 169 - -
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables and B o LHMENTEALESERZ RREROERLRF
accruals approximate to their fair values. (E
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32.

198

BORROWINGS

Secured borrowings

Non-current
Mortgage loans

Current
Bank borrowings
Mortgage loans

Total borrowings

EEHFEE

FERE
RIBER

wE
RITHEE
HIBER

rRiEE

At the end of the reporting period, the above borrowings

were repayable as follows:

Within one year

More than one year but not

more than two years

More than two years but not

more than five years
More than five years

Less: Amount due within

one year shown under

current liabilities

Amount shown under
non-current liabilities

—%FNR

BB —FENEB
M F

BEBMEENER
hF

HBRF

B RBRE T —FRE
i

FERBAETZHIEA

32. fBE
Group Company
AR e
2014 2013 2014 2013
—g-mE —®-=F —B-NF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FHERT FTHET FHET
99,590 61,986 - -
49,535 955 47,680 -
52,181 88,573 - -
101,716 89,528 47,680 -
201,306 151,514 47,680 -
REERRAER - Pl EERIA T FEER -
Group Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-—mF —E-=F —2-mE —EB-Z=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
THET FTET FET FHET
101,716 89,528 47,680 -
9,352 6,829 - -
29,830 23,867 - -
60,408 31,290 - -
201,306 151,514 47,680 -
(101,716) (89,528) (47,680) -
99,590 61,986 - -
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32.

BORROWINGS (continued)

Group

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also

32. fRE(#E)

REH

equal to contracted interest rates) on the borrowings are

as follows:
2014
—E-F

Fixed Rate Floating Rate
EE 28
Bank borrowings 0.995% —1.356% N/A
RITIEE 0.995E —1.3562 T A
Mortgage loans 2.15% HIBOR (1 month)
ZIBEN 215 +0.7%, HIBOR

(3 months) + 1.25%,
1.5% over Bank’s
cost of funds, SIBOR
(3 months) + 1.75%,
1.75% over Bank’s
SWAP Offer rate

(3 months), 1.75%
over Bank’s SWAP
Offer rate
EBRITEAERE
(—{@A)tno.7E
EBRTEAERE
(Z@A)1.25E
SRITESHAMLSE -
I ERITRIZERE
(Z@A) .75
IRITEH SRR
(Z@A) .75
IRITEH SRR
n1.752

fEE 2 ERNEEE (TESRETHZME)MT

2013
—E-=F
Fixed Rate Floating Rate
EL b= =\

N/A 1% over Bank’s cost
TiE A of funds
RITES KA INE

N/A HIBOR (1 month) +
TEA 0.7%, HIBOR
(3 months) + 1.25%,
1.5% over Bank’s
cost of funds, SIBOR
(3 months) + 1.75%,
1.5% over Bank’s
SWAP Offer rate
(3 months), 1.75%
over Bank’s SWAP
Offer rate
BBRITRAZERE
(—1@R)o.7E -
BBRITRAZE
FE(=MEA)
IN12SE -~ $R1T
BEERBAMLSE -
g iRITRIZ
FE(=MEA)
N17SE - $R1T
12 BB (R =
(=EA)I1L5E -
IRITIRHA S| e )
n.7sE
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32. BORROWINGS (continued) 32. fBE(#&)
Company PN
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to RITEE 2 BRFE(TFEERE T2 FE)NF0.995F
contracted interest rates) on the bank borrowings are £1.356[F

ranging from 0.995% to 1.356%.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated BEZEREBEN T EE BB
in the following currencies:

Group Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—-mF —E-=F —E—-OF —E-=5F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHET TET THET FHExT
HKS$ BT 50,946 26,891 26,510 -
SGD FrnsgoT 129,190 124,623 - -
USD E 21,170 - 21,170 -
201,306 151,514 47,680 -
The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate to BEZEREEEENTEEE
their fair values.
33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 33. REEAFRIE
Group REE
2014 2013
—E-pmE —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERMENDNR -
Current liabilities mENEE 103 -
Non-current liabilities JERBBE 345 -
448 -
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33.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE
(continued)

In September 2012, the Group leased motor vehicle
under a finance lease arrangement. The average lease
term is 7 years. Interest rates underlying all obligations
under a finance lease are fixed at respective contract
dates is 3.66% per annum. These leases have no terms
of renewal or purchase options and escalations clauses.
It classified as finance lease as the term of lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group leased
another motor vehicle under a finance lease arrangement.
The average lease term is 5 years. Interest rates
underlying all obligations under a finance lease are fixed
at respective contract dates is 1.88% per annum. These
leases have no terms of renewal or purchase options
and escalations clauses. It classified as finance lease as
the term of lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group.

33.

BEREEH)

R-FB——FNA ALEREREHELHHETE -
FOEMA7E - HERERSR THARE ZFNERE
BAKNAMEIIR366E - ZEFHEANUBEMNBERE
R ERE B BRHEGRR - AREERFEBRED A
BZERLEFBEETAEE  RESEARERS -

RBE-Z-OF=A=+t—HLFE AEERERE
MEZHHEES —@W1E - PHEAMASE - HEREM
ERTHAAEZFNXREB AR HER R1.88E -
ZERNL EENLBE R BRI NERESDHBGER -
R EERRGRAR AR AR EEHREET AR
CMESBRARERE -
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33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

(continued)

Group

Amount payable under RMEEESE T ENRE
finance lease

Within one year —FR

More than one year but not B —F{E R
more than two years RIES

More than two years but not BB R R
more than five years hEF

Less: Future finance charges W ARRRE
Present value of lease obligations FAE&E&IEIRE

Less: Amount due for settlement 5 @ +—1{& A3 R %IE]

within 12 months (shown B2 FIE(R
under current liabilities) mEBEEIIR)

Amount due for settlement after +—{&AEIHEE Y
12 months IE

The Group’s obligations under a finance lease are secured
by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

202

33, BEERE@E)

REH

Minimum lease

Present value of minimum

payments lease payments

BREHENRK BREHENRZRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—ZT—F —ET—=5F —E—-OF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FHET TET THET FHExT
113 - 103 -
113 - 103 -
264 - 242 -
490 - 448 -
(42) - N/A i A -
448 - 448 -
(103) -
345 -

REEZ MEREREALEAZ HEEERPERER
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33.

34.

35.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 33.

(continued)

Finance lease obligations include the following currency:

SGD FANE T

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount due to a director, Mr. Chan Heng Fai,
is non-trading in nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Group

SingHaiyi has issued convertible bonds on 9 November
2010. The principal terms of the convertible bonds are as
follows:

Date of issue 9 November 2010

Aggregate principal ~ SGD16,320,240

amount

97 percent of the
principal amount

Issue price

Interest rate Nil

Maturity date 4 years from the date of issue
SGDO0.03 (adjusted to
SGDO0.01151 as a result of the
rights issue of SingHaiyi in
November 2011)

Conversion price

34.

35.

“E-NEFR
BB AR (H)
BMEHEAERETIER -
2014 2013
—E2-lmF —B-=F
’000 ’000
Fr T
73 -
RBR—BEEHRR
RRESMEBLEZFTRFBRSME - BEERF - %

BRBERBENRER -

R ES

A%

HREN T —FF+ - ANRBETTHRRES - A
IfESH 2 EBERAT

BTHH —E-ZF+—FNH

REEEE 16,320,240 H13% T

BTE KEF797%

B=x i

EEcs B 77 B BERT4F

HiE 0.03%7 13 T (EFT &%
R-_ZT—F+—A
EITHEMAR A

0.01151¥ 3% 7T)
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35.

204

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

At 31 March 2012, SingHaiyi has approximately of
SGD13,320,000 outstanding convertible bonds, in
which SGD13,239,677 are held by Xpress Credit. The
outstanding convertible bonds of SGD13,239,677 can
be converted into approximately 1,150.3 million shares
of SingHaiyi at any time from the date of issue to 8
November 2014.

After elimination of these convertible bonds which issued
to Xpress Credit, the movements of liability and equity
components of convertible bonds are as follow:

35.

ARRES ()

R-_E——F=A=1+—H  FERHNE#13,320,000%7
T2 IR ES BARITE - EH13,239,6773 KT
HREREERA 13,239,677 I3 T2 RI1T{E AJ 2R E
AR EEITEHEE T —NF+— AN\ B LM ABER
HARA491,150,300,0000% 7 &3R8 (5 °

REFBT THREEZZETRBRESRR - JBRERES
ZBERESEHOBEIT

Liability component Equity component Total
=B BEBD st
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
=F-mF —F-=F —F-OF —F-=F —F-OF —F-=F
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
THEx FTHET THERT FTEx THERT THEx
At 1 April REA—H - 339 - 190 - 529
Effective interest expense BRMEFX - 4 - - - 4
Conversion (Note) RBHEE) - (128) - (71) - (199)
Deemed disposal of BIEHENB AR
subsidiaries (Note 46) (Hizt46) - (215) - (119) - (334)
At 31 March R=A=+—H - - - - - -
Note: Mzt -

On 18 April 2012 and 27 April 2012, Xpress Credit and other
convertible bonds holders of SingHaiyi had converted convertible
bonds with a principal amount of approximately SGD13,240,000
and SGD$31,000 into shares of SingHaiyi respectively.

After the deemed disposal of interests in SingHaiyi, the Group has
no outstanding convertible bonds.

Ro-B——EmMA+N\BR-_ZE——$MA-++H  BREERH
FRHEM AR E S B AL D BB AN S5 513,240,000 37 03 7T K&
31,0007 M3 7T 2 AR E H AR AFTE IR ©

RIBEHEMRERIR - ARBEWEARITR 2 A RRES -
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Note: (continued)

(a)

Conversion period

The convertible bonds may be converted at the prevailing
conversion price into validly issued, fully-paid and
unencumbered conversion shares, at the option of the
bondholder, at any time after the date of issue of the
convertible bonds up to the maturity date, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds.
The conversion shares will, upon allotment and issue, rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing shares, save for
any dividends, rights, allotments or other distributions,
the record rate for which precedes the date of issue of the
conversion shares.

If the convertible bonds are not converted on or before
its maturity date, bondholder shall have rights to request
SingHaiyi to redeem all (but not less than all) of those
bondholders’ convertible bonds on the maturity date at 100
percent of the unpaid principal amount on maturity date.

Valuation of liability component

At the date of issue, the convertible bonds were valued
by Avista, an independent qualified professional valuer,
not connected with the Group. The fair value of liability
component was estimated as the present value of a
contractually determined stream of future cash flows,
upon maturity redemption, discounted at the market
yield of bonds with similar credit status and taking into
consideration the country risk premium and liquidity risk
premium adjustments if appropriate. In subsequent periods,
the liability component is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The effective interest rate of
the liability component on initial recognition is 15.1% per
annum.

ARRES ()

(a)

Bt - (4&)

RIBFATHRE S Z R RAGIE - BESRHEATRERTRRE
FETRHZERETH A ILIREA - BER AR ESF RS A
ZHBMBERBAARET BB BERBEZ KRR
0o ABMBROBRERRETRARERNDERNTAZERSE
AT - MR RARCER B B R AR 31T B HIRT 2 (ARG -
M~ DB KA D IRERIM o

R H A2 Al R LR AT A E S - B AANEER
FHERNEHMBERE A ZRENALREI00%BEEZSES
FEAZZ2#B(MIERED ) AT E S -

BE#D 2 fHE
RETRE akErmEASETEE I BTAERE

SAERMERETHE - B EEROZATERANEE
ZAKRERERE  UHEHERRRAUEETIRZES
SRR - AR ABRRRRGERRBDE S RREER
B(MAE) - A& AEED IR KA AERRF SOEFI8R o
BEHD 2 ERFREYIHERRISAE
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36. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Group and Company

Pursuant to the prospectus of the Company dated 17
February 2011, the Company issued non-convertible
bonds with a principal amount of approximately
HK$105,633,000 on 11 March 2011. The principal
terms of the non-convertible bonds are as follows:

Date of issue 11 March 2011

Aggregate principal ~ HK$105,633,000
amount

Denomination in HK$100
multiple of

Interest rate 15% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears

Maturity date 10 March 2016

Redemption at the The Company may redeem all

option of or some of the non-convertible

the Company bonds from the first anniversary
to the maturity date, subject
to giving no less than 30 nor
more than 60 days of advance
notice, at 101% of their principal
amount, together with accrued
interest

206

36.

FABRRES
AEBERALQT
$Z\\ET$ET)§Z’X£\\ET =] /HH;%:?——QE:H +‘t H 2%;6%5

BRZZE——F= A+ HETALFH105,633,000/5 7T
IR ES o JERRES 2 EBIERAOT ¢

BITHH —E——F=A+—H
REHE 105,633,000/ 7T

LR HEHEE 10077T

B= BFISE  §¥FRE—R
G ZE-RF=ATH

HAARREEE AQFAEEEFAZEELE
HIEA - EBEETPRI0EHTE
ROBZRBAT @ IHEASHEZ
101% GER R&TH 8. & 2l 2 2 sk 3
D IERHRRRE S
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NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 36. AR ESR(E)
The movement of the liability component of non- JERMRES 2 BEBIRNEERZEBAT -
convertible bonds for the year is as follow:
2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
THERT FET
At 1 April HUAE—H 107,557 106,501
Interest expense charged for the year FRRR 2 FIEZH 1,346 16,901
Interest expense paid for the year FAXMZFEZ (3,270) (15,845)
Early redemption ERED (105,633) -
At 31 March R=ZA=1+—H - 107,557
Analysis for reporting purposes as: BMEHRENINE
2014 2013
—E-pmE —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current portion — principal mEE D —AE - 105,633
Current portion — accrued interests (Note 31)  RE)EH — Rt FI B (H/2#31) - 1,924
- 107,557

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 28
March 2013, all outstanding non-convertible bonds
(the “Bond”) with aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$105,633,000 would be redeemed
on 30 April 2013 in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Bonds. The withdrawal of the listing of
the Bonds on the Stock Exchange had became effective
on 16 May 2013.

BUMANFBHAE-Z

—=F=ZA-t+NBZREME

RIEAR S #%84105,633,0008 T2 2

F([ME#H ) ZER B - BN

EBARATIEIE AT RARE
—=ZFMA=+H

O - EHFCN T —=FH A +/NB P ATREE -

H
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37.

208

DEFERRED TAXATION
Group

The movements on the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised by the Group are as follows:

At 1 April 2012
Credited to consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Note 9)

At 31 March 2013
Charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Note 9)

At 31 March 2014

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$452,525,000 (2013: HK$386,528,000).
The Company has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$250,506,000 (2013:
HK$159,603,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit stream. The whole
amount of estimated unused tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

37. EEBIE

REH

AEERRZ TBREHAB BRI

R-ZE——FHA—H
PG A B (ME9)

WZZ—=F=H=+—H
B A BRaERINR(A9)

R-®-mE=f=+—A

RBEHEEE

Other taxable
temporary
differences
Hoth FERBL

HrERE
HK$°000
FET

277

(277)

270

270

B AEEAR{AARDAREABERY

452,525,000 7T ( —Z T — = : 386,528,000 7T ) ° 7
NAEBHETRE AR IEE1E4250,506,0008 T(=F—=
F 1 159,603,000/ 70) © R AREETER BEREFIIR - i)
WHERZSEHEBERRELHEEE - G KB AHE
EEREEEEERALE -
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38.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Group

As at 31 March 2014, the Group obtained credit
facilities of approximately HK$432,274,000
(2013: HK$381,783,000) and the Group utilised
of approximately HK$201,754,000 (2013:
HK$151,514,000) as at 31 March 2014 which are
secured by:

—  its land and buildings and prepaid lease payments
(Notes 17 and 18) with a total carrying value
of approximately HK$22,648,000 (2013:
HK$23,151,000).

- its investment properties (Note 19) with carrying
values of approximately HK$589,419,000 (2013:
HK$511,584,000).

- its bank deposits (Note 25) of approximately
HK$54,273,000 (2013: HK$6,714,000).

- its motor vehicle (Note 17) with carrying value of
approximately HK$861,000 (2013: HK$ Nil).

38.

BERA

AEE

HE-ZT-NFE=ZA=+—H0 A£EENSBEEREYD
432,274,000 7T ( —ZF — =4 : 381,783,000 7T ) * I
2 EA4201,754,00078 T( — T — =4 : 151,514,000/5
T 0 BEAFIETIA T A S IR -

— BEE 4 1E 422,648,000 T (& — = F -
23,151,000 70) 2 T RIEF LA RFBEA A E KA
(M5E175218) ©

—  BE T A %4 589,419,000 % T ( — E — = & :
511,584,000%70) 2 I E W (MiFE19) »

- #954,273,000/8 C( —ZZ—=4F : 6,714,000/87T) 2
RITER(MIRE2S) ©

— BREEAI861,0008 0 ( —T— =4 : T8 IT) 2 /A8
(MF7E17) o
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39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. BAE
Company PN
Par value Number of
per share ordinary shares Amount
BREE ZEREE ax-C
HKS$ HK$°000
BT FET
Authorised: EERA
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=F=A=+—H 0.01 1,000,000,000,000 10,000,000
At 31 March 2014 (Note) R-ZE—NF=A=+—H
(Hrat) N/ATRE A N/AFERA N/AREF
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAZRAE :
At 1 April 2012 R-E——FMA—H 0.01 3,096,961,456 30,970
Exercise of share options (Note 40) 1T{EFERAE(H1:%40) 0.01 431,122,416 4,311
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 0.01 3,528,083,872 35,281
Exercise of share options (Note 40) {T{EEEARE(H15740) 0.01 74,573,300 746
Transfer upon abolition of BER-_ZE—NF=H=H
par value under new Hong Kong 4307 # & A mEL]
Companies Ordinance effective RERE(ERF R
on 3 March 2014 - - 934,924
At 31 March 2014 (Note) R-E-NE=A=+-—H
(B17t) N/ATRER 3,602,657,172 970,951
Note: The Company has no authorised share capital and its share Wit BMBARFHEOI(Fe22E) ARz BBIZT—MF=/A=
have no par value from the commencement date of the new ) - RARWEEERA - ERHIVEEE -
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 (i.e. 3 March
2014).
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40.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(1)

Share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2003
(“2003 Share Option Scheme”)

On 9 May 2003, a share option scheme (the
“2003 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company. The purpose of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. The 2003 Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from
that date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.
Eligible persons of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme include any employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) and
any suppliers, consultants, agents, advisors,
shareholders, customers, partners or business
associates who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares
which, when aggregated with shares subject to
any other share option scheme(s), must not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible
person in the 2003 Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to the shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

40.
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40.

212

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(1)

Share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2003 (“2003
Share Option Scheme”) (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
to any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time and with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to the shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determined by the Directors,
and commences on a specified date and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of the offer of the share options or the expiry date
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, whichever is
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the Directors, but may not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer
of the grant, which must be a trading dayj; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

40.
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40.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(i)

Share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2003 (“2003
Share Option Scheme”) (continued)

Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the
exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded by the Company in the share
premium account. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted
from the register of outstanding options.

Pursuant to the Company’s circular dated 30 July
2013 (the “Circular”), the 2003 Share Option
Scheme was expired on 8 May 2013.

40.
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 40. HBRRESTEI(E)
(i) Share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2003 (“2003 (i) R-BE=FERTANBRHZEREFE(=ZZ
Share Option Scheme”) (continued) =FBRETED (')
The following table discloses details of the TERBEFANRE ST =FHERETEIMET S
Company’s share option in issue under the 2003 AR BB

Share Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE
31 March 2014 Share option  Outstanding at Exercise during Lapsed Outstanding at
R-B-NFE=A=+—H type 1 April 2013 the year during the year 31 March 2014
R-B—Z=F R-Z—mF
SHEAL mA—H =A=+-A
Name or category of participant AR IR R 1 RATHE FRETRE FREY 8 RATHE
Directors =
Mr. Chan Heng Fai [EHE Lo 2004(b) 123,885,800% ~ (123,885,800) _
2006(a) 49,008,000 (36,800,000) (12,208,000) -
Mr. Chan Tong Wan BB 2004(b) 15,313,500  (15,313,500) - -
2006(a) 5,104,500 (5,104,500) - -
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter Fogks 2004(b) 3,062,700 - (3,062,700) -
Sub-total N 196,374,500  (57,218,000)  (139,156,500) -
Employees and others EEREAM
In aggregate A5 2004(b) 11,231,572 (11,229,900) (1,672) -
2006(a) 6,125,400% (6,125,400) - —#
Sub-total INE 17,356,972 (17,355,300) (1,672) -
Total @t 213,731,472 (74,573,300)  (139,158,172) -
Weighted average exercise prices BREMEFRY
of share options (HKS) THEEGET) 0.1569 0.1551 0.1579 N/AT A
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40.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(1)

40.

Share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2003 (“2003
Share Option Scheme”) (continued)

31 March 2013
M-B-=#=A=+-A

Name or category of participant

Directors
Mr. Chan Heng Fai

Mr. Chan Tong Wan

Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Sub-total

Employees and others
In aggregate

Sub-total

Total

Weighted average exercise prices
of share options (HKS)

28EAL
R RIER

E=
BRIEIBSEE

BREUESE

REmLL

B E L

EEEE

gt

EEREHA

Akt

MBI EY Y
TREGER)

type
R R B

2004(b)
2006(a)
2010(a)

2004(b)
2006(a)

2004(a)
2004(b)
2009(b)
2004(b)

2004(b)

BRESTEI(A)

Annual Report 2014

B —EER

(i) R-BZE=FHANBRAZERESE( ==

=FRRETE D ()

Number of share options
BRERE

Share option Outstanding at Exercise during

Cancelled

Outstanding at

1 April 2012 the year  during the year 31 March 2013
R-E——F R-E-—=F%F
A—H =A=+—H
o RATHE FRETE FREH 1o RATE
123,885,800% - - 123,885,800%
49,008,000 - - 49,008,000
340,000,000  (340,000,000) - -
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
5,104,500 - - 5,104,500
15,313,500 (15,313,500) - -
35,731,500 (35,731,500) - _x
18,376,200  (18,376,200) - -
4,594,050 (4,594,050) - -
3,062,700 - - 3,062,700
610,389,750  (414,015,250) - 196,374,500
21,255,138 (10,023,566) - 11,231,572
10,209,000* (4,083,600) - 6,125,400*
3,000,000 (1,500,000) (1,500,000)** -
7,500,000 (1,500,000) (6,000,000)** -
41,964,138 (17,107,166) (7,500,000) 17,356,972
652,353,888 (431,122,416) (7,500,000) 213,731,472
0.1423 0.1351 0.1408 0.1569
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 40. HBRRESTEI(E)
(i)  Share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2003 (“2003 i) RECZBZE=FIAANBEMAZBREAE(=2=
Share Option Scheme”) (continued) =FERETE]D E)
Details of the share options are as follows: B 2 IR
Share option 2014 2013
type Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price  Exercise price
—E-NE —E-=F
BREER REAH AT 1| 1EE
2004(a) 1 November 2004 1 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1567 HK$0.1567
“TEMFE+—A—H —EENFE+—-A-HE-Z-=FhAN\H 0.15678 7T 0.1567/87C
2004(b)* 15 November 2004 20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1583 HK$0.1583
“EENFE+—-A+RE  ZEEMEt-A-tHE-Z-=FRANA 0.1583% 7T 0.15837% 7T
2005 27 May 2005 28 May 2005 to 8§ May 2013 HK$0.1469 HK$0.1469
“ETRFREATER ZERRFAIACTN\REZE-=F1A/\H 0.14697 T 0.1469/8 7T
2006(a)* 22 May 2006 22 May 2006 to 8§ May 2013 HKS$0.1534 HK$0.1534
“ETFRAZ+=H CEERFRACTZHEZE—=FHANA 0.1534%8 T 0.1534%7T
2009(b) 18 February 2009 18 February 2009 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.0684 HK$0.0684
ZEENFZATN\H —ETNFARTNBEZZE—=FRA/H 0.0684%& T 0.068475 7T
2010(a) 6 August 2010 6 August 2010 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1340 HK$0.1340
—Z-ZF/\AXA —E-ZF\ARRE-Z-—=FHANR 0.13405 T 0.134077T
2010(b) 14 September 2010 14 September 2010 to 13 September 2016 HK$0.1400 HK$0.1400
—E-TFAATHEA —T-ZFNATRAE=Z - FNAA+=A 0.140078 1T 0.1400/87C
2011(a) 25 March 2011 1 April 2012 to 1 May 2016 HK$0.1410 HK$0.1410
“2——%=AZ+HA EBE-FNA-HEZE-FOA-H 0.1410 T 0.1410/87C

216

The exercise of these options was subject to the
condition that the audited revenue of the Group on
any financial year during the life of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme was not less than HK$1 billion,
which is calculated based on the accounting policies
and presentation adopted by the Group at the date
of grant of option. Since the audited revenue of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 was over
HK$1 billion, the above condition for the share option
granted on 15 November 2004 is satisfied and those
options are eligible to exercise.

7,500,000 share options were cancelled due to
termination of services provided by advisors during
the year ended 31 March 2013.

The exercise of these options was according to the
following schedule:

a.  20% of the option shares be exercisable at the
date of acceptance; and

b.  the balance will be exercisable in equal
yearly installments over 4 years with the first
installment commencing 1 January 2006.

%

TEZEERE S G RAAEER —TT=FFER
A B E RN BFE R EEZRETEIR
10EB T I DHERASERBRERHE Elﬁﬂmiﬁﬂ
ZEABREZNAAGE - AREE—FTE)\F=A
=t RIEFEAEEZERZREBRI0EET - L
MR —EENE+—ATHAREZ BREGIE&E
R B SRR TITME -

7,500,000 ERED ERZEBERNEBE-_S—=F=
H + A I FE AL R RS MR o
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a.  FEREZ20%AI N EAE AITR R

b. HTERESNNFRAGFEHBPHSTTE  F—
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(1)

Share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2003 (“2003
Share Option Scheme”) (continued)

The vesting period of other share options is
the period from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, there
is no remaining exercisable share option
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
(2013: 213,731,472) as the 2003 Share Option
Scheme was expired on 8 May 2013. As at 31
March 2013, the exercise in full of the remaining
exercisable share options represented the
subscription for 213,731,472 ordinary shares in
the Company at approximately HK$33,539,000,
and these outstanding options with approximately
one month remaining contractual life.

74,573,300 share options were exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:
431,122,416 share options).
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40.

BRESTEI(A)

(i)

R-BE=FHANARAZERETE(=22
=FERETE D (#)
HE-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE RZZT—ZF
FNAAHE - ZE—ZEFAA+TEAR=ZE—F
AT REAMELEERECHFAFESRNA
18,480,0007 7T * 294,00078 7T 12 592,0007 7T ° &t
HAFEZBABIRAT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 40.
(1) Share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2003 (“2003
Share Option Scheme”) (continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2011, the estimated
fair values of the options granted on 6 August
2010, 14 September 2010 and 25 March 2011 are
approximately HK$18,480,000, HK$294,000 and
HK$592,000 respectively. The inputs for calculating
the fair value are shown as follow:
Grant date
R BEH
Calculation model srEER
Exercise price TEE
Expected volatility FEHAR IR
Expected life (year) FEHAFHA ()
Risk-free rate R B R =
Expected dividend yield AHREE
Number of share options granted T HERERE
Fair value per share option SREREZATE

6 August 14 September 25 March
2010 2010 2011
—E-ZF —E-EF —E——F
NARB hA+mA =A=+AH
(Note b) (Note a) (Note a)
(K15#Db) (Hizta) (Ki5ta)
Binomial model Trinomial model Trinomial model
—IEK == =15
0.1340 0.1400 0.1410
71.40% 81.80% 65.40%
2.753 6.002 4.233
0.530% 1.855% 2.221%

0% 0% 0%
400,000,000 3,000,000 7,500,000
0.0462 0.0981 0.0790

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
over the previous years.

Notes:

a) The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the
Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

b) The fair value of the share option is determined
by Avista, an independent professional qualified
valuer. The risk-free interest rate was based on yield
of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note. Expected
volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of entities with the business in which the
Group is engaged. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

In total, for the year ended 31 March 2013,
share-based compensation expense amounted
to HK$266,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BB RAARRIBERF ZREREL R IRE

TF o

Kt

a)  AEBREATERDEER BN EE R
I BREEEREST T BESRZ TREHD
£5) -

b BEEATESRBTSEAAEGEEREEE -
WABRFIEIATENELS HH AR - BRI IR
ARFAEMEG 2 RRE L REET - BREBE
BEETEBHR TRASRTES -

GERE BET-—-F-A=+—HLFE-
& BRI MER X 55266,00087T - Bt AiRRBas
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40.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(1)

Share option scheme adopted on 28 August 2013
(“New Share Option Scheme”)

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company. The purpose of the New Share
Option Scheme is to motivate eligible persons
who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from that date,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible
persons of the New Share Option Scheme include
(i) a director or proposed director (including
an independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group; (ii) a direct or indirect
shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group; (iv) a customer, consultant, business or
joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent
or representative of any member of the Group;
(v) a person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or
any advisory, consultancy, professional services to
any member of the Group; and (vi) a landlord or
tenant (including a sub-tenant) of any member of
the Group. Subject to the terms of the New Share
Option Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at
any time during the life of the New Share Option
Scheme to offer the grant of any option to any
eligible person as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be
determined by the Board from time to time.

40.
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40.

220

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(1)

Share option scheme adopted on 28 August 2013
(“New Share Option Scheme”) (continued)

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares
which, when aggregated with shares subject to
any other share option scheme(s), must not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible
person in the New Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to the shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
to any of their respective associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the
options) of the Company. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to the
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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40.

41.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(i)  Share option scheme adopted on 28 August 2013
(“New Share Option Scheme”) (continued)
The amount payable upon the acceptance of an
option is HK$1.00. The period within which an
option must be exercised shall be such period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine
at the time of grant, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the Board, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer
of the grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share option was granted under the New Share
Option Scheme since it has been adopted on 28
August 2013.

RESERVES

Group
The amount of the Group s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, assets revaluation
reserve represents change in carrying amount of owner-
occupied property when it becomes an investment
property that will be carried at fair value. An amount of
approximately HK$11,062,000 has been released upon
disposal of that investment property.

40.

41.
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41. RESERVES (continued)

Company

At 1 April 2012 RZZE——FWA—H

Loss for the year, representing FEEE HEREEDA

total comprehensive expense for  FL &%
the year

Transfer of reserves upon

cancellation of share options (Hi:t40)
(Note 40)

Issue of share upon exercise of TR BB RE R BT TR 1D
share options (Note 40) (Hiz#40)

Share-based compensation expense = # I H EER L
recognised

At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H

Loss for the year, representing FEFE  HERNTFEZE

total comprehensive expense for  FIs; 4858
the year

Transfer of reserves upon expiry  FABERIRIE 2 b5 8 B e

of share options (Note 40) (B1:#40)

Issue of share upon exercise of P T{E BB ARAE RS 21T AR D

share options (Note 40) (B1:#40)

Transfer upon abolition of par BRER-_Z—NF=A=H
value under the new Hong Kong 447 #1 &% 2 750

Companies Ordinance effective  FEMREI{EREE
on 3 March 2014

At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-NE=A=+-—A

222

Rt HBRERERHE

41. fREE)
/N
Share-based
Share  compensation  Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total
BRARE ROBEREE RitEE st
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTiERr FTEr FEx TET
853,225 18,721 (591,0595) 280,891
- - (46,077) (46,077)
- (621) 621 -
70,507 (16,584) - 53,923
- 266 - 266
923,732 1,782 (636,511) 289,003
- - (15,723) (15,723)
- (1,414) 1,414 -
11,192 (368) - 10,824
(934,924) - - (934,924)
- - (650,820) (650,820)
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42.

OPERATING LEASES 42.

Group

(a)

As lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating
leases during the year:

Premises LIIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

Within one year —ER
In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group leases a number of rented premises
under operating leases. The leases run for an
initial period of one to five years (2013: one to
five years). None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

rEH
(a) 1EREAEA

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

FR - REBELEHEZENREEENK -

2014
—E—mEFE
HKS$°000
FET

904

2013
—z-=f
HK$°000
FHx

850

RBEHREER - NREBREE T 7 IR E R 2 TR H
HELREMEN RN 2 RERENRAT

F_EFNF(BEER
M)

2014 2013
=F-mE —B-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FRT TR
421 1,057

89 324

510 1,381

AEBERBELEERARETHEYE - BHVL SH—
FEAF(ZT—=F: —FER1F) - BEEAENES
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42. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 42, REHEE)
(b)  As lessor (b) ERMHFA
Property rental income earned during the year was FAERELZMEHRS WA R18,968,0008 T (=F
HK$18,968,000 (2013: HK$21,770,000). —=% 121,770,000 7T) °
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIREMEAER  RAEERBFTENATHEESR
contracted with tenants for the following future MRS
minimum lease payments:
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FTHBT THET
Within one year —FR 17,376 16,391
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEERF(RIEERE
R4 ) 3,156 10,612
20,532 27,003
The Group leases its investment properties (Note AEBBECLHEZHERE N EYE (KT
19) under operating lease arrangements which 19) » ZERNZNSABMAE—Z=F(—FT—=
run for an initial period of one to three years £ -BmNE) TEERESEERESAEEEE
(2013: two to four years), with an option to EERERTEY DEEMY - ZEMLMEea S
renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates RIS - ZEYLIEHARERI2. 7% (—E—=
as mutually agreed between the Group and the £ 359%)7HALERE -
respective tenants. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. The properties are expected to
generate rental yields of 2.7% (2013: 3.5%) on an
ongoing basis.
Company RAF

The Company does not have any significant operating

lease commitments or any future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2013.
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43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. EBEFREIE
Group rEH
The Group had the following capital commitments at the REERHRERBEER 2 EARAENT ¢
end of the reporting period:
2014 2013
—E—OF —E-=fF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FHET FTHERT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition BETRERN G E B mEEE 2
of investment properties contracted for but WEYEIIE 2 BARR
not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 20,186 -
Company AT
The Company does not have any significant AAFIR-—_E—NME=ZA=+—BRKR_-_ET—=H=A1
commitments at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013. =+ — B EE A EAEE -
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44.

226

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44. HARAE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities RREHRAEER  AEBEARRIGHIRHATERZ
of the Group and the Company in relation to the FABENT :
corporate guarantee provided were as follows:
Group Company
REE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-mF —B—=F —E-ImF —B-—=fF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHERT THERT THER
Guarantees given to financial T THB AR 2 RITRE
institutions in respect of AR ISHEBEEHER
banking facilities granted to (H15#i)
subsidiaries (Note i) - - 405,964 293,903
Guarantees given to financial X F Corporate
institutions in respect of Residence Pte. Limited
banking facilities granted to ZIRITRLE [ B TSR
Corporate Residence Pte. VER R (B 7ti)
Limited (Note i) 12,945 92,018 12,945 92,018
Notes: st -

(i) At 31 March 2014, the Company has provided corporate
guarantee to its subsidiaries for the amount of approximately
HK$405,964,000 (2013: HK$293,903,000) in respect of
its banking facilities, in which the ultilised amount was
approximately HK$153,626,000 (2013: HK$150,559,000).

(11) Corporate guarantee was given by the Company to a
bank in connection with banking facilities granted to
Corporate Residence Pte. Limited, a company which is
owned as to 90% by SingHaiyi and 10% by the Group.
The extent of the facilities utilised as at 31 March 2013
amounted to approximately HK$92,018,000 (equivalent to
SGD14,700,000). During the year ended 31 March 2014,
the guarantee was released and replaced by another banking
facility in which the Company has provided its proportionate
guarantee of SGD21,000,000. The extent of the facilities
utilised as at 31 March 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$12,945,000 (equivalent to SGD2,100,000).

Since the fair value of the pledged land of Corporate
Residence Pte. Limited associated to the facility is sufficient
to cover the outstanding loan amount, the Directors
consider that the aforesaid guarantee provided to Corporate
Residence Pte. Limited will have no material impact on
the financial position and operations of the Group and the
Company.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries is engaged in litigation or arbitration of
material importance and so far as the Directors are aware
of, no litigation or claims of material importance are
pending or threatened by or against the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

(ii)

HEZZ-MWE=ZA=+—0 ARARHRTRE(CHA
B #153,626,000/8 (=T — =4 : 150,559,000/ 7T ) ) [
HHTB AR R AEIRL405,964,0008 L ( ZF—=F :
293,903,000 7T) °

ZAR]ghAICorporate Residence Pte. Limited (A¥1/5i% MRS
5 BB 90% K 10% ik 2 A &) B R RTT R & ] — KERTT
EERARER R-ZE—==-A=+—0 EHERELE
92,018,0007% 7T (18% 72 14,700,000 1 i3 T) - REE =T
—MFE=ZA=1+—HLFE  ZEROERER  IHBEAR
A AR A H I B B HE 1R 21,000,000 5 103 T 2 SRITRVE B
ReR=ZF—NE=A=+—H CHAEMELHE12,945,000
PSIT(FBE72,100,000¥1 103 7T) °

FRNHERZ IR & 6 [ 2 Corporate Residence Pte. Limited 2 ##
THAFERZABERREEER S - WEFRAMCCorporate
Residence Pte. Limited 42 7 AT R T & ¥ A EE KA AR
2B RS BB EATE

BRAaE SN - RABHEEAMBARMEESEFNER

AR

fhEL - MBLEEMA - AR SEEMM B AR5
THESEREAFARRE
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45.

46.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
of Hong Kong are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employers are required to make a
monthly contribution of maximum HK$1,250 (2013:
HK$1,250) for each employee to the MPF Scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group in respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme
to all employees in Singapore. The assets of the scheme
of Singapore is regulated and managed by the Singapore
Government. Under this scheme, the employers are
required to make contribution to the scheme at the rates
specified in rules of the scheme. The only obligation
of the Group in respect of the scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss of approximately HK$526,000 (2013:
HK$742,000) represents contributions paid and payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of the year.

No contribution was forfeited during the year ended 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 6 August 2012, SingHaiyi entered into a conditional
subscription agreement with the Subscriber pursuant
to which SingHaiyi has agreed to issue the Singapore
dollar denominated CCPS with an aggregate principal
amount of SGD94,400,000 (the “Subscription Shares”),
and the Subscriber has agreed to subscribe for the CCPS
in principal amount of SGD94,400,000 in cash. Subject
to the terms and conditions of Subscription Shares, the
Subscription Shares may be converted into new ordinary
shares of SingHaiyi.

45.

46.

BRERETE

AEEREEBECEREERMBEESE - BERE
ST CEERRRANESZ T ARH L BAEEEESD
A - REBESHE SEIASANRAEEZL
EReRREERBESF MK KZH12508T(=F
—=F 1,25087) c ARBERBESFA I CE-BEEIR
BRBEF 2 REMK -

AEE T AR IIEESREEEMREE - S
2EEMFMEBNEE RER - RIEZE - BXA
WARZET B AR E 2 L R ARzt IR - NEE %A 8
ZHE—BEREZETBIZREHN -

RiF A B RNGR Z A BN R526,0008T(—F—=
F 742,000 7C) © RAEERFARZ SN RE
2 5K

REE-_Z-—NER-_T—=F=A=+—HItFEIE
IR -

BEHENEAT

RZZ—ZFN\ANE @ FGLERBE AT LB IEITRE
Wi - B FERE REBITAS BT R94,400,000%7
T2 FINE T2 ok AB SR ([RIBAR D ) - TR
ABRENIRSRE RS BEEA94,400,000F MK T 2 7%
FOKABER - ERERMDGERRIGHZRBT - REMKR
DA IR BF SR mA o
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46.

228

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Pursuant to the announcement of SingHaiyi dated 12
October 2012, the Subscriber completed the subscription
of the CCPS with principal amount of SGD94,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$596,419,000). The
principal terms of the CCPS share are as follows:

Date of issue 12 October 2012

Aggregate principal SGDY%4,400,000
amount
Interest rate Nil

At any time after the issue

date of CCPS but excluding
such period(s) during which

the register may be closed in
accordance with the Companies
Act of Singapore

Conversion period

No. of CCPS issued 80

Issue price SGD1,180,000

100,000,000 conversion shares
for every 1 CCPS

Conversion ratio

The person registered on the
register of members holding
the Subscription Share (the
“Holder”) will not be entitled
to vote at any meetings of the
Company. Holders shall be
entitled to attend class meetings
of the Holders and general
meeting of the Company.

Voting right

According to the Company’s announcement dated 27
November 2012, SingHaiyi has received a conversion
notice from the Subscriber to convert all CCPS into
ordinary shares of SingHaiyi. Upon completion of
the conversion of CCPS, the Group’s equity interests
in SingHaiyi was diluted from 52.4% to 19.8%.
Accordingly, SingHaiyi ceased to be a subsidiary and
became an associate of the Group afterward.

46.

BEHENE QT (A)

BIBFELREBHMAT——F+A+_B2Z2RE B
AT e RIS R 4 58 5 94,400,000 7 h0 3% 7T (#0849
596,419,0008 70 ) Z iZ EX AR o ZEFERABERZ
FBERWNT ¢

BITHM —T——H#+A+=H

rEBE 94,400,000 I3 T

kS z

Hg ZEXABIIREELT B EI 2 12 A6

- BB R A MR A
DA BEE (R HHE 2 3]

EBRTHEKRA 80

BEREE
B1TE 1,180,000% hn3 7T
= FIRFZ S K ABFERL100,000,000
P& Rk 1R
RER IR BT - FERERD 2 &5

AE(THEA DS BN AR REM
RELEE - HEABBERLEAR
ARBEABRIAE RERAE -

BEAQATBHA-_Z——F+—A=-++B 22 %
FERCEERRBABRLEZHBREBN  UEMEZS
KABEBRAE B AT BRLEEE HBZEXKAEBLRE
TRE  AEERFIERZBRAEREHAS24%EHER
19.8% ° Eitt - FHFRETBAWNBERT » BRHEEBER
ANEE A NF]
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46. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of net assets of SingHaiyi at the date of deemed

disposal were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Properties under development for sale
Interests in associates

Amounts due from associates
Obligations under a finance lease
Amount due to the Group

Amounts due to non-controlling interests

Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables and accruals
Borrowings

Liabilities component of convertible bonds

Non-controlling interests of SingHaiyi’s subsidiaries

Net assets disposed of

Release of non-controlling interests
Other reserve released

Convertible bonds reserve released
Translation reserve released

Gain on deemed disposal

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Interest in an associate

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Bank balances and cash disposed of

46. HEHEMBARHE)

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

RBEHE BT R 2 EEFEFFBNT

WAEHIECEERAEDI
WE - BB KR

BEYE

BRPFEME
REE QR 2 RS

e & A RIFIA

EVE T E AR

HERAEERIE

4R SEPE R M 2 SRR

B 5 MEMBWGRIE -« 2e RIEN KA
BATEFABREZSHEE
BITHH LIRS

E S REMBARENRETER

fEE

A ESZ BERRD
RN N R) 2 IR R

BX

ELEERE
FRRR FRIE A 2R
ERRREM R
BRI RRESRE
ERRERIE

BIEHE 2 W

BARE

EAAR
IS LI SN P 52

HERELEZRERHFRE
FrERRITESRIIR S

HK$’°000
FERT

30,302
155,342
1,246,725
1,898
145,147
(1,718)
(143,621)
(54,280)
999

9
665,007
(172,919
(910,671
(215
(3,090

958,915

144,903
44,962

189,865

189,865

665,007
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46.

47.

230

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

After the completion of the deemed disposal, on 25
January 2013, Xpress Credit entered into a placing
agreement to place out its remaining 19.8% interest
in SingHaiyi at a consideration of approximately
HK$217,535,000. The placing was completed on the
same date. At a result, gain on disposal of associates
of approximately HK$27,670,000 was recorded in
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group has
disposed of a number of subsidiaries due to the group
restructuring. All disposed subsidiaries are inactive for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

Details of net liabilities of disposed subsidiaries at the
date of disposal were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

Other payables and accruals

Net liabilities disposed of
Release of non-controlling interests
Translation reserve released

Gain on disposal
Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Bank balances and cash disposed of

46. HEHEMBARHE)

BIEHETKE R-_T—=F—A_-1+HB BHEEE
I ELEWRE o DURREL217,535,0008 i & ¥/ 1% 6
T19.8% % - MERRHTER - Bt - REME QR
W ##)27,670,000%8 70 - EREBE_T—=F=A=+—
HIEFEZREBREAMR -

47. HEWERXR

RBZE-Z-NF=A=+—HIIFE  rEECHEE
BEHALEZHNBAR - RBEE-_T-—NF=A=1+—H
FE - B HENBRAREEER -

REERHFHENBRRZ AEFEFBNT

HK$’°000
FET
REAEFEZ2EERBEDIN
H b pE I FRIE M JEFT B A (3,172)
P& A EHE (3,172)
FRRR IR AR o 3
EARIRIE (31,461)
(34,630)
e 34,630
BARE -
EAAR
Be -
HERELEZRERHFRE
FrERRITESRIIR S -
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48.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

Acquisition of AHR (formerly known as
Ontarget360 Group, Inc.)

On 19 July 2013, the Company acquired an
aggregate of 3,279,520 shares of Ontarget360
Group Inc. (“Ontarget360”), a company
incorporated in Delaware, USA, and its shares
were listed on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin
Board in USA, with a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,269,000 (equivalents to
USD292,000), which representing 94.9% equity
interests of Ontarget360.

Ontarget360 is principally engaged in internet
marketing agency services and its principal place
of business is in Delaware. Upon the completion
of the acquisition, Ontarget360 became a directly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

AHR is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company which established by the Company
on 13 September 2013 for the sole purpose
of facilitating Ontarget360’s reincorporation
in Maryland, where is the most common
state domicile for real estate investment trust
(“REITs”). The board of directors of Ontarget360
unanimously approved the adoption of a proposal
that Ontarget360 merge into and with AHR
(the “Merger”), the Company signed a written
consent approving the Merger on 11 October
2013 and the agreement and plan of the Merger
between Ontarget360 and AHR was effective
on 3 February 2014. References are made to the
Company’s announcement dated 6 December
2013.

48.

E S

(a)

W HEAHR (577 Ontarget360 Group, Inc.)

RZE—Z=F+EA+hIB  AAFLEREL
2,269,0007% 7T (#8 & 7 292,000 7T ) Y bl A =
R EE N FEf AR S 2 2 E]Ontarget360 Group Inc.
([Ontarget360] - HRHNEBRIZINE FRZHIR L
)& $£3,279,520M85 17 (15 Ontarget360 94.9% M
) °

Ontarget360 E ZH ZMEMISHERRERY -
HErE& XM NIERMNE - TRIERER -
Ontarget360fK BN AR EZMB AR

AHRBARRR -Z—=FAA+T=AKZLZE
BB AT ZAUEOntarget360REHERE
Bt ([FHEREET D SRAFIEMEEMMERN
FEMACIZ © Ontarget360E F 2 — L EFE NG
Ontarget360EEAHREHH([ G HEIE]) 21B% - K
AAIERZE—=F+ AT AEZERESURE
ABFETE - MOntarget3608AAHRRT I 2 B LA
FHFHEER-ZE—NFE-/=ZHAEM « ZLEMARD
AR =E—=F+=AHZAM -
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48. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 48. EBEHH(E)
(a) Acquisition of AHR (formerly known as (a)  YHEAHR (5i#Ontarget360 Group, Inc.) (#&)
Ontarget360 Group, Inc.) (continued)
Details of identifiable net liabilities acquired on 19 AHRRZ-Z—=F+ A+ NBAMPE AI#EFIEE
July 2013 and goodwill of AHR are as follows: FENEEFBET
2014
—E-—MF
HK$°000
FHET
Consideration transferred FregRnRE
Cash B 2,269
Recognised amounts of FrEERI BB E L
identifiable liabilities assumed EHEREH
Other payable and accrued expenses representing HibENRERESERHER
total identified net liabilities @A B EFEeE) 144
Non-controlling interests SRR (7)
137
Goodwill B 2,406
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WHEL 2R REFRE
Cash consideration paid BEfRERE (2,269)
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48. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of GMR

On 5 September 2013, the Group has entered
into the term sheet with the representative of the
shareholders of Scoop Media, Inc. (“Scoop”) to
acquire 7,500,000 shares of the common stock
of Scoop. Scoop is a company incorporated
in Nevada, USA, and its shares were listed on
the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board in USA,
with a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,863,000 (equivalents to USD240,000),
which representing 93.7% equity interests of
Scoop.

Scoop is principally engaged in internet marketing
agency services and its principal place of
business is in Nevada. Upon the completion of
the acquisition, Scoop became a directly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

For the purpose to re-domicile from Nevada to
Maryland, Scoop has entered into an agreement
and plan of conversion between Scoop and GMR,
a company incorporated in Maryland, where
is the most common state domicile for REITs,
pursuant to which Scoop will convert into GMR
whereby each shareholder of Scoop will exchange
one share of common stock of, USD0.001
par value per share of Scoop into one share of
common stock, USD0.001 par value per share
of GMR with effect from 15 January 2014. As a
result, the stockholders of Scoop automatically
became a stockholder of GMR and ceased to be a
stockholder of Scoop.

EBE0(E)

(b)

WHEGMR

RZZE—=FNARH  A&EEEHEScoop Media,
Inc.([Scoop )RR KT IGFE B ALK ELD
1,863,000/ 7T (A8 & #240,000% 7T) 8% 7,500,000
&ScoopE A% (15Scoop 93.7% %) ° ScoopBR
EREAEEMIMK L Z AT - BERGRERISIN
BFRX SR LT -

ScoopE BN EAE M IS HERILMRS - KX BES
HEARI R REE M o SERUEETR » ScoopRX B A ]
BHEMBAR -

RERNEZNBERZFEFH/N  ScoopB EEGMR(—
MREHERE ETRAM RS BN TR
ZATNEI B REHTE  HBIE - ScoopidPfA
GMR  %EScooplRE & —HxScoopE AR E0.001
Enz ERRERA—IRGMRERMEE0.0015ETT
ZEBE - BT -ME-ATRBER - Bt
Scoopi% B % B B AGMR R I TH AScoophk
H o
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48. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 48. EBEHH(E)
(b)  Acquisition of GMR (continued) (b) WEEGMR (&)
Details of identifiable net liabilities acquired on GMRRAZZE—=FNA=+HMKEZTHE&E
30 September 2013 and goodwill of GMR are as FEFIENEEFBET
follows:
2014
—E-mE
HK$°000
FEx

Consideration transferred FREsER (B

Cash Be 1,863
Recognised amounts of identifiable liabilities FrEER#AIaEz

assumed EwReR

Accrued liabilities representing total identified HERAHEAaEFBEE

net liabilities [t afE 151
Non-controlling interests EEalibe 3 (10)
141

Goodwill [EES 2,004
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WHEE 4+ 2 IRe Mt F5
Cash consideration paid BARENRE (1,863)
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49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 49. BEALRS
Group rEH
(a) (a)
2014 2013
—E-—MmEF —E-=fF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FHERT
Sansui Resorts Limited Sansui Resorts Limited
Accountancy and administrative BERITHREERKA
support fee income - 110

The Directors are of the opinion that the transactions
were entered into a normal commercial term and in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

(b)  The remuneration of key management personnel,
which are the Directors, during the year, was as
follows:

EEHE
kEnl

Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Contribution to defined contribution plans

The remuneration of the Directors are determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

Apart from the above, the Group did not have any
other significant related parties transactions for
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

T BRARET B 2 K

EERR RHIRAEE - REHBRETHERTEEG

T
FREISL ©

(b) FRNEIREREAREER)ZHMET -
2014 2013
=F-mE —B-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FRT TR

e RMRE

35,820 54,506
146 120
35,966 54,626

EEFMmFrHEZEast@R AL ZRBE LTS BE ME

.
E e

B Euioh  REERBE-_ZT-—NFR T —=F=
=t BLFEYEBEMEMEABEALRS -

H
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50.

236

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
disposed of 640,027,000 shares of SingHaiyi at
consideration of approximately HK$76,560,000.
The gain between the cash consideration received
and the carrying value of net assets disposed of
amounting to approximately HK$25,263,000
was recognised in equity as other reserve and an
increase of approximately HK$51,297,000 was
recognised in the non-controlling interests.

On 18 April 2012 and 27 April 2012, Xpress
Credit and the convertible bonds holders of
SingHaiyi have converted a principal amount
of SGD13,240,000 and SGD31,000 convertible
bonds of SingHaiyi respectively.

The gain between the carrying value of convertible
bonds disposed of and the carrying value of net
assets acquired of amounting to approximately
HK$15,493,000 was recognised in equity as
other reserve and a decrease of approximately
HK$15,294,000 was recognised in the non-
controlling interests.

On 26 April 2012 and 30 May 2012, Sing Haiyi
entered into two subscription agreements with
third parties in issuance of 123,000,000 and
243,000,000 new ordinary shares in the capital
of SingHaiyi at an issue price of SGD0.0162 and
SGDO0.0126 for each placing share respectively.

The third parties subscribed all shares at a
consideration of approximately HK$31,209,000
which was satisfied in cash. The gain between
the cash consideration received and the carrying
value of net assets disposed of amounting to
approximately HK$2,529,000 was recognised
in equity as other reserve and an increase of
approximately HK$28,680,000 was recognised in
the non-controlling interests.

50.

BIRREZCIRS

(a)

HEZZ—=F=A=+—HILFE  rEEUR
& #4976,560,000 7% 7T 1 & 640,027,000 % 7 /8 12 f%
7o FTEBR &R ERMEEFEERTDEMEM
Z W49 525,263,0008 7T © CREMEFEENER

AR - M#I51,297,0007T 2 3 H0 2 7 FE 15 AR 8 2
AR o

RBE——FNA+ N \BR-_ZT——FWNUA-—++
H BREERFIGRATRKRESFEADELS
28 513,240,000 %7 0038 7T 2 31,000 %7 I3 7o 2 ¥708
BRAARES Rk -

Pt 5 AT 8 i £ 2 P T (L B P W B V5 B EE PR TED (B A
EE 2 WEH /15,493,000 7T - EREMEBER
R - M#15,294,000/8 7T 2R B R IEEE
b 25 P R

R-T——FNA -+ AR —FRA=+
B $18REF-FIUMBRERZE AT
123,000,0000% 243,000,000 BCHT /& 1R M AR 2 3
LA BITED B AESRESIM0.0162F1 M3
TER20.0126 T AN IT

ZEHZHIRRE 31,209,000 7T 2 8 AT A IR
% WARSER - KBRS RERAEHEFE
EREEMER 2 WE4452,529,000/87T - ERE
R AL  M%)28,680,0007 71,2 3 /N
BRI S R R o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. £@IA
Categories of financial instruments 2HTAZHEF
Financial assets SREE
Group Company
REE ¥ NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F —E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T FHBxT FH&xT FHExT
Available-for-sale financial AR ESREE
assets 3,334 2,089 - -
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFF AR 2/
through profit or loss BiE 126,350 59,055 72,445 18,307
Loans and receivables: B K U A
— Pledged bank deposits — BIKIFIRITIER 54,273 6,714 47,680 -
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 MHEMEWFRIE
and deposits AR iE® 39,552 76,440 878 775
— Loan receivables —EIWE T 612 612 - -
— Amounts due from —KIBARIREK
subsidiaries - - 630,762 621,401
— Bank balances and cash —RITER NS 102,732 353,385 45,612 191,471
197,169 437,151 724,932 813,647
Total 4t 326,853 498,295 797,377 831,954
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

LA E 2 £/l
amortised cost af&
— Trade and other payables —E 5 REMENFIE

Financial liabilities measured at

and accruals LA FEETE R
— Bank overdraft —RITEX
— Borrowings —f&E
- Obligations under a finance —REEE A
lease
— Amounts due to subsidiaries ~ — &R HIE A FFRIAE
— Amount due to a director — R —RZEBFIE
— Non-convertible bonds — IR R ES

Total a5t

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments including
available-for-sale financial assets, pledged bank deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade
and other receivables and deposits, loan receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables and accruals, bank overdraft,
borrowings, obligations under a finance lease, amounts
due to subsidiaries, amount due to a director and non-
convertible bonds. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments including market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

SRMIAE)
ST AZHEF (&)
THAE
Group Company
AEH ARF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF —E-IF —E-Z=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTHET FTHET FTHET THET
8,887 8,906 1,862 3,253
- 342 - 182
201,306 151,514 47,680 -
448 - - -
- - 387,633 398,631
61,165 7,520 61,165 7,520
- 105,633 - 105,633
271,806 273,915 498,340 515,219
BB EREEEEREE

AEETZERTASEAIREESRERE MR
T BAFEFABRZZERMEE  BHREMBEYGK
BARZRE  BRER  MEBRARRK - RITEH IR
L BEHNEMENFEAREFER RTEX &
E REMEAE BEXMBARNIA  BR—BEEN
BERFAHRBES - SR IAFBERSMTARE - E2
FeMTAFHzRARERETSRAR(OMNERR - XK@
REMERRR)  FERBREEBDESRAR o ARNEZ
SR 2 BRI - EREEEMEEZFTRR - A
FEOR B B B R BREVE 2 16 7B
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Japan and North America with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, SGD, JPY and
USD respectively. Foreign currency risk arises from
financial assets, liabilities and transactions which were
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
foreign currencies which denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

Net financial assets (liabilities) £ ®EE(&E)FE
SGD FrhngoT

PY =

USD E

GBP HeE

CAD i

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to USD, SGD, JPY, GBP
and CAD.

51. &mMIAE)
BB R EEEERYE(E)
S LB
REEFERES - I - BARIEEMEEET - K
HARZSABT i - BERETIEREE © )
KERAAEESERNEER NI ERIEZEME
E AERRFEL - EREERVEENINERE - AHR
FERZEEIFERINERR -
RBEEBAREERARBUIMNESIE EREEREY
BEZEREENAT :
Group Company
REE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-ImF —E-=F —E2-mF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET FTHET FTHET THET
36,669 215,813 75,084 190,237
9,729 12,290 7,517 3
25,422 4,006 (21,019) 54
1,390 - - -
609 629 - 474
73,819 232,738 61,582 190,768
REBMEZRAEET KT - BE - ZRERMNTZEA

A
i

)
N
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51.

240

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 51. S®MIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BBRBREEEERBKE ()
(continued)
Currency risk (continued) SN ELER ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BURE T ()
The following table details the Group’s and the TREFFIRMBEEMEERFIAZZEAT - REE KK
Company’s sensitivity to a 5% (2013: 5%) increase NEIEETT - FmgoT - AE - B RMTEE TS BIF
and decrease in USD, SGD, JPY, GBP and CAD against BEREES%(ZZE—=F : 5%) ZEREEDN - 5% (=
the HK$, with all other variables held constant. 5% —=%F :5%)RAEEETEABSAIHREINEE R FTE A
(2013: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting ZHBRELE  TRREEBEHEZ T —EHRSHMEAL
foreign currency risk internally to key management HIEXRAREEIRER 2T - BRESTEBERTEIN
personnel and represents management’s assessment of BOEEKEA RSEEETEIDEEE UAINZINE - T
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates FRIES%(ZE—=F : 5% ) 2 ERFBFRELBEE -
until the next reporting period. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and foreign currencies other than the
functional currencies of the group entities and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% (2013: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates.
Group REE
USD Impact SGD Impact JPY Impact GBP Impact CAD Impact Total Impact
£nc¥g finz o REZ¥E Kpove a4 yaa
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“3-BE -§-ZF CE-BE C§-IF C3-M§ C$-ZF C3-0F C§-IF CE-ME C§-IF C3-ME C5-I%
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TR TR TEn  TEm TR AR TEr  TE TR TEn TEn TEn
Effect on (loss) profit after income tax  £{f5/ER: 14 (5558
Bilz%2 763 140 1,52 9,00 301 380 56 - B 26 2,665 9551
Company PN
USD Impact SGD Impact JPY Impact CAD Impact Total Impact
inegd fin 2% REZ¥E nrzgé yaa
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Zg-mF  -%-Zf C3-BF  CF-cF C3-BF 3-2f CB-BF C3-ZF CE3-ME CE-cf
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
TEn TEn THL THL THL TEn TEn TEn THL THL
Effect on loss after income tax HhFEhEER Y2 (631) ) 3116 7895 33 - - 18 2718 7915
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows would
be affected by the changes of market interest rates.
The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates mainly arises from bank borrowings. Bank
borrowings arranged at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. At 31 March
2014, approximately 69% (2013: 100%) of the bank
borrowings bore interest at floating rates. The interest
rate and repayment terms of the bank borrowings
outstanding at year end are disclosed in Note 32.

The Group has exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of the rate changes on bank balances
and bank borrowing which are carried at variable interest
rate.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure of the bank
deposits to fair value interest rate risk is not significant
as interest bearing bank deposits at fixed rate are within
short maturity periods in general.

At 31 March 2014, if interest rates had increased or
decreased by 1% and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s (loss) profit after income tax
for the year and accumulated losses would increase
or decrease by approximately HK$1,394,000 (2013:
HK$1,515,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to floating interest rates of the floating
rate bank borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group and the Company is exposed to equity price
risk arising from listed investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

51.

ERMIAE)
BEEEEEFEREKE (&)

Fl R @B
AEBZRAREERSREARET MG REBFLE -
AEEZ WIS EEFHEMEZRABITEE - UEBF
KLETEMNEZBZBRTEEEREALEDHIAZRER
SMERBREAFEFERRR HR-T—NF=A=+—
B #969%(-ZT—=4 :100%) ZRITEENZBFX
AR o REFREARER ZIRITHEE 2 FIE R IEFRNH
FE32FR R o

BHRRFBA R B2 RITEBRBITEEN AL
REEAZR S REN TR

EFRA - BRRETFIR 82 M BB TERER EE)
BARE - AREZ BTERAATATERRER Y
TEK -

RZZE—NF=A=1+—08 ' WFEEHKTE1% M7
BHMEBERBTE  AAEERFERAER%E(EE)
s b & 2EHE BB ISR 491,394,000 0 ( ZF—=
F :1,515,000/870) o b E B HRAEEE LT EFIER
TEE 2 2B FIEATER

HitER R
REBRARBPERZIEDBR/REAFEFABEZERE
Ez ERESRZ A ERRR -

241



Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e ISR

E_E-ME=ZA=+—HItFE

51.

242

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Other price risk (continued)

Management’s best estimate of the effect on the Group’s
and the Company’s (loss) profit after income tax due to a
reasonably possible change in the relevant stock market
index, with all other variables held constant, at the end of
the reporting period is as follows (in practice, the actual
trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis
below and the difference could be material):

Increase (decrease) in (loss)

profit after income tax nOmA)

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index ~ &F/& — 84 31EH
+30% +30%
-30% -30%

Singapore — Straits Times Index  $7 )13 — & I BS $RF5 2
+20% +20%
-20% -20%

U.S.A - Dow Jones Industrial B —@BH T T
Average Index Ei=E
+20% +20%
-20% -20%

BRETSHE (B51R) B A5

51.

SRMIAE)
BB R EEEERYE(E)
HituER RS (F)
RREPHEER  EREREEEFMSERZARE
Be(EMBEMBBHES TEZBERAT) HAEE LK
REGAEHE(BR)EMNZREGMHNT(ER L &R
RGERAGEBENTHREDMAEMERELEZEAREE
BEX):
Group Company
REE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-ImF —E-=F —E2-mF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T FH
5,468 5,494 5,466 5,492
(5,468) (5,494) (5,466) (5,492)
17,170 7,925 8,404 -
(17,170) (7,925) (8,404) -
131 224 - -
(131) (224) - -
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the maximum
exposure of the Group/Company to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group/Company due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the Group/
Company. The carrying amounts of available-for-sale
financial assets, pledged bank deposits, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
receivables and deposits, loan receivables and bank
balances and cash represent the maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The carrying
amounts of these financial assets presented in the
statements of financial position are net of impairment
losses, if any. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan
receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed
on all debtors requiring credit and loan receivables over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the debtors’
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30-60 days from the date of
billing. The Group obtains collateral from customers in
respect of certain trade receivables and loan receivables.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-ratings agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables and loan receivables are set out in Notes 29
and 24, respectively.

51.

ERMIAE)
BEEEEEFEREKE (&)
FERR

RBEEHHEER A58 FARAARzZ&SEERR
BEHAEE,/ KNRREAZSEFREBTEER S EE
SARRRBBERMBFSYBER - THEESRE
E - BERRTER BAFEAABSEZERMEE 2B
S REMEWFIRARIRE - BURE AR RITAER R
SZEAEERESREERR ZESEERR - R
RRBE 25 2 %FEREEREEDMRBEER
)  ERBCHIRIEEBR @ UHMARZZEEERR
TR o

HEBESHREMEWFERERERMS HABEEREE
MERERE R —THE 2 ETETREIEETNY - 2%
TEZEEFATEER S 2 EREEARS ZE
e - WEEER 2 ABE R REFEEEE 2 EEIR
R BHRWHIEERERARITI0E60RAEH - XEH
BB TE S ERGB R ERERAZPUREIE IR o

BRZSEFHRBEREEFARBEFE2SERNRZ
R7 RERBSFERAZEERRER

AEBEREGREMEWRTBUAREBRERMNEELEZEE
RBiE—FTEMIETED I AMTE29524 ©
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 51. S®MIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies OB EEAEREE (E)
(continued)
Liquidity risk REESRR
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors HEBLBESERMS  FAEEERTHABEEERR
and maintains a level of bank balances deemed adequate EHBNAEE AN ERE RS RTEER 2 IRTT
by the management to finance the Group’s/Company’s BEOKT « KAEB/ ANFEZEBEEMEECES R
operations investment opportunities and expected EEFRB(PINREHRGO RBETRREER) G ESE
expansion. The Group/Company finances its working NHEZEEEHK -
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and from fund raising activities such as
placement of new shares and issuance of warrants.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s/ RIERHAAER - A&EE AXTeRMBEZELEH
Company’s financial liabilities have contractual BT
maturities which are summarised below:
At 31 March 2014 R-E-WMFE=A=+—H
Group REE
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years years Syears  cash flows amounts
il 352 RER
BRFR= PSR- —EWF —ZEf RENE RERELHR REE
% HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR T TR
Trade and other payables &5 L Eft ENZUE
and accruals AR ET B - 8,887 - - - 8,887 8,887
Borrowings (Note) EE () 091215 105,131 11,825 35,920 68,720 221605 201,306
Obligations under a finance Y& E4dE
lease 1.88 113 113 264 - 490 448
Amount due to a director AR —ZEFHE - 61,165 - - - 61,165 61,165
175,296 11,938 36,184 68,729 292,147 271,806
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
At 31 March 2014

Company

Trade and other payables
and accruals DY HE &

Borrowings &

Amounts due to subsidiaries £/ BAFHIE

Amount due to a director AR —ZEEHE

At 31 March 2013

Group

Trade and other payables ~ Z5 & EAfER 7B
and accruals AR IESTER
Bank overdraft RITEY
Borrowings (Note) BEWZ)
Amount due to a director AR —ELEEIIE
Non-convertible bonds FBRES

5 REMEMTR

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MET

1 SilkS

%

1.00-1.36

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
T
EBA=

%

4
0.91-2.13

15

B —EER
51. £®IAE)
BB R EEEERYE(E)
REESRK(H)
R-ZZE-EF=ZA=+—H
ARF
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year years years Syears  cash flows amounts
RER
PR-F ik “ERf IFENE ReRERR REE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
TAL TAL TEL TEL TAL TAL
1,862 - - - 1,862 1,862
48,177 - - - 48,177 47,680
387,633 - - - 387,633 387,633
61,165 - - - 61,165 61,165
498,837 - - - 498,837 498,340
R=B—=5=ZA=+—8H
REE
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year years years Syears  cash flows amounts
KRR
PR-F —EWEF “ERE RENE REREAR REE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THR THR THR THR THR THR
8,906 - - - 8,906 8,906
350 - - - 350 RLY)
92,472 7,965 25,928 33,938 160,303 151,514
7,520 - - - 7,520 7,520
108,900 - - - 108900 105,633
218,148 7,965 25,928 33,938 285979 273915

245



Heng Fai Enterprises Limited

EBECEERERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e ISR

E_E-ME=ZA=+—HItFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 51. S®MIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies OB EEAEREE (E)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESR(E)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZB—=F=ZA=+—H
Company PN
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years years Syears  cash flows amounts
il 352 RER

BBRZ PR-F —ERE “EEF RENE REREAR RAEE
% HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$°000
TERL TERL TEL TEL FEL FEL

Trade and other payables &5 R EAERFIB R

and accruals e ER - 3253 - - - 3,253 3,253
Bank overdraft BITEY 4 189 - - - 189 182
Amounts due to subsidiaries /R ¥IEARZIA - 398,631 - - - 398,631 398,631
Amount due to a director ~ ER—ZEZFIE - 7,520 - - - 7,520 7,520
Non-convertible bonds FBRES 15 106,689 - - - 106,689 105,633

516,82 . . S s16280  S15219
The above contractual maturities reflect the undiscounted FlEHNRHAARMRBESRE  AEHFINHEHHE
cash flows, which may differ to the carrying values of the REH BEREE -

liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Note:

Included in interest-bearing bank loans of the Group are term loans
with an aggregate principal amounting to HK$27,583,000 (2013:
HK$78,286,000) of which the respective loan agreements contain
a repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the unconditional
right to call the loans at any time and therefore, for the purpose
of the above maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on
demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the Directors do not believe that
these loans will be called in their entirely within 12 months, and
they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the
maturity dates as set out in the respective loan agreements. This
evaluation was made considering: the financial position of the Group
at the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements;
the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events
of default; and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time.

Fair value

This note provides information about how the Group
and the Company determines fair values of various
financial assets.

Fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

51.

SRMIAE)

BEEEEEFEREKE (&)

REBESEM(H)
Hrat -

AEBMBRITERBIEAESBRER27,583,0008T(ZF—=F :
78,286,000/ 70) 2 E BIERK - BEERBEN A EMIER - BT RT
FERMETBEREMEN Bl st ERBIBHERME - RESEA
[REK] -

BEE LR BERERSERTE 20208 A REE - TS
RAERERES SRR R R o WWETE D E EAEER
HAGABMBERE B2 MBI - AEBEFERROER - L
BB RAE BB — EERE R -

AFME
HERFIERAEERAANART S AEREEAT
B2 ER -

AEBRANASHEE REFUEEUATHENE) 2
AT
ARBRARAZETERAER S RENREHT AR

FEAE - TREJEHNABEZSFSREEATELZ
AR (ARME @ MERNERARHAER) -
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51.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

Group

Financial assets
SMEE

Listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the
statement of financial position

R BHORERR P D ERIEAT
Bt A Emz emEEL ET
WA 38 5

Company

Financial assets
ERMEE

Listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the
statement of financial position

REBARRIRE R D RR/ER
FEFAFABRZERMEEZ
LTRAES

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the

current and prior years.

51. £®IAE)

AF(E ()

TEERARPDEHEE(REEHEENAPENE)Z

ATE(E)
AEE
Fair value as at
RTHBAHZATE
31 March 31 March Fair value
2014 2013  hierarchy
—E—mF —E-=F
=B=+-H =B=+-—AH DNFERE
Assets — Assets — Level 1
approximately approximately
HK$126,350,000 HK$59,055,000
BE-X BE-X EF—H
126,350,0007%& 7T 59,055,0007%87T
¥ /N
Fair value as at
RTHAMzZATE
31 March 31 March Fair value
2014 2013 hierarchy
—E—NF —E-=F
=A=+—H =HA=+-—H AT EREE
Assets — Assets — Level 1
approximately approximately
HK$72,445,000 HK$18,307,000
BE-XN BE-H 5%
72,445,000 T 18,307,000/87C

RAFERBEFEE R

Valuation technique(s) and
key input(s)

RERTREEHAE

Quoted bid prices in
an active market

RGBS Z TREAE

Valuation technique(s) and
key input(s)

REETREEHAE

Quoted bid prices in
an active market

RERM S FIREAE

FB_MRE =R mEE -
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Group
Fair value hierarchy:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Non-derivative financial assets
held for trading

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Non-derivative financial assets
held for trading

Company

Fair value hierarchy:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Non-derivative financial assets
held for trading

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Non-derivative financial assets
held for trading

BAVERARHZ
TREE

FIEEBE 2T SR

BAVERABH®Z
TRMEE

FHEEE 2 IFITE
TREE
BAFEFARSZ

TRMEE

FEEBE 2T SR
BE

BRAFE ARIEZ
SMAE

FHEBEEZIEITE
TREE

Annual Report 2014

TE—UEFR
51. S®MIAE)
AEE
N EZRE
2014
—E-F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—&% -t F=M #gt
HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS'000
FET FET FH&xT FH&xT
126,350 - - 126,350
2013
—E—=5F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ EH E=H st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT FET FHET FHBT
59,055 - - 59,055
ARATHE
NEZRE
2014
—ET—F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& -t E=H st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FHBxT FHET
72,445 - - 72,445
2013
—E—-=fF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ EH B=4 @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FHExT
18,307 - - 18,307
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52.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debts and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The Directors also balance its overall capital structure
periodically. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to shareholders, new shares issue as well as of
warrants. The Directors will also consider the raise of
long-term borrowings as second resource of capital
when investment opportunities arise and the return of
such investments will justify the cost of debts from the
borrowings and bank overdraft.

52.

BEXERER

AREERAAT ARRAREEBEMNHFHETE - FH
B T B 2 T AR A R BA IR - AR
BRR AT RETE o

EENTHIOEAREARE - REFAFHBELRR
B AREARABRNTRRZBSHE  HRETER
R - WERERSHIRMZERE ZLHBAAIEHH
EHEERRITEX ZBEBRAN  ARREETKERE
SRHERIEAERZE_HIR -

2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FHET THET
Debts afE 201,754 257,489
Bank balances and cash and IRTTARER IR & A KR BRI ERTT
pledged bank deposits w3 (157,005) (360,099)
Net debts & #FE 44,749 (102,610)
Equity represented by total equity excluding ERATEEFERERZ
non-controlling interests RS 826,798 904,396
Net debts to equity ratio FERGELE 5% (11%)

The Directors also endeavour to ensure the steady and
reliable cash flow from the normal business operation.

Notes:

(i) Debt is defined as long and short-term borrowings, as
detailed in Notes 25, 32, 33 and 36 respectively.

(i1) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

BEFENENERAAEXHEETRREAREZHTNRE -

Az -

(i) BEDATRARBEEHESR - FE0 BIERHE25 - 32 33
K36

(ii) RoBREAKERBEEARER -
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53.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In order to conform with the current year presentation,
the gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2013 has
been reclassified. Reclassification adjustment is made
to reclassify gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss amounting to approximately
HK$6,524,000 to revenue and a separate line for
turnover to show the gross proceeds of the disposal.
Such reclassification/presentation has no impact on the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Details of the reclassification are provided as follows:

Items on consolidated statement of HE-2—=%
profit or loss for the year ended
31 March 2013

Turnover — gross proceeds

fRABERER

Revenue

Urzs
Gain on disposal of financial assets at

EREEKS

fair value through profit or loss

53.

ZA=T—RIEFE

s e RERE

HERATEFABRRZ

bBHF

AREAFERISA -8 HEZT—=F=-A=1+—H
IHFERGEERPEEREATEFABEZSHEER
HOBHOE  WELSFOERAZE  UBLEERAT
B ABm 2z @mEEWRZ6,524,0008 TEFHEE
W R EEEENEYIER WERLESEMERER
FoBHENHE/2VNFRNEAEEHE_T—=F=
A=+—BLFEZHEFITVELE -

EFOBEFBOT -

Amount
original Amount as
stated Reclassification restated

gl
RExesE ENoE ER ]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTHExT FET TET
- 105,130 105,130
50,110 6,524 56,634
6,524 (6,524) -
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54. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

252

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated
27 February 2014, on the same date, Corporate
Space Pte Ltd (“CSPL”), a company incorporated
in Singapore with limited liability which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
has entered into a definitive sale and purchase
agreement with OEL (Holdings) Limited (“OEL”),
a company incorporated in Singapore with limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on the
SGX-ST regarding the disposal of the entire issued
and paid-up share capital of each of Singapore
Service Residence Pte Ltd (“SSRPL”), a company
incorporated in Singapore with limited liability
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSPL and
Expats Residences Pte Ltd (“ERPL”), a company
incorporated in Singapore with limited liability
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSPL at
an aggregate consideration of SGD53.9 million
(approximately HK$328.8 million) (the “SPA™).
Details of the transactions have been disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 16 January
2014, 11 February 2014 and 27 February 2014,
respectively.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated
9 May 2014, on the same date, the Company,
CSPL and OEL have entered into a mutual
termination agreement to terminate the SPA and
that neither party has any claim against the others.

54. HREHHESEBRER

(a)

WOARRAR PR T —NF-_A -+ LHZRASE
F#l - %% B BiCorporate Space Pte Ltd([CSPL]J)
(REFMBEEMALZBRART - BEARQREE
2EWAB 2 MEBAR)HEOEL (Holdings) Limited
(TOELD (RFE KM L2 BRAR - ikt
P L) BRI UK BB - NAFHAHE
Singapore Service Residence Pte Ltd([SSRPL ) (A
NGRS 2 BIRAR - /RCSPLZ 2EWE A
7)) KExpats Residences Pte Ltd([ERPLJ) (FAFT N
FEMKI 2 BRAT - ARCSPLZ2EMBERR)
ZEEEBITRERKAR - #RERS3,900,000%
I3 7T (49328,800,00078 ) ([ EE W 1) - BRI
SHHBEERARABRAZ—ME—A+XA
—EOFE-_At-BAR-T-MmFE_A=-++tA
ZRERE -

WA ARIBRA-_T—NFRANBZAEN
# R BHEARQF - CSPLEOELEREHERE
BB ZUEEEEHE  MEBEHESIONAS
TMEMEMZHRHET(AEE ZHR -
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54. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(b)

As set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 April 2014, GMR has entered into
an agreement with an independent third party
(the “Seller”) 15 April 2014 to acquire a
licensed medical facility, a long-term acute care
hospital in Omaha, USA, a five-year-old 41,113
square feet hospital building (the “Medical
Facility”) from the original developer for a
consideration of USD21,710,000 (approximately
HK$168,470,000) (the “Transaction™). The
building has 10 years remaining on its lease with
annual rent increases and multiple options to
renew on same terms. The hospital operator and
tenant is Select Medical Corporation, a New York
Stock Exchange-listed company that manages
nearly one hundred American hospitals. The 56-
bed facility serves patients with prolonged serious
medical conditions who require intense and special
treatment longer than 25 days. Details of the
Transaction have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 March 2014.

As set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 6 June 2014, GMR’s wholly owned
subsidiary, GMR Omaha, LLC, has completed
the Transaction and will consolidate revenue and
profit with effect from 6 June 2014.

GMR Omata, LLC., a wholly owned subsidiary
of GMR, entered into a term loan and security
agreement on 5 June 2014, with Capital One,
National Association, a commercial bank
incorporated and located in USA, to borrow
USD15,060,000 (equivalent to HK$116,817,000),
which bear an interest rate of 4.91% per annum.
Loan repayment shall begin on 1 August 2014 and
be due and payable on 5 June 2017.

In April and June 2014, the Group has disposed
two of its investment properties which are located
in Hong Kong with a total consideration of
approximately HK$6,470,000.

54.

BREMESEHE B RSHA)

(b)

WA ARBHA_ST—NFNA+EBZAE
el R—Z—WFEMNA+EHE  GMREBIF
=/ (TEF T - bA21,710,000 3 7T (4
168,470,000/ L) R E B REREKE —HFEE
BRm(UAEERERy RP2EER)  — R
FIER 241,113 F A RER S ([ BERE]) ([
1) o KEFHEHBH10F - AJRIBEEFHAEKRIR
M ERBZARGRES - BRELELAEFA
Select Medical Corporation * —HEIRAIAIEHFRZ 5
FrEmRkERBI—AMERERZ AT  ZRIER
BS6RMIK - BEZBB2SHRIREIGEZE
HEBEEREERERY - EEXSFBEREAF
B A-Z—NF=A-1+HAZAERE -

BIMARRBEA-—ZT—MENANBZAEM
#H GMRZ—X2EMEAR ° GMR Omaha,
LLC ' BEEMR S @ Hliam Fafgn =T —uF
NANBERGAEAEEREETETRE -

GMRZ2EMEARIGMR Omata, LLC. A =Z—Y
#F7X A HECapital One, National Association
(REBGEMK L BERNZB 2 ERIT)FILE
HAE B 3B 55 195 58 DA 5 AL 15,060,000 7T (AEE R
116,817,000 7T) * IREFIE491EFTE - BFHA
RZZE—NFENA—BFAREER IR _T—LF
NARBRERYA -

RZZ—MEMARKNA - AEEBEEPREL
REBZIEME - BREHR6,470,0008TT °
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Financial Summary

MEHE

Results

Revenue
(Loss) profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) profit for the year

Assets and liabilities
Total assets

Total liabilities
Non-controlling interests

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
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FE (&R E N
JEAG -
ZA/NCIEZZS DN
ES Ry 5o

FE(BR) &N

BERAME

maE

IR R

KATRERA
PEfb e

For the year ended 31 March

BE=A=1+—HLEE

(Restated)
(&)
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mOF —T-—=F —T-——-F —T——F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAT FHET FHT FAT
35,592 56,634 81,529 75,321 77,013
(42,110) 30,004 (188,286) 51,282 190,974
(43,503) 33,375 (188,271) 45,417 191,005
1,393 (3,371) (15) 5,865 (31)
(42,110) 30,004  (188,286) 51,282 190,974
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5)) (&%) (E3))
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NFE —T—=F —ZFT——F —FT——F —FT-FTF
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET FET THET FAET
1,094,327 1,175,624 2,258,838 1,796,867 1,138,823
(272,557)  (275,876) (1,333,490)  (799,699)  (366,144)
5,028 4,648 (105,308) (34,483) -
826,798 904,396 820,040 962,685 772,679




Particulars of Major Properties

As at 31 March 2014

R-F-—MF=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

1t 2

No.883 North Bridge Road, Shop on
1/F. and 32 Home Office
Units on various floors,
Southbank, Singapore 198785

Shophouse No.35 North Canal Road,
Singapore 059291

Shophouse No.36 North Canal Road,
Singapore 059291

7 Residential Units,
Dakota Residences,
34-42 Dakota Crescent,
Singapore 399939

30/F and Carpark No. C8 on
2nd Carparking Floor,
Wyndham Place,
No.44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong
BRPRERMA4FERAEHLI0E
R EEISCSHEN

49 single-family rentals
located in the Dallas and Houston,
Texas, U.S.A.

i p S Bl MR i e R T 2 49F
BRI SR

Parcels of Land located at 671-180-012,
013,014, 015, 016,017,018
Desert Hot Springs,
Country of Riverside,
State of California,
92503, U.S.A.

LA EBL DN & % Desert Hot Springs,Z
H38671-180-012 ~ 013 * 014~ 015
016 ~ 017 ~ 018 (92503)

Gross
area

BER

34,760 sq. ft.
34,760 7R

4,844 sq. ft.
4,844 F 7R

4,806 sq. ft.
4,806 7R

12,852 sq. ft.
12,852F 7R

3,480 sq. ft.
3,480°F 7R

94,713 sq. ft.
94 713 F R

67.5 acres/
273,200 sq. m./
2,940,300 sq. ft.
67.58,/
273,200F 75K,/
2,940,300F 7R

REME

Effective
% held
EREERE(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

94.9%

100%

Type
SVl

Home Office
RERAE

Office premises
WREME

Office premises
WREME

Apartment

BT

Office premises and
Car Parking space
WAEMEREM

Residential
F=

Vacant land

ZETH

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEER

Lease term

=k

Long-term lease

REHD

Medium-term lease

FEIRA

Medium-term lease

FEIRRA

Long-term lease

D

Long-term lease

R GtitE)

Freehold
KA EERE

Freehold
KA EERE
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Location

26

Unit No. 330,
75 Wall Street Condominium,
75 Wall Street,
New York, U.S.A.

Unit No. 37],
75 Wall Street Condominium,
75 Wall Street,
New York, U.S.A.

Car Parking Spaces Nos. 22, 23,
24 on Lower Ground Floor,
Inverness Villa,
No. 22 Inverness Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
EANEE S TEL5R
FEXCRIZ 22 ~ 23 - 2457 BT

The Hamilton, 1-238, Nishi 15-chome,
Minami 060-0061 1-jo, Chuo-ku, Sapporo,
Hokkaido, Japan

24/F and Carpark No. C12 on
3rd Carparking Floor, Wyndham Place,
No. 44 Wyndham Street, Central,
Hong Kong
EARREFA44REREFER 02412
R3EFEIHCI25REL

Aizuya, 733 Shiobara,

Nasu-shiobara City,
Tochigi 329-2921, Japan

256

Gross
area

BEE

1,370 sq. ft.
1,370F 7R

445 sq. ft.
445F 7R

30 sq. m./
322 sq. ft.
307K/
322FFR

3,209 sq. m.

3,209F K

3,480 sq. ft.
3,480F R

3,152 sq. m.
3,152F 75K

Effective
% held
EREEE (%)

100%

100%

100%

81.8%

100%

81.8%

Type
EAl

Apartment

BT

Apartment

BT

Car parking space

BI

Hotel
BIE

Office premises and

car parking space

ENEYE Y5 ES

Hotel
BIE

Lease term

=Y

Freehold
KA

Freehold
KA

Medium-term lease

REATRA

Freehold
KAERE

Long-term lease

REAEL

Freehold
KAERE



HONG KONG

24th Floor

Wyndham Place

40-44 Wyndham Street
Central, Hong Kong

JAPAN

1-5-6 Kudan-Minami
Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 102-0074
Japan

&E

aH
PIRERET40-445%
EREER2412

A&
T102-0074
RSED

FREER KRR
1-5-6

SINGAPORE

7 Temasek Boulevard
#43-03A Suntec Tower One
Singapore 038987

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Hampden Square

4800 Montgomery Lane

Suite 450

Bethesda, MD 20814

United States of America

#hhns

7 Temasek Boulevard
#43-03A Suntec Tower One
Singapore 038987

EE

Hampden Square

4800 Montgomery Lane
Suite 450

Bethesda, MD 20814
United States of America

WEBSITE
www.hengfaienterprises.com

STOCK CODE
Stock Exchange: 185
Bloomberg: 185 HK
Reuters: 0185.HK

fauk

www.hengfaienterprises.com

B3 15

Bii3SP - 185
SEEH L 185 HK
2%+t © 0185.HK
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